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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED

REGISTERED OFFICE: FURNITURE MARKER DIR,
DISTRICT UPPER DIR, KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA, DIR,
PROVINCIALLY ~ ADMINISTRATED ~ TRIBAL  AREAS
(P.A.T.A) 18000

Date: OS- Ju,i(’ Do(9 POSTAL ADDRESS: 82 - C-1, GULBERG IIl, LAHORE.
TEL: +92-42-35752620-22, +92-42-35758524-26

The Registrar, UAN: +92-42-111-666-555. FAX: +92-42-35751905

National Electric Power Regulatory Authority N

NEPRA Tower Attaturk Avenue (East), S

Sector G-5/1, Islamabad. by

Subject: Submission of application for Generation License for Master Hydro Power (Private) Limited for Q
its 99 MW (102.3 MW gross) Arkari Gol Hyvdro Power Project

. L.
Master Textile Mills Limited ("MTMIL") was notified by Pakhtunkhwa Energy Development Organization as the first ranked &7
bidder vide letter reference 2473-76/PEDO/DRE/MASTER dated October 23, 2017 for the Arkari Gol Hydro Power Project "Xy
(the "Project”) as a result of the competitive bidding process for the award of the Project. Therefore, MTML has incorporated
a special purpose vehicle Master Hydro (Private) Limited ("MHPL") to undertake the development of the Project.

Y

Dear Sir,

N
&
We would like to submit herewith our Application for Issuance of Generation License for MHPL. The required documents
pursuant to the provisions of National Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing (Application and Modification

Procedure) Regulations, 1999 are attached herewith this application.

P

a

AN
A Pay Order bearing number 0S8 784dated o407 -=2/8 of Pakistani Rupees 75, - as nonrefundable license (g
application fee calculated in accordance with Schedule 11 to the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing ()
(Application and Modification Procedure) Regulations, 1999, is also attached herewith.

-

The application for the Generation License (including its Annexures) is submitted in triplicate.

Yours sincerely, ‘F"Y ofvt?v‘)l ~ /b
For and on behalf of . — Yo /D Rnd»l qu(ﬁ
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For 99 MW (102 MW gross) Arkari Gol Hydropower Project
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1 REQUEST FOR GENERATION LICENSE

Under the Regulation of Gemeration, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act
(XL of) 1997 (the NEPRA Act) and the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority
Licensing (Generation) Rules 2000 (the Licensing Rules), the National Electric Power
Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) is responsible for and has authority to inter alic grant
licenses for the generation of electric power and other terms and conditions for the supply of
electricity through generation. The National Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing
(Application & Modification Procedure) Regulations, 1999 (The Licensing Regulations},
specify the procedure to be adopted for application to NEPRA for grant of generation License.

Pursuant to Sections 7(2)(a) and 15 of the NEPRA Act, read with other enabling provisions of
the NEPRA Act,the Licensing Rules and the Licensing Regulations, and in accordance with
the KP Hydropower Policy 2016 (the Policy); Master Hydro (Private) Limited (the Project
Company or the Applicant) hereby submits for NEPRA’s kind and gracious consideration,
the application for the grant of a generation license along with supporting documents (the
Generation License Application) for its 99 MW (102 MW gross) hydropower generation
facility to be located at District Chitral, KPK, Pakistan (the Project).

Given the advanced stage of the Project, NEPRA is kindly requested to process this Gener-
ation Ticense Application at the earliest, thereby enabling the Project Company to proceed

further with the development process.

This Generation License Application is submitted in triplicate.
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2 'THE PROJECT

2.1 Project Status

The 99 MW (102 MW gross) Arkari Gol hydropower project was identified as part of a com-
prehensive study conducted by the Government of .Khyber Pakhtunkhwa in collaboration
with the German Agency for Technical Cooperation. In 2013-14, an extensive site investiga-
tion was conducted by the Pakhtunkhwa Energy Development Organisation (PEIDO) which
included field reconnaissance, topographical survey, hydrological and geological investigations
and engineering and design studies. Based on the results of field investigations, the Project
was considered viable for development and the results were compiled into a Project Feasibil-
ity Study {the PFS). In line with NEPRA’s guidelines for competitive bidding for award of
solicited sites, PEDO initiated a single stage two-envelope competitive bidding process for
award of the Project. Pre-qualified bidders were required to submit both a technical proposal

and a commercial proposal, based on the design outlined in the Project Feasibility Study.
A summary of the bidding process conducted by PEDO is outlined in table 77 below.

In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, Master Textile Mills Limited (MTML or
the Main Sponsor) submitted its technical and commercial proposals (the Bid) to PEDO
for evaluation. As a result of the bidding process, MTML was notified by PEDO as the first
ranked bidder for the Project. Master Hydro (Private) Limited (MHPL), was incorporated
on: August 09, 2017 to develop, own and operate the Project.

Subject to approval of the tariff petition and generation license by NEPRA, the indicative

time lines for subsequent project development milestones are outlined below:

Date Activity

July 2018  Submission of Tariff Petition to NEPRA
Aug 2018 Issuance of Letter of Award '

Sept 2018 Issuance of Letter of Support

Apr 2019  Financial Close

Mid 2023 Expected COD

Table 2.1: Way forward
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE} LiMITED Application for Generation License

Date Activity

Mar 2016 Project advertised by PEDO as solicited site and interested parties in-
vited to submit pre-qualification documents
14 Jun 2016 Pre-qualification documents submitted by interested parties

10 Oct 2016  Notification of pre-qualification issued to applicants, and pre-qualified
applicants invited to purchase the request for proposal document (RFP)

07 Nov 2016 A comprehensive RFP package issued by PEDQ, outlining the mecha-
nism to be adopted for award of the Project through competitive bidding

01 Jan 2017 Pre-bid meeting held in Islamabad to clarify queries of pre-qualified ap-
plicants

25 Apr 2017 Submission of technical and commercial bids by pre-qualified bidders and
bid opening of technical proposals (Envelope T)

19 Jul 2017 Technically responsive bidders notified by PEDO

24 Jul 2017 Bid opening of commercial proposals (Envelope I1) of technically respon-
sive bidders
23 Oct 2017 First Ranked Bidders notified by PEDO

19 March 2017 Motion for Leave for Review (MLR) filed by PEDO
27 June 2017  Successful Bidder notified by PEDO

Table 2.2: Summary of Bidding Process

2.2  The Sponsors

Master Textile Mills Limited was incorporated on February 13, 1992 as a private limited
company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and was subsequently converted into a public
limited company in 1992. MTML is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trade of
yarn, grey cloth, dyed fabric and stitched garments.

The Main Sponsor is part of Master Group of Industries {the Group), one of the most
dynamic business groups of Pakistan. The Group started its core business in the bedding
industry followed by diversification into textile, automobile, engineering, retail and power
sectors. The Group comprises the following key companies:

o Master Textile Mills Limited
o Master Bnterprises (Private) Limited
¢ Dura Industries (Private) Limited

¢ Procon Engineering (Private) Limited

Master Motor Corporation (Private)Limited

EFLAD
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Applicalion for Generation License

e Master Wind Energy Limited

¢ Master Green Energy Limited

¢ Master Offisys (Private) Limited

o Celeste Home Fashion (Private) Limited

‘The Group is committed to play its part in the development of Pakistan’s various sectors.
Realizing the role of clean energy in development of the nation, Master Group ventured into
the power generation sector by developing a 52.8 MW wind power project in Jhimpir, Sindh.
Master Wind Energy Limited (MWEL) successfully commenced commercial operation in
October 2016. The company is expanding its operational base by developing two additional
wind energy projects in the wind corridor of District Thatta, as well as installing a solar
hybrid set up at the existing MWEL project site. Master Green Energy Limited is the
Sponsor’s second project in the wind power sector, which is expected to achieve financial
close by end 2018. Another 50 MW wind power project, Jamshed Wind Fnergy Limited is
also being developed in Jhimpir, near the MWEL site.

oy
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

2.3 Project Costs and Funding Plan

A breakup of the cost heads is provided in the tables below, based on the costs submitted as
part of the Bid. As indicated in the Bid, the proposed Project cost is USD 214.55 million.

Project Costs Mil. USD  Source of Funds Mil. USD
EPC 150.00 DEBT (75%)

Non EPC 33.79  Foreign 95.89
Interest During Construction 21.06  Local 65.03
Insurance 1.50

Financial Charges 6.18 EQUITY (25%) 53.64
Feasibility Study 2.04

Total 214.55  Total Financing 214.55

25% of the project costs will be injected by the sponsors as equity, while the remaining 76%
will be financed through debt. The sponsors have adequate resources and financial strength
to take on development of the Project, as evidenced in section 7?7 of this document. On
the debt financing front, Overseas Private Investment Corporation (OPIC) and National
Bank of Pakistan (NBP) have committed to arrangement of the required foreign and local
financing.
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

3.1 Application for Generation License?

% As per form specified in Schedule I of the Licensing Regulations

: ..{?:?4-7’
Cariifiad True Copy



MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE} LIMITED

REGISTERED OFFICE: FURNITURE MARKER DIR,
DISTRICT UPPER DIR, KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA, DIR,
PROVINCIALLY ~ ADMINISTRATED  TRIBAL  AREAS
P.AT.A) 18000

POSTAL ADDRESS; 827 - C-1, GULBERG [N, LAHORE,

TEL: +92-42-35752620-22, +92-42-35758524-26
UAN: +92-42-111-666-555, FAX: +92-42-35751%05

The Registrar,

National Electric Power Regulatory Authority

Subject: Applieation for n Generation Lirense

l, Rumman A. Dar, being the duly authorized representaiive of Master Hydro (Private) Limited by virtus of Board
Resolution dated November 3%, 2017 hereby apply to the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority for the grant
of a Generation Livense to Master Hydro (Private) Limited, pursuant to Section 15 of the Regulation of Generation,
Transmission and Distribution of Eleotric Power Act, 1997,

I, certify that the documents-in-support attached with this application are prepared and submitted in conformity with
the provisions of the Naiional Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing (Application and Modification
Procedure) Regulations,1999, and undertake to abide by the terms and provisions of the above-said regulations, I
further undertake and confirm that the (nformation provided in the atiached documents-in-support is true and correet
to best of my knowledge and belief,

A pay order [n the sum of Pakistani Rupees ?go? . éz_’ e -, being the non-refundable license application fee

caleulated in accordance with Schedule H to the Mational Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing
{(Appication and Modification Procedure) Regulations, 1999, is also attache: herewith.

Date: {)S—Tuhd D08

sl Ao

Rummman A, Dar
Chief Operating Officer
Master Flydro (Privaie) Limited

0 ,r‘{-:r.‘f.h,.
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MASTER HYDRO {PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

3.2 Board Resolution authorizing application for Gener-

ation License
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Lahore Difice: 82 - C-1, Gulherp H1, Lahore,
Teb #92-42-35732620-22, +92-42-35758524. 26
UIANT 82-42-11 1-666-553, Pax: +92-42-35751905

EXTRACT OF THE BOARD RESOLUTION PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS OF MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED ON Novermber 3, 2017,

“RESOLVED THAT Master Hydro (Private) Limited a company incorporated under the laws
of Pakistan with its registered office located at 54 Darul Aman Co-Operative Housing Society,
Maln Shahra-¢-Faisal, Karach] (the “Company™ be and is hereby anthorized o submit an
application for Generation License (including any subsegnent modifications) for submission 1o the
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (*NEPRA™) for grant of Generation License in
respeet of its 99 MW (102.3 MW Gross) Arkari Gol Hydropower Project located at Chitral District,
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Pakistan (the “Projeet™) and in relation thereto, enter into and exccute all
required documents, make all filings and pay all applicable fees, in each case, of any nature
whatsocver, as required.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in respect of filing of application for Generation License
{including any subsequent modifications) for submission to NEPRA, Mr. Rumman Arshad Dar
(Chief Operation Officer) be authorized and empowered for and on behalf of the Company to:

(i} review, execute, submit, and hereby deliver the application for Generation License (inciuding
any subsequent raodifications} and any related documentation required by the NEPRA for
the determination of the reference to application for generation license including any
contract, documents, affidavits, letters, forms, applications, deeds, guarantees, unclertakings,
approvals, mesteranda, amendtients, communications, notices, ocertificates, FROUBELS,
statements, and any other instrimerts in respect to the Generation License;

(i} represent the Company in all negotiations, representations, presentations, hearings,
conferences and/or meeiings of any nature whatsoever with any entity (including, but in no
manaer limited to NEPRA, any private parties, companies, partnerships, individuals,
governmental and/or semi-governmental authoritios and agencies, minisities, boards,
departments, regulatory amthorities and/or any other entity of any natire whatsoever);

(1) sign and execute the necessary documentdtion, pay the necessary fees, appear before the
MNEPRA as needed, and do all acts necessary for the completion and processing of the
application for Generation License including any modifications;

(iv} do all such acts, matters and things as may be necegsary for carrying out the purposes
aforesaid and giving full effect to the above resolution/resolutions;”

B
_ﬂWJ/ )

Company Secretary

12
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

3.3 Application Fee?

Piease da ot write below this Tine!

wOLZ575LO0 238BAAN ‘ #0020

Pay order of Rs. 782,440 /- (Fee with CPI for upto June 30, 2018) attached as Application of Gener-
ation License Fee for power projects over 100 MW (gross)

1
3 EAL
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MASTER HYDRO {PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

3.4 Aflidavit of authorised representative

14
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BeFORE
THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY

AFFIDAVIT

Affidavit of Mr. Rumman Arshad Dar /o My, Arshad Lyhal Dar, having GNIC No., 61101-1927558-3
resident of House # 506-CC, Street # 13, Phase-1¥, IHA, Lahore, and authorized representative of

MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE} LIMTFED, having Jis registercd office ot FURNITURE MARKET DIR,

DISTRICT UPPER DIR, KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA, DIR, PROVINCIALLY ADMINISTRATED TRIBAL
AREAS (1A, T.A) 18000 {the “Company™).

1, the above mentioned Depenent, do hereby solemnly affirrs and declare that:

1. T am the Chief Operating Officer of the Conpany.

2. I am the authorized representative of the Comprany by virtue of Board Resolution dated 3ol
November, 2017,

3 The contents of accompanying Ceneration License Application dated _6 _ of 2 Auby _» 2218

subiitted to (e National Eleotric Power Regulatory Authority ("NEPRA™ aleny with the
supporting documents are true and correct to lhe best of my knowledge and belief and nothing
miaterial or relevant thereto has been concealed or withheld therefrom,

4, © Talse affirm that all further documentation and information to be provided by me in connection
with the aforesaid Generation License Application shall be true and correet to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

i o

":} =t Z{;"“"—”"‘"
DEPONENT
VERITICATION
[t is hereby verified on solemn affiemation at ‘5 Day of 7, 7 =18 , that the contents of the above

alfidavit are true and correct 1o the best of my knowledge and bell :f, unid nothing material or relevant thereto
has been concealed or withheld therefrom.

Feraesranidirecgeranss Rrsacragan
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4 DOCUMENTS IN SUPPORT
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.1 Regulatory Filings of the Project Company

As required pursuant to Regulation 3(5)(a) of the Licensing Regulations, the following reg-
ulatory filings of the Project Company are attached.

e Certified copy of Certificate of Incorporation
o Certified copy of Memorandum & Articles of Association

o Annual Return of the Project Company

17
o
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.1.1 Certified copy of Certification of Incorporation

Pursuant to Regulation 3(5)(a)(i), please see attached certified copy of Certificate of Incor-

poration.

18
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ADS
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

P

CONMPANY REGIST? ?A ITON GFFICE KAF{AGHI

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPQRATION

[Under seetfon 16 of the Companies Ast, 2017 (XIX of 2017)

meorme Univargal Tdentilioation No. 4110719

{ hereby cortify that MASTIR HYDRO (PRIVATID) LIMITED is this

day ncorporated under the Companies Act, 2007 {XIX of 2017 and st the

company i Hmited by shares,

Given under my hand at Karachi this day of August, Two

Thoussnd aned Seventeen,

[neorporation n,c: T (lf}z’ """

Siegfne vad uf Ui e

Y l.)...wég
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.1.2 Certified copy of Memorandum and Articles of Association

Parsuant to Regulation 3(5)(a)(ii), please see attached certified copies of Memorandum and

Articles of Association.

20
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(AMENDED)

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 (XIX OF 2017)

(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)

MEMORANDUM
OF
ASSOCIATION

OF

MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 (XIX OF 20177 - - =

The name of the company is Master Hydro (Privare) IiQin__;I’gim%’...

(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

| - oF
MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED

G

X < - A I
Fhe registered offled o the Commpany will be sitsated fnihe Province of Eliyber Pakbrunkltwa (KUK).

(iy

i)

i)

{iv}

Tha Campony’s pritteipnal objective is tor setup power gensration projeets and o pEThLe,
sesprule; pecamulate snd fo supply electrie power subjegt 1o Hoonge from regulutor:
However, Company it ot undertzke thie businesy of Nog-Banking Pinance Cppmwny shd
Brokerage busiiess.

Excopt-tor the businesses mentiored b sub-claise () hersurder, the conipiny may wrgpe
Iy . thie ool Dusinesses and shal} be guthorized 1o whe afl necessary siepsd and actons fn
cormgeifon therewith mid mieilary therdio,

Notwithstanding anything comained in the foregoing sub-chiwses of s clwuse nefiing
wontuied hersin ehall be construed os ripowarfng the Company to widetake or ntulge,
direetly or indirectiy-1n the business of a Banking Conrpany, Nor-braoking Finonge Company
(Mutgal Fund, Leastng, Invastinent Companys [rvesturent Advizor, Rend Bstate Hivestment
Thust mansgement compuny, Housiig Finance. Company, Yentire Cépital Compiusy,
Discauniing  Services, Microfiminee or Microcredit busingss), Insurance Business,
Modgraba mandgemant company, Stock Brokerage business, forex, menl estale bosiness,
mgnaging sgency, businesy of providing the services of security guardearany oier busimess -

restricied uider any law forthe time belng in foree or as oy Tisspdeiliddhy ;ﬂ}’cs{;\gm mission,
< i L7AN :

<5
7

1y

. 9 '} {3
(8)  enudgein Labiove @ any unlpstig
eperation; S & Lo
. 4o < ] - ,——;.‘
5 K . . . :} %} N RN ’;1:7? c:.; ‘{:g . 5'.} #
W lannelt multi-feve! marketing (MEM), Pytmnic and Pofi §c}1§mwﬂ;§;‘r wtlier 1351%1‘1‘%&
activitientbusinesses or iy lottery businesgs, A RGN
¥ e N TS I
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o

4, The Hability of the men:;bersr is limited,

{c) enigage in any of the permissible business unless the requisite approval, permission,
consent or license is obtained from competent authority as may be required under
any law for the time being in force,

5, The authorized capital of the company is Rs 1,000,000 (Rupees one million only) divided into
100,000 (one hundred thousand) ordinary shares of Rs, 10/- (Rupees ten only) each.

We, the geveral persons whoge names and addresses-are subseribed below, are desirous of being formed into 2 company,
in pursuanee of this memorandur of association, and we respectively agree to fake the number of shares in the capital
of the compnuy as set opposiie our réspective names:

NAN_EEAND CNIC NQ_ FATHER? - 5
SURNAME (M CASE s |Ew _|B . NUMBEROF | G @
sl OF | =2 x| &1 RESIDENTIAL ARESTAKEN | B &
SR. | (PRESENTAND | .. | HUSBAN | 3 Z & | DDREssm | SUARESTAKEN | % &
NO.| FORMER)IN wo | ps |Zd 2 £ YOLL BY EACH S
FULLBLOCK | o\ cciopen | NAMEIN| & 218 ' SUBSCRIBER % B
LETTERS NO) FULL | % ot & 8
1 | MR NADEEM | 42301- S/IO MR, PLOT NO. 75, 10,000
MALIK 86564979 | RIAZ KHAYABAN-E- ,
MALIK. | & ., | SHAHEEN, 8d...
' é 9 | PHASE VI,
7 2 D.H.A,
% 2| KARACHI
2 | MR.NAJEEB 35201~ §/0 MR. FLOT NO. 321, 10,000
MALIK. 3088787-3 | RIAZ BLOCK K,
MALIK PHASE 1,
LAHORE 8
CANTT
o . | COOPERATIVE
E 7 | HOUSING
2 E  SOCIETY,
4 ¥ | LAHORE
_ 7 A @
3 MR, SHAHZAD | 352010 S/0 MR. | 126~ Y BLOCK, 10,000 |
MALIK 2954157 NAVEED g i | STREET NO. 18, | _
MALK | & é  D.H.A. LAHORE S
S
Total number of shares taken Thirty Thousand shares of Rs, 10 each 30,000
T
{}Q‘ h’aﬁ SEAY 1,;\) “*»\‘\
Qafad }he".‘i"i da%! of Augus@gﬁl 7.
‘1* AP S
f- Ei} L% v-,xf. :; “{%‘g} e
K ,«;‘s{’:
% e ,,*fff‘
RIS S L Page3of 3 st ’;‘,gj}mf‘;}ﬁmga
;s A Heeuritics and mmz senpiasion ofPakisien
E ;;—;‘m ; CRO, Frabawar (-{;/C{ wifi’
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 (XIX of 2017)

(PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)

Articles of Association

of

MASTER HYDRO (PRI\{(KA'!‘:@&J&IM
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 (XIX of 2017)

(Private Company Limited by Shares}
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
_ OF
MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED

1. The Regulations contained in Table ‘A’ to the First Schedule to the Companies.
Act, 2017 (the “Act”) shall be the regulations of MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE)
LIMITED (the “Company”) so far as these are applicable to a private company.

PRIVATE COMPANY

2, The Company is a “Private Company™ within the meaning of Section 2(1)(49) of
the Act and accordingly:

(1) No invitation shall be made to the public to subseribe for the shares or
debentures of the Company.

{2y  'The number of the members of the Company (exclusive of persons in the
employment of the Company), shall be limited to fifty, provided that for
the purpose of this provision, where two or more persons hold one or more
shares in the company jointly, they shall betreated as single members and

(3)  Theright to transfer shares of the Company is restricted in the manner and
fo the extent herein appearing.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

3. A member desirous to transfer any of his shares shall first offer such shares for
sale or gift to the existing members and in cas¢ of their refisal to accept the offer, such
shares may be transfetred to any other person, as proposed by the transferor member,
with the approval of the Board of Directors,

DIRECTORS
4, The nutnber of directors shall not be less than two or a M mngéwﬁ%ig%\
nnder the provisions of the Act, The following persons shail be th ﬁis;'t dxregtul;§ | ‘ﬁgs?
of the Company and shall hold the office upto the date of First Ann {T Gen Meehg & N
! S e
1 M. Shahzad Malik ;;_ ;%? et ): 4
2. Mr. Nadeem Malik f = LS 3 .
3. Mr. Najeeb Malik iﬁ? AR et

We, the several persons whose names and addresses ars subsch beng* are aeslmusxnf being

25
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formed into a company, in pursuance of these articles of association, and we respectively agree
to take the-number of shares in the capital of the company set opposite-eurrespectivenamess oo uzom, 4 ue o

namgaND | CONERO L eaThER | B |z i
|, SURNAME OF S/ | 526 2 | resmewmiaL | NUMBEROF N
SR | GRESENTAND | [ OF | wuspa | 3 <& 5 | RESIDENUAL | qprestaken | BE 2
NO. | FORMER)IN no | NDS |GEE S it BY EACH 3w
FULLBLOCK | b ocpons | NAME |ESEL D UL SUBSCRIBER | §©&
_ LETTERS oy | INFULL | Z 81 - 2
T | MR NADEEM | 42301- SOMR, | [PLOTNO. 7S, | TUIo0e0 |
MALLK 8656497-9 | RIAZ Z v | KHAYABAN-E- S,
MALIK | & 2 | SHAHEEN, ‘
A | & | FHASE VI, '
% 5 I DHA,
B ) | A | @ | KARACHL 1 |
2 | MR, NAJEEB 35201~ S/OMR. PLOTNO. 321, 10,000 ‘
MALIK 3088787-3 | RIAZ BLOCK X, '
: MALIK PHASE 1, .Sd...
. LAHORE
= v | CANTT
< | & | COOPERATIVE
2 % HOUSING
o jan} SOCIETY,
o & | @ | LAHORE |
3 | MR SHAHZAD | 352019- S0 MR. " | 126- Y BLOCK, | 10,000 - -
MALIK 2954157 | NAVEE | & 2 STREET NO. L8|
D Yy |3 |18,DHA ) =
MALK | £% | B Y LAHORE |
‘Total number of shares taken Thirty Thousand .s!mres of Rs. 10 each 30,000 |
wﬂ“ﬂiﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁldﬂy of August, 2017,
e 5\,@&%3 = ;{\?‘;‘»\ »
e
f;g;’ !
~ \\ Cstified to 8o Pruo |
IR (Mu?sm; APy ey
S }:}b*’}ﬂ Beiie B G &mﬁm&es
oS Sesurities ﬁEﬁ achang Comuission F"*"“
o CR(3, Foshawar f
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4,1.3 Certified copy of last filed annual return

Master Hydro (Private) Limited was incorporated on August 9, 2017. Annual Returns will

be filed after one operational year.

However, as required pursuant to Regulation 3(5){a)(iv) of the Licensing Regulations, please
see attached an annual return prepared in accordance with the third schedule of the Compa-

nies Ordinance.
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“THIRD SCHEDULE

(See section 156)

FORM A- ANNUAL RETURN OF C OMPANY HAVING
SHARE CAPITAL

Registration No.
Name of the Company

Form A made upto (Day/Month/Year)
Date of AGM (Day/Month/Year)

0110719
MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED
30 06 18

PART-A

Registered office address:

FURNITURE MARKET DIR, DISTRICT UPPER DIR, KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA, DIR,
PROVINCIALLY ADMINISTRATED TRIBAL AREAS (P.A.T.A) 18000, Pakistan

Office Tel. No.:2132579980

: Email Address: amir.m. butt@master.com.pk

Office Fax No.: 2132570135

Nature of Business: POWER GENERATION

Authorized Share Capital

 Type of Shares No. of Shares | Amount Face Value
Ordinary Shares 100,000 10 1,000,000
Paid up Share Cépital
Type of Shares No. of Shares | Amount Issue Price
Ordinary Shares 30,000 10 300,000

Amount of indebtedness on the date upto which form A is made in respect of ail

Mortgages/Charges

|

NIL

Particnlars of the holding company

Name

Registration No.

% Shares Held

Chief Executive

Name

SHAHZAD MALIK [ NIC 3520192954157

Address

Y-26 STREET NO 13, DHA LAHORE

Chief Accountant

Name

| NIC |

Address

Secretary

Name

[ NIC |

Address
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17 Legal Adviser

Name:

Address:

18 Auditors

Name:

Address:

19 | List of Directors on the date of Form-A

Name of Director

Address

Natio
nality

NIC (Passport No. if foreigner)

1. SHAHZAD MALIK

Y-26 STREET NO 13, DHA
LAHORE

PAKI
STAN

3 NAJEEB MALIK PLOT NO. 331, BLOCK-K, PAKI
PHASE-1, LAHORE CANTT| sTan| 3 [3 [2 [ O[3 o183 7 3173
3. NADLEM MATLIK HOUSE NO. 75l PAKI
KHAYABAN-E-SHAHEEN, | STAN|4 [2 13 o |1|8 |6 |5 |6 |a]o|7 |0
PHASE VI, DHA KARACH]
I,
5.
6.
7.
g,
9.
PART-B

20. List of members & debenture holders on the date upto which this Form A is made

Folio Narme Address Nation- No. of NIC (Passport No. if foreigner)
ality shares
Members
SHAHZAD Y-26 STREET | PAKISTAN| 10,000
MALIK NO 13, DHA 3 210]L|9)2|95[4)Li517
LAHORE
-| NADEEM HOUSE NO. 75! PAKISTAN| 10,000
MALIK KHAYABAN-
E-SHAHEEN, :
PHASE VI, 4 310(1]816 5\_6 419179
DHA
KARACHIL
NAJEEB PLOT NO. 321, | PAKISTAN] 10,000
MALIK BLOCK-K, '
PHASE-1, 3 210131088 7]8(|7|3
LAHORE
CANTT
29
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Debenture
holders

*#*+Jse separate sheet, if necessary™**

21.  Transfer of shares (debentures) since last Form A was made

Name of Transferor Name of Transferee Number of shares transferred Date of registration of transfer
Members | ' o '

Debenture holders

**%1Jge separate sheet, if necessary™***

22. | certify thai this return and the accompanying statements state the facts correctly and completely as on the date upto which
this Form-A is mads

Date | [ 30 o6 | 18 | | Signature
' Designation (Please tick) Chief Executive/Secretary

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILLING FORM-A

l. The Form shall be made upto the date of last AGM of the Company or the last date of the
year where no AGM is held during the year.

2. Under nature of business, please give precisely the specific nature of business in which the
company is engaged.

3. Under S. No.20 above, the aggregate number of shares held by each member should be
stated, and the aggregates must be added up so as to agree with the number of shares stated
against NO. 11.°

4, When the shares are of different classes the columns should be subdivided so that the
number of each class held, or transferred, is shown separately against S. Nos. 10,11,20 and
21.

5. If the space provided in the Form is insufficient, the required particulars should be listed in

a separate statement attached to this return which should be similarly certified and signed.
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The return and any statement attached hereto shall be signed by the chief executive or the
secretary.

In case a body corporate i3 a member, NIC number may be omitted to be given.

In case of foreign nationals, indicate “passport number” in the space provided for “NIC
No.” Pakistani nationals will only indicate “NIC NO.”

This form is to be fifed within 30 days (45 days in case of listed company) of the date
indicated in S.No.3 above.
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MASTER IIYDRO {PRIVATE} LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.2 Management profiles and CV

Brief Profiles and Curriculum Vitae of applicant’s key management, as required pursuant to
Regulation 3(5)(b) & Regulation 3(5)(c) of the Licensing Regulations attached herewith.
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Management Credentials”

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

+ NADEEM MALIK — DIRECTOR

Mr. Nadeem Malik has been asscciated with the Group for the past 25 years and is 2 director and major
stakeholder in the companies comptising the Master Group. He speatheaded the Group’s expansion into
the automotive sector, and is curreatly Managing Director of Procon Engineering (Private) Limited and
Master Motor Corporation (Private) Limited. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
from the University of Southern California.

Professional Experience

Mr. Nadeem Malik specializes in and has extensive experience in the Automotive Industry and has been
successfully running his business over a period spanning over 2 decades. He is cutrently managing director
of Procon Enginceting (Pvt) Ltd and Master Motor Corporation along with holding directorship in the
Master Group companies in Pakistan as detailed below:

o PROCON ENGINEERING (PVT) LTD — Managing Director :
The year 1988 saw the foundation of PROCON ENGINEERING (PVT) LTD which rapidly grew to be

a totally self-reliant composite manufacturing facility, with strength of over 250 engineers and technical
staff. Since then PROCON ENGINEERING (PVT) LTD has always been at the forefront as an integral
player in the industrialization of Pakistan. PROCON ENGINEERING (PVT) LTD is involved in the
manufacture and supply of the following items:

» Al type of automobile seats

® Sports car seats for export

* Door trims (molded & flat type)
e Roof headlining {(molded, suspended & perforated types)
» Steering wheels

& Rear package tray

e Sun visors

¢ Fender liner

* Hnpine under cover

*  Armrests

* Floot mats

o MASTER MOTOR CORPORATION ~ Managing Ditector

Master Motor Corporation has state-of-the-art technology at its newly built plant at Bin Qasim, Karachi.
Master Motor Corporation is introducing 4.5 Ton, 3.5 Ton and 2 Ton light duty truck and medium size
buses to be followed by a variety of models including medium and heavy duty trucks and large buses.

DIRECTOR

e Master Foam (Pvt) Ltd, Mirpur (Azad Kashmir)
o Dura Industries {Pvt) Ltd, Mitpur (Azad Kashmir)
s Master Polymer Industries (Pvt) Ltd.

* Dura Foam (Pvt) Ltd

e  Master Entetprises (Pvi) Lid, Karachi

o  Master Textile Mills Ltd, Lahore

e Master Celeste (Pvt) Ltd, Lahore

e Procon Engineering (Pvt) Ltd

e Master Motorcycles (Pvt) Lid

»  Master Motor Corporation Lid

o
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Management Credenizals

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

&  Master Tractors (Pvt) Ltd
s Media Flow (Pvi) Litd

o  Master Tex Lid

»  Master Wind Energy Ltd

Education
o (O’ Level from Cambridge University in 1979.

e Buchelor of Business Management from University of Southern California, LOS
Angeles, U.S.A. in 1983,

NAJEEB MALIK — DIRECTOR

Mr. Najeeb Malik has been associated with the Group for over twenty years. He was the driving force
behind Master Group’s diversification into the textile sector, and is currently Managing Director of Master
Textile Mills Limited. He is also a major stakeholder and director of the other Master Group Companies.
Mt. Najeeb Malik holds an engineering degree from University of Southern California.

Professional Experience

Mpr. Najeeb Malik specializes in textile industry and has been successfully running his business for the last
2 decades. He is currently managing director of Mastet Textile Mills Ltd along with holding directosship
in the Master Group companies in Pakistan as detailed below:

o MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED — Managing Director

MTML was incorporated on February 13, 1992 as a private limited company under the Companies
Ourdinance, 1984 and was subsequently converted into a public limited company in 1992, MTML is a fully
vertically integrated facility, with spinning, weaving, dyeing and garment divisions. It is one of the go-to
choices manufacturing choices for international brands.

o DIRECTOR:

s  Master Foam (Pvt) Ltd, Mirpur (Azad Kashsmiz),
» Dura Industies (Pvt) Ltd, Mirpur (Azad Kashmir)
o DMaster Polymer Industries Lid

¢  Dura Foam (Pvt) Ltd

o Master Enterprises (Pvt) Ltd, Karachi

» Master Textile Mills Ltd, Lahore

e Master Celeste (Pvt) Lid, Lahore

* Procon Engineering (Pvt) Lid

»  Master Motorcycles (Pvt) Ltd

e Master Motot Corporation (Pvt) Ltd

* Master Tractors (Pvt) Ltd

o Media Flow (Pvt} Ltd

¢ Master Tex Ltd

¢  Master Wind Energy Ltd

Education
o  Master’s degree in Fngineering from University of Southern California, USA.
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Management Credentials

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

% SHAHZAD MALIK — DIRECTOR

M. Shahzad Malik, a young and entetprising businessman, started his career at Master Group in the core,
foam products business. Since taking over, he has revamped the entire product line, expanded beyond
Pakistan and updated the look of the Master brand to reflect the modern era. He is also the driving force
behind a new foam production facility (2015) at Raiwind, and the inanguration of the Matina Home store
in Lahore. Recognising the potential of the wind powet sector in Pakistan, Mr. Malik spearheaded Master
Group’s investment in Master Wind Enetgy Litnited, and is responsible for the management of the MWEL
project. As Managing Director, he favours a hand-on approach, which has given him extensive experience
and insight into all aspects of wind power projects, from the pre-financial close process of financing,
selection of EPC contractors and negotiating the project agreements, to the construction phase of
coordinating on the ground activities,

Professional Experience
© Jan 2011 — Present Managing Director Dura Industries (Pvt.) Ltd., Master Wind Energy Lid.
and Master Green Energy Ltd.

Education
o 2010 —-2011 Masters in Business Administration, Bentley Universities, USA
o 2007 - 2011 Bachelots of Science (Finance), Bentley Universities, USA
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE)} LIMITED
Management Credentials

MANAGEMENT PROFILE

» RUMMAN ARSHAD DAR — CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Mt Rumimnan A. Dar has over 12 years of expetience in Corporate Finance, Financial Advisory and
Iavestment Banking, with patticular expertise in Structured Project Finance, Debt Advisory, Contract
Negotiation and Project Development & Implerentation. Prior to joining Master Group, he was a Partnet
at Bridge Factor (boutique financial advisoty firm) where he oversaw the firm’s power sector clients. In
this role, his responsibilities included atrangement of financing and overall project development &
implementation (tatiffing, concession agreement finalisation, EPC and O&M contract finalisation, etc).
He has been involved in the wind industry of Pakistan since it’s inception, and contributed to the
successful financial close and implementation of numerous wind power projects, including FFC Energy
Ltd., Foundation Wind Energy, Sapphire Wind Power Company Ltd., Gul Ahmed Wind Power Ltd. and
Master Wind Energy Ltd. Before Bridge Factor, Mr, Dar worked as Director Finance at Cleantech, a local
impott and distribution company.

Professional Experience

o Jul 2015 — Present Chief Operating Officer, Master Group Energy Division
© Dec 2008 — Jun 2015 Partner, Bridge Factor

o Mar 2003 — Nov 2008  Director Finance & Accounts, Cleantech (Pvt.) Ltd.

0 Oct 2006 — Oct 2009 Director Comcept (Pvt.) Ltd.

Education
o Dec 2007 & Aug 2008 Cleared Level I & II, Chartered Financial Analyst Program
(CFA Institute, USA)
o Jan 2007 MBA Finance, Bahtia University, Pakistan

% SYED SHAHZAD ALI — SENIOR PROJECT MANAGER

Syed Shahzad Ali has over 10 years of experience in the field of Blectrical Engineering, Hle has been a part
of several reputable organisations, with varied responsibilities including project management, engineering,
technical support and maintenance. Prior to joining Master Wind Energy Ltd., Mr, Ali worked as Project
Manager and Electrical Engineer at Al Ajjaj Ltd. Co., a leading electro-mechanical engineeting company
based in Qatar, where he successfully managed the electrical engineering of the firms numerous
development projects, including power generation and transmission. He was responsible for supervising
the on-site electrical works of the Master Wind Energy Limited and wotked closely with the EPC
conteactor’s electtical team to ensure smooth development activides. Currently, he is the Senior Plant
Manager for the Master Wind Energy Limited plant and ensures smooth operations.

Professional Experience

o Nov 2014 — Present Senior Project Manager, Master Group Energy Division

o Aug 2010 — May 2014  Project Manager/Senior Electrical Engineer, Al Ajjaj Ltd. Co. (Qatar)
o Aug 2008 - Jul 2010 Seniot Engineer, Areva T&D (Pvt.) Ltd. Formerly ALSTOM (Pakistan)
o Nov 2007 ~Jul 2008 Electrical Engineer, Al Ajjaj Ltd. Co. (Qatar)

© Oct 2006 — Oct 2007  Assistant Manager Electrical

Education
o 2005 Bachelor Tech. (Electrical) (Mehran University of Engineeting and
Technology)
o 1999 D.AE. (R, TV and Electronics) (Sindh Board of Technical Education,
Karachs)
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Management Credentials

MANAGEMENT PROFILE

IMRAT AAMIR FAYYAZ — MANAGER, NEW BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Ms. lmrat Aamir Fayyaz is an engineeting graduate from Cambridge University. She specialized in
mechanical engineesing, with a particular focus on renewable energy generation technologies, For the
past two years, she has been employed at Master Group’s Energy Division and has worked closes with
the EPC contractor, technical consultants and Original Equipment Manufacturer to ensutre smooth and
timely installation of all mechanical equipment at our plant. She is currently coordinating development
activities for Master Green Energy Limited.

Professional Experience

o Sep 2015 — Present Manager New Business Developtent, Master Group Enexrgy Division
Education

o 2014 - 2015 Mastets in Engineeting (Mechanical) - Cambridge University

o 2011 -2014 Bachelors in Engineeting (Mechanical) - Cambridge University

o 2009 — 2011 Cambtidge International A Levels

KHALID USMAN —~MANAGER, FINANCE

Mz, Khalid Usman is ACA (VAT Expertienced Professional), who wotked with Deloitte and performed
different assignments including external Audits, Internal Audits, Internal Control Reviews and
Compilation of standatrd Operating Procedutes, He also worked with Multinationals, Listed Companies,
Deloitte International Clients, Body Cotporate, Government Agencies and Private Corporation. Further,
he worked for Sitara Chemical Industties Limited and Nishat Chunian as Manager Acconnts. Currently,
working as Finance Manager at Master Wind Energy Limited.

Professional Experience

o Apr 2015 — Present Finance Manager , Master Wind Energy Limited

o Jan 2014 —Mar 2015 Manager Accounts, Nishat Chunian Limited

o June 2013 — Jan 2014 Senior Deputy Manager Internal Audit, Sitara Chemical Industries Limited

o June 2009 — May 2013 Senior Supervisor Audit and Business Advisory Services, M. Yousaf Adil
Saleem & CO., Lahore { A member firm of Delloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Limited)

Education

o 2012 — 2013 Chartered Accountant (ACA) — Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan

o 2007 — 2011 Bachelors of Arts — University of Punjab , Lahore

o 2005 —2006 FSC Pre- Engineering — Board of Intermediate and Secondary Education,
Lahore

o 2002- 2003 Matriculation — Cathedral High School, Lahore
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.3 Evidence of Applicant’s technical and financial strength

Evidence of Applicant’s technical and financial strength attached herewith as required pur-
suant to Regulation 3(5)(d) of the Licensing Regulations.
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.3.1 Financial Strength of Sponsors

‘The Applicant is sponsored by Master Group of Industries, one of the most dynamic and
diverse business groups in Pakistan. The Group started its operations by entering into
the bedding industry in 1963 as a licensee of Bayer A.G. (Germany) to manufacture foam
mattresses and became a pioneer in the bedding industry. Today, Master Group has a strong
asset base of over US$440 million and an annually increasing group turnover of more than
US$400 million. The Group is not only the leading player in the bedding market, but has
also diversified over the period into the textile, automobile, engineering and energy sectors.
The overall financial strength of Master group is summarised by the graphs below.

Most recent financial statements of Master Textile Mills Limited, Procon Engineering and
Master Wind Energy Limited are also provided as further evidence of the Sponsor’s financial
strength and ability to take on equity investment in the Project.

Growing Asset Base Increasing Revenues
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The sponsor’s first venture in the power sector, the 52.8 MW Master Wind Energy Limited
project, achieved financial close in March 2015 and commenced commercial operations in
October 2016. Master Group has gained invaluable experience during the development and
construction of our first wind power project and are positioned to deploy the experience for

development of the project.
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.3.2 Audited Financial Statements of Master Textile Mills Limited
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Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Grant Thornton

An instinct for growth $30s1 Rosd, Cabore 54060,
Pakistarn.
T +92 42 37423:621-23, 37422 987.88
F+92Z 42 37425 485
www.gtpak.com

AUDITOR'S REPQRT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Master Texiile Mills Limited (“the Company”) as at June 30,
2047 and the related. profit and legs account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow staternent an¢
statemant of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we
state that, we have obtained all the information and explanations which, te the best of qur knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes.of our audif,

It is the responsibilify of the Gompany's management to establish and maintain a system: of jnternal control,
and prepare and present the above sald statements in confarmity with the approved accounting standards and
the. requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Our responsibility is lo express an opinion on these
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicabla in Pakistan. These standards
require that we plan and perfarm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said
statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supparting the amounts and disclosures in the above said stalements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaiuating the overall
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that eur audit provides & reasonable basis for our
opinfon and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) as referred in note 4.21 to the accompanying financiat statements, during the year, the Company has
adopted TR 32 Issued by [CAP prospectively and has ciassified long term foans cbtained from its sponsors
amotnting to Rs. 558,537,824 as aquity. However, the Company has not restated its financial statements
as required by such TR and approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Had pror year
financial statements been restated, opeaing equity would have been increased by Rs. 830,597 846;

{by i our apinion, proper books of ascount have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Ordinance, 1884:
{5} In our cpinion:

(i} the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with tha notes thereon, axcept for the matter
stated in paragraph (a) above, have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Crdinance,
1884, and are in agreerment with the boaks of account and are further in accordance with accounting
policies cansistently applied except as stated in note 4.21 with-which we concur;

i} the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

i) the business conducted, invesiments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in
accordance with the objects of the Company,

(d) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
tne effect of matter stated in paragragh (a) above the balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with fhe notes
forming part thereaf, conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the
information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1884, in the manner so required and respectively give
a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2017 and of the profit, total
gomprehensive Income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

{e) in our vpinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980,

_ A
%ﬁ%ﬁz ’%‘%@Dﬁ ’{%ﬁ'@%f bt e
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: imran Afzal

Lahore
Dated: October 09, 2017

£hartered Accountants
tiember of Grant Thornion international Lid

Qfficas 1y Karachi & Islarmabad 41
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Balance sheet

Rquify and lizbitities

Equily
Share gapital and reserves
Autherized capilal

As at June 30, 2017

50,000,000 (2016: 50,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 500,000,000 500,000,000
lssuod, subscribsd and paid-up capital g 316,002,930 288,850,000
Carvertiis loan 6 B 301,528,300
Loans fzam directors 7 558,537,824 -
Raserves 8 1,724,845 821 3,032,503,549
Total equity 4,569,344 576 3,618,862,849
Liabifities

Nowr-cugrent

£ong term finanging 9 1,080,135.734 528,303,696
Loans from directors 10 . . 830,097 846
Deterred liability 14 426,580 548,161
Totai non-current liabilities ) 1,090,562,314 1,457,747,503
Current

Trade and othar payablas 12 1,996 246,771 1,970,952,753
Mark-up accrued on lpans 62,672,805 36,666,586
Loans frarm dirsctors 13 168,505,942 -
Short ferm barrowings 14 3,858,152,418 2,85t.0974,784
Cyrrent gorliory of long term. francing 15 138,542,716 85,564,224
Total currént liabilities 8,224,119,649 5,045,063,324
Total liabilitios 7,314,681,563 6,502,810,027
Totalk equity and liabilitios 11,914,018, 538 10,422,603 676
Contingenclies and commitments 16

Agsits

Non-cuerent

Proporty, plant and equipment 17 4,665,779,824 3,475,588,185
Inlzngible sasels 18 20,689,558 26,351,694
Long term deposits 2,484,821 2,601,623
Invesimenl in subsidiary 19 260,000,000 250,000,000
Investmernt in associate 20 508,048,000 506,044,000
Total non-current assets 5,445,382,206 4,780,782,702
Curfent

Slores, spare paris and jooge ools 21 92,420,844 102,382,026
Stogk-in-ftade 2 3,734,580,851 2,301,043,507
Trade detis 23 705,800,101 809,085,405
Loans and advances 2 375,701,132 646,302,269
Prepdymants and other recaivables 25 13,020,007 18,189,920
Tax rafunds due from government 26 1,481,791,294 1,069,312,629
Ghoet term. navesiment 27 30,000,060 30,000,000
Cash and bank belances 25 35,862,173 94,768,128
Tolal current assets B,468,558,332 5,361,903,9?4
Tofa) assets 11,914,038,538 10,122,693,576

The annexed nolss 1 [o 43 form an integral part of these finencial statements.

LR,

NRVARS =4

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CFFICER
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Profit-and loss account
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Sales 29 10,202,640,823 B,149,735,148
Cost of sales _ 30 (4,838,794,882)  (B,037,404,386)
Gross profit ' 1,363,846,741 1,412.930,762
Distribution cost #H (495,079,749} {383,941,009)
Administrative axpenses 3z {212,410,703} (196,897,636)
Other expenses. 3z (20,248,100) (22,330,098)
Othar incemg o . a4 46,115,839 . M.g44.108
Dperating profit 692,122,828 621,406,245
Fitfance cost 35 (271,186,926} {211,628,678)
Profit befars tax 420,935,802 308,776,589
Taxaiion _ N R T (66,375,845)
Profit after taxation ' ' 420,935,902 253,400,724

The annexed notes 1 fo 43 form an integral part of these financial stafements.
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Statement of comprehensive i income
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Profit after taxation 420,935,902 253,400,724

Other comprehensive income-for the year

itams that will nof be:reclassified to profit or loss - -

items that may be reclassified subsequently fo profit or loss - o -

Gther comprehensive Income for the year . .
Total comprefiensive income fortheyear 420,835,502 - 253,400,724

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an Infegral part of these financial stalemens.
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

(Cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activities

lior the year ended June 30, 2017

Prafit for the year before taxation 420,935,902 309,776,569
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 392,519,500 411,102,921
Amortization 5,662,135 890,983
Finance cost 71,188,926 211.628,676
Provisiors for doubffu] delts . ) 5,048,227
Loss/ {Gain) on disposal of property, plant and eguipmant 96,068 {10,818,222)
Profit bofore working capifal changes T 1,000,394,531 827,629,154
{Incroaso)} / decrease in currant assots
Stores, spase parls and loose tocls 9,961,082 6,871,153
Slock-in-trade {933,517,144). (169,265,436)
Trade dapls (85,704,808) 251,480,819
Loans and advances 270,601,137 (103,208,926)
Prepayrents and other receivables 5,179,883 8,707,704
Tax refunds due from goverimant {287,140,502) (211,571,922
Increase / {decrease) in currant labilltes
Trade and other payables 25,234,018 274,325,845
Net chahges in working capita 1975,326,132) 35,218,334
Cash generated from oporatlons 115,066,399 852,045 ABE
Finance coxt paid {245,080,687) {239.938,555)
income taxes paid {164,333, 14} (133:346.947)
Gratuity paid (§18,501% .
Nat cash fused in) ! from operating activitles {205.470,033) 483,562,986
Canh Hows rom invesilng activities
{Napesal proceads from fixed agsels 12,834,527 43,372,283
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {1,095,735,743) (858,468,389)
Lenig e investment made in subsidiary - (250,000,000)
Increase in long term deposits {63,000) - (302,008)

Nat cash used in investing activities

{1,082,864,208)

(1,063,395,112)

Cash flows frem finanecing acvtivitles

Nl proceads of loans obtained from financial institions £16,509,530 F10,887,816
Nat {repayment of) / proceeds of loans from directors. {103,953,880) 236,899,981
Net incresse in shart term borrowings 806,172,634 32,331,129
Net cash from financing activities “4,319,128,284 580,126,926
Mot (decrease) f increase in cash and cash eguivalents {59,205,968) 205,800
Cash 4nd cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 94,768,128 94,472,328
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 36,662,173 94,768,128
The annexed notes 1 lo 43 form an infegral part of these financial statements.
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS L!Ml'l'l'ED ]
Staternent of changes in equity i i
For the year ended June 30, 2017

A :} 4 o E Faf+D+E [c3 HeA¥BFF+ G

Balance atJuly 04, 2015 2BEB60.000 301,529,000 150360507  4RDO0DUL0  L138,T42B18  B7TSI0REIS - 3386442128
Fratit Tos taa year “ - - 253,400,724 | 2s3400,724 | - 258,400,724
Oibgr comprofieisiveg Income for the ygar | A - - - - - X " -

Total eornproliensive ncome fof e year e . ] - - Z53A00, 724 259,400,724 . 954,400,724
Balance al Joge 30, 2018 J85,06D,000 801,529,000 150360507 ASO00D000  2,002143,04%  BOG2,508548 . < SH19.E830%0
Jéslranco of shares dusi“ng ihe year ) 30,132,030 | (301,525,300}, 274,376,370 - . 274,376,370 ’ .

Brilit for the yosr 20,1890% | 420,935,902 420,935,902
Qlliar comprihensive incomia for lhe year - - » | - - - .

‘T'otal cermprobensive Ineomi for he yoar 10,452,930 {304,529,300F 274,378,370 - 420,935,902 G9%,342,272 - 320,235,902
Ractssification of Sponsor Loan { - 1 - | -] ] -] - | ssasarsad | semsavess]
Balanca at June 30, 2017 16,603,800 . RALTIETT 400000000 Z0VL0TE044  BIIAMISHIN B4AEITA24  4,595.486,675

The annoxed notes 1 lo 43 Jormr an lntegraf part of these Anancial slaterments;
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

1 LEGAL STATUS AMD NATURE OF BUSINESS
Masber Tesale Mills l.i.miu;d ( the "Company™ } was incorporated in Pakistin on Febraary 13, 1992 asa private Gmined compdny under
the Companies Ordinance, 1954, Subsequently on Ootaber 25, 1992, it was converted intiy 2 public. limited compang. Thi Company it
principily eogaged in s facising and tading of yam, greige clath, dyed Rbrie, denim fabac and witchicd garments, The registersd

office wid Faetory of the Company ore sinssted at Dazs Road, OF Raiwind Manga Mandi Road, Diste, Kasur, Pakisron.

F BASIS BY PREPARATION

t Separate financlal-statements

These unenmsolidated financial-statements ace the separare financial smements of the Cornpany in which investment in subsidincy
is sccovmniegd focon the Basis of direct equiry interest rther than. o (e bagis of reported resules and net assers of rhe inveates.
Consolidated finaacial staterments of the Company are prepardd and preséated: sepasitely.

The Gomgiany last follwing long teem invegtment:
) 201t 2018

(Diraer holding peeenkg)

Subgidiary Conpany-
aster Pawer (Privaze) Limited G0 160

21 Statement of complianse .
These Dianciol satentents have been prepared o accoatance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Appraved acoounting standasds comprise of such Tmiernguonal Financisl Reposting Standards (TFRSs) issaed by die Interaational
Aggoundng Stundards Board ag are notifed under the Comgunies Oedivanse, 1984, provisions ol and dirgetives issued ander the
Coshypanies Crdinance, 1984 and Tslarmie Financhl Aceotnting Srandards (FFASH) dssued by Insdme: of Clirered Accountons of
Pakistan. In case seyuitements differ, theprovisions or diseetives of the Sompandes Ordinanee, 1984 shall prevail

23 Standards, amendmants or interpretations thal became effective during the ydar

Thy Cosnpaiy s sdepred following new standinds and amendments e published standards which beeame effective duriag ke
CUSLET Tl

Standard or irterprotation EHective Date
L&8 1 Presenrativn of Fissncial Stements - Disclosure Initaove (Amcndment) 1-4un-16
1A% 16 Property, Plantand Buipoment and TAS 38 Frtangible Assets- Clasifivating uf 1-Jag-16
Acceptabile Methods of Deprecidtion mnd Amorimtion (Amendmese)

T8RS 1 Cansoiidated Financial Seuements, IFRS 12 Disclosue: of Intereses in Othes 1-jan-16

lintities and 1AS 28 Tnvestment in Assechies — Tovestnent Datdes: Applying the
Consolidaion Excepion {Amerdmind)

LAS 16 Property, Phnt and Fopipmenr and IA% 41 Apseuthine » Agricultuze: Brares
Plinzs {Armeamdmzad)

Annut Imprevements to THRSy 2012 - 2044 Cyele l-han-16

“The adupricn of above ameatments w FAS and HYRS did not have sey siynificant effvet on these Bnanaial statementy exeept few
addlirionnl diseloserss.

L-joan-1G

24 Standazds that are net yet effoctive

The fullowing stndards and amendmens with respect to the approved sccounting standards ai applenble i Pakistan woold be
offective Tram the dures mengoned beluw againat the respective stuadind or inepretaton;

Standard Effeglive Data

(FRE 2 Share-brsed Papment ~ Chssificadon and Measutement of Share-based

Pagonene Transsctions {(mendments) V-8
1FRE 9 Financial Instoomedss (3014F and consequent amendments ko IFRS 4 1-Jan-18
{ostrance Contacty

1RRS 10 Consolidated Finuscial Smeemenes, IFRS 12 Disclosurs of Intwrests in Other Mot yer Bralized
iTatides and [AG 28 Invesimen: in Associates aod |uint Ventores - Trvestwent :
Intities: Applying the Conwelidation Bycepdon {Amendmenty)

IFERY 5 Revenue from Contrcts with (asomers T-Jan-18
1487 Financial Instnuments: Disclosvres - Pisclovury Initarive (Amendment) 1 Jan-17
{A%12 Income Taxes - Recognition of Thelerred Fax Assets for Unvealized Logses 1-}an-17
{RRIC 22 Foreggn Curzency Transactions and Advance Consideraion 1-Jan-18
PERIC 23 Uncertainty Gver Tocome Tas Trealment {-Jan-19
IFRS 12 Annust Improvements to [FRS 2014-20106: 1-Jan1?
{FRS 1 and LAS 25 - Annual Improvements ke IFREs 20142016 1-Jan-18
1A% 40 Teanslers of Tnvismmant Propesey fAmendments m 1A 45 1-Jan-18

Similuely, eecently Companies Ordinunce, 1984 has been sepealed through inclusion of die Companies Aet 2017, New disclosuee
cequiremens ekating 1o this Act woukd be spplicable fom fune 04, 2007,

“The Company is in process of assessing impact of these smendments g the published sandands, interpseearines and Companies
At 2017 v the Bnancial satemenrs of Ui Company.
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MASTER TEXTILE BILLS Li'M['TED"__ -
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

25

18

by

Standards, amendments and isterpretations fo the pubkahed standards that are fiol yef iotified by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakletan {SECP)

In additien w the ssove, following standurds have beer issued by EASE which. are yet t be notified by the SECP tor purpose of
apphcabihity i Pakistan;

Standard Effactive Data

RS 14 Regulawry Defrreal Acedunts [ahuaey 1, 2016
IFRS 16 Lanses Jangary 1, 2004
LERS 17 Insurance Contmets oy 1, 2021

Accounting convention
Thesit Grisneil watements have been prepared undgr the Ristoriéal cost convention except as stated in requited Standands:
Functionatand preseriatiod cuirancy.

There Stinehl wuements-aee presenced in Pak Rupees whith is the Company's funatianal and preseniation susensy. Al Rsancial
information preserted fo Pak Rapees lus Boes: rounded m the searest Rupee unless ntherwise stateds

3 ACCOURNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS.

"The prepasation of Snaociil smesmenty in conformity with upproved accounting standards requires the wie of cenn eritica)
wecounting estimates, Tt alse foquires the manayCmeist tw cxpreise s fudgment in the process of appling dhe Company's
aceeunting, policies, Badmates and fodgments afe contnually vvabiated and. aze based on hiviodicsl espesionce, inclading
expectation of famre events that are edicrved to be sersomable undes the circomstances. The areas where vasfous assunptions and
fimates aee sigrafieant g the Company's fnoneiad stwements: ox wheee udgments wese exercised in applienion of sccounting
policionare discussed belows

~assusmptions and-estimanes used in deteomining the scoverable smount; residloal values ang useful lives of property, plant and
eyuiphent;

-assumpcns and estimaey used i writing down ienis of stoek in-gode.1o-thelr net realizable valoe;,.

-pssumptiens and extinates used in calkeulating the provision frimpaitinent for wade debrs;

‘assuepptions wnd estitmates wsed in the recognition of mcome rxes; and

mswarnprions and estimates used o disclosure and assessmient OF provision for contingencivs:

g

4 SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTIHG POLICIES.

4.4

4.2

staft retlrement basefits

Tie Compaoy opsraiey an apprased fanded provident fund scheme. fie all its peroancot employees who have: cormplesed
atinimon gqualifyingy pesiud of service as.defined under the respeetdve sehema, Toual monthly comebutions are made Borh by the
Compuny and the emplivess ae the e of 8.35% of basto sl ’

Praperty, plant.and equlpment

Oporalling fixed assots

Pyaperty; plant and equipment exeept frechold Jand wre sfared at cos less accumalated deprociation and impatment in value
imcludivg any cwsts: diregly attributabe in bringing. tie assers w0 the lovaticrr and condition necessacy For it fo b capable of
operating in the roanner intended by the Company’s managemeat.

[epreciation i shared to income spplying the reducing balwoce merhod over the esrimated usefuf life ar the cates specilicd in
praperty, plane and equipment aote 16.1.

Drepreciadon on addiions is chasged -frent the dae in which the propeety, plant and equiproent is acyuired, capitatived o5 on
cammuneesment ot comemersiel produetion while ne depreciation # chagged from the date hiy which prsperty, plant wd equipment
{s dizgiosed pEfL

The agseis’ residoal values and useful bves arg ceviewid ab each financial year end, and adjusred 4F inpact on depreemtion is
sipgtaficand,

Muinlenance and vormal ropaies st shagged ro Mcome as and when ineurred. Major renewals and improvensems are capiabized
sel the assets sy seplaced, i any, dee retired,

Gaainy or Jows on disposal f property, plnt und equipment is tahen @ profit or losg,

Capital work In progress

Capital work in progeess ie staced ag cose lesy impaisanent, if any. Cost of property; plent and equipment consista of historicat cost,
burrawing costs pesining to fhe erection / constructinn perod and other direetly ateributeble costs of bringiog the sssets w dhalr
witthing condition e for commeticaent of commercial prodweton. All expeoditere connccied with specific ssets inouered
during inwafadon snd constzuction period are carded wadpr eapital work in peogsess. Thuse are wansferred o spevific adsers 15
and when these asseis arg available for use.

SR
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITEDR

Notes to the financial statefnents
For the year ended June 30, 2017
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4,4.

4.4

4.6

At

44

48

4,18

4.1

412

frtangibles
An intangibsle asset 15 an ideni fiable non-moneray wssot without phiysicst subsiance.
Tritamgible assers are recognived when it 3s probable that the expecred (e economic beneties will fow 10 the eatity and the cost

of the sssets van Do measud celisbly. Cost of the intangible asset includes purchase cost and dizectly steibuehle expenses
incidentat 1o bring the asset fs s imended use.

sty sssocinted with malntainiog compiter software dre retoghized ag an expense s and when incurred.

frnanpible assers axe sied sk cost less sccurmalated amordzion and: accumulated impoimuent fosses, i any. Amortization is
ehaeged tver the estimated use ful life.of the asset on a spstomatic basis applying the steaight fine mechod,

Usetul. ees of intangible opecating assets are revieseed, at each balaner sheer date and adjusted if the impact of amordzation is
sgrificane,

Stdres; spara parts and foosa lools

“Tlese are stated: ot lower of MRV and casr iming soving average muthord except goods i trapgit which ars stazed at invoice valoe
phos-athee charges neaered thercor,

Stack indrade

These arg valued ut the lower 0f cost and net realizable value applying the following hasis:

Faw manesal Weighted Avernge

Wik int pracess Averspemannfentring cost

Fhaishes goeds Avernge mannfrcruring cost :
Packing material ‘Weighted Aveeage

Wasie ‘Nat reaBzable value

[aw raderiad o isansit is staied alinvoize prive plug other charges paid thereon up to the balanee Sheer date.

Avtzage manufacturing cost in sehstion o wodk in progess and fnished goads consises of dircet matedal, liboar god 4 propaction
af manufacruring tverheads based on aorowl capacity.

et sealizahle vakse signifies the esdmated selling price in the odinary eourve of business tess esthmated costs of completion asnel
caturmiad costs aecessary 1o asike the sake.

Invasimanis

Tavestrents which conld nbtbe classibied as huld v (esding or held-w-rmaturity are clissified ax avallable for sake These ave stated
at fair vabue and changes s cireying valves are roeognized in equity until investmest i sobd or deremnined w be fopiized af which
nimne the comularive gain or loss previously secogmized in equiry g included in prafit or Joss for the year.

Tavestments in equity jnstrurnents Ut do et have o quated market price ja an sctive market and whoso fie value cannor e
reliabdy messaned ane stated ar eost less gty identified impairment.

Investmontin assoctats

IZtivies i which the Company has significant influence bug not conerol and which ase neither its sebsidiaries por oint verituzes
e associntes. These investments are recognized at cost:

Lowng and ddvances

These are stased ot cost which represents the fair value 6f the consideration less any idenuficd impainment.

Trade debis

Teade debits neiginared by the Comgany ane recognized snd earded ar original Invoice ungunt less allowance for sy uneallectible
nmunte An esthrae for doubtiul debr is made when. collection of the Gill smount is no longer probable. Knowa bag delys are
written off as incuzeed,

Trada and other gayables

{ovedditosrs relating o rade and othes paysbles.are caered 4t eost which is the fir vahu of the considerutian to be pad in fature for
goods aud services reteived, whether or uot billed to the Company.

Mark up bearlng barrowings and borrowling sosts

Ausk up bearing hormwings we reeogaizal. initially at enst, less attributsble tensaction costs. Subsequent to ikitial recognitian,
wark up hearing Borowings are stated at etiginal cost less subsequent repaynsents, whils the differance between the cost (reduced
oo pesiadie papmenty ned cedemprion vade is secognizad in the prolit or loss ovee the perind of bogrowings oo an effective mark
us basis.

Dorrawing costs direcly arribuimble o the acquisition, ceostaction o prodaction of qualifying assets, which are assers that
necessarily take s substntial period of tnw ko get teady fior their intended use oz stle, are added to the <o of hose wseis, anol
such tme ag the assets are ready for their mtentded use or sale.

Fiealgn cyrrencles

Transactions in cucencies other than, Pak Rupees e eecozdid at the rates of exclmige prevailing on the dates of the manscnons,
At each balance shoet date, monetry assers and liabilities that ace deneorated in foreiga curreacies wre rotmnshaed of the sates
prexuifing on the balance sheet date except whers: forward exchange confracty have been entesed i whesein. the rates contoicted
fue ure used,

Ciams s ussey acising on remansklion ace incladed m predit o foss for the year,

4L
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LINITED _ 7 7 _ . |
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

413 [nyestmant Insubsidiagy:
Invesunent in: subssidiary is recogoized at cast, At subsequent zoporung dates, the recoverable ameunt is estimated ra deteerming the
extent of impsirment loss; i€ any, wnd carying amouit of iovestment is sdjusted- acxordingly. Impaioment loss i rectgmined oy
expenst, Where impairment Joss sobsequendy reverss, the carmping amount of investment is Increased m the cevised recoverable
sgnoant bur limiced (o the extent of initial cose of investment. A reversal of impaiment loss is reengnized.in the profit and 1oy
4ccount,

414 Raevenue recogoiilon
Revemuz bs nwasured at the fir value of the consideration received or seceivable and sepresenty amounts eéeivable for goods and:
services prosided:in the sormmd course of busioess,
» Lucat sales are recorded ow dispateh of gaoda 1o custome
- Byport sales are acenuneed: for on shipment basis,
- Riehate ineme is reeognized on acerual bagis,
- Interest incusiw i3 recognized on tine progostion basls.
Tk o s arsing oa sale of innesrments 1 wlen inte invome i the yeie i which iy arise
- Dividend incame ks recognived when tie Company’s deht fo receive payment is essablished,
< Conversiom neome is ecognized whea the serviees are readered,
4,16 Finapglat Instriments
Financlatassets
Fiaicial dsseps are eeenpnized when. the Company busines 2 pany o the contractont provisions of the Bistngial instrument and
nrg measured initnlfy at fuir value adjusted by transnction coss, Subseruent mensuzermant of Angncial assets are described befow.
[irtaneia) assers are dereengoized. when the contcacnial ddghts w the cash fows from the finanieial asser expite, oo when the
Hneisl aszerand all subssan ial sisls aod rewards ase mansfeened.

lFose the paepmse of subsequentiensureenent financial assets of the Company are clasaified o dhe followings:

u} Loans and receivables.

Leans: and receivables are nor-derivative fnanchl sseers with fised o7 detoeminnble payeents shat are act guored i an active
magket, Afrer iniiial cecogrition, these ere. measured ot asmordzed cost using: the effective interest methud, less prowision fur
impaiment. Disesunting is omirted where the effeet of diseounting i immaedel, 'These are ineleded n enerent agsets, except for
matsities for greater than twelve montds affer the balenee sheet date, which: e chssifiod o8 nows-vuirent assefs, Loans and:
recrivables with Jess chan twelve moashs eoaturities ae chissifiog as cureent assets. The Compaey's eash and cush equivalents, eade
debns, advmnces, depositg and other reorivables fall inre- this entegory of Enancial fosurnens, Loans and recefvables aee snbjeet 1o
seviesw Tue fnpmirmens at cack reporting dare ro-ddenuify whetler these is objectve evidenes thar the Hinanciel assef is impaired.

b} Avallablesfor-saie Bnancial assets

Avaiiabile For sole Anancisl agsers arg non-derivatives that are cither desigrated Bt this waitgery or nor clagsified i any of the

categories bf loans and receivables, Anasci assers ac fair valoe througly profit or loss, gid Goeneial gssers held 1o meturiy, They

are inchuades] in nbn-gument assew unless management iacends to dispose of the investmenss withiy twetve monchs from the end of

¥
{
7
H

fepucting period, Availsble- for-yale financial assew ace chapdfed ay short Lesm fovestnents n the badance shegt
After bl secogmicion, available-for-sake neestments are messured. ar fir vabee fn accordance with 1AS 39 “Pinancil
Fnsrments: Reeognition and Mussutement”, Investmenis in eyuity instrument that do not have 1 guoted market price in an
sctive marked and whose Feir value can ot be measuced nulinbly are mensuced ot cost. Galns or Jasses. on availablesfor-sple
investmenis are reeogaized thiough other compreliensive income until the fiveserient s sold or de-recognized, ar which tme the
cumidatve gain or fuss peaviensly repored incloded o profic o lose,
Luvigends on avafibleforale equity imsuruments are recogaized i the profil or foss when ihe Company's right 1o receive
paymens i estbhshed,
.- ) Fituneial asrers ase de-recognized when the sights © reerive cash fowy Fom the assets have expired of bave beca tmanslemed and
she Comprang has transferred substncally all disks and cesvards of swresship,
"The. Compoey astesses ar each balanee sheer doze whether tere i objeative evidence, that a Brancial 2sset o grouy of financit
aisdnes i itnpaired: Y0 uny such eviderice exises for 'avadlable-For-sale’ Branciat assets, the comulative loss is cemoved from equicy and
Frengrdied o profi€ ar loss, Impairment losses recogeied iy profic-or luss on equity instrumenta are not reversed diwough profit |
and foss wecounr.
Flaanctal zbilticy
T Company's Gnaneiat labilities ivelude borrowings and tade dnd other paysbles:
Fanancil tabilides ave messused indtially ar fair valae, less atiibutable transaction costs, Plonacial Gabilives are mieasured
subseyuenty uramuoriized eost using the sffective sntesese method,
Barrowing cows dicectly atizibuteble to the neguisition, constraction sy produciion of qualifying assets. if any, wre wdded to the
ot of thove ussets; undl such dme as the assels ure stbstascilly ready for their inrended vse vr sake: Invesinent income sarned
on the tampoeacy avvestent of specific borrowings, i ang, pending their expenditure on gualifping asset iz deducied from the
Gerrowing costs ¢hgible for capitfizaiion, All sther borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the pesod in which they wee
ncurted.
A finaricial agser and financiad latlity i offset and the ner amounst s reported in the balance shieet of the Compuny has 9 kegal
enforceabls ght 1o et off the mnsaction and also intends eithes te settle o a nee basis or (o realize the nsset and sertle the
Halsliry simuttonzously.
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017
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147

438

4td

420

421

Off-seiting of linanedol instruments

Finanewml assors and labitities are offset and the net amount is separted i the fisnacial statements only when the Company bas
fegally enfbreenble dyhy o offser the recogmized amounts and the Compeny intends either o seitle o s netbasis or to realize die
asset and settlo the labiliy simultaneoasty.

Taxation

Cureent

The sharge for eyrrent taxation @ baged on tazuble income ot the currént rates of mxation after taking Inte 2ccount appiicable tax
redivs, rezutes and extenption available, i any, wod w paid un presurtpdve basis:

Defarrad.

Daoferred tx i provided vsing the balanee shece hubility mediod for oll emporary différeaces st the balanee sheet dare betwien
lay buses o assers and lubifites sad thele eacrying sopunts for Banneiol roporting puminses.

Defercd income tes duset fs recuynized-for al) deduetdble seenprirary diffecences.and. carry forward ofantted rax Tosses, 24y, 10
the exivar that it Ts probable thay weable profiis with e available agninst which such temporaty diffeeences and taxjosses can. be
utilized. Daferred tix Sebities are réengnized for all major tazable femporary diffaences,

Drefzered neome rax assers and fiabilices are mpasured ot the tax raies that are expectsd to apply to thi pedod when the asset i3

realil or the Habiliyy suted, hosed o0 tax cates dhar have been enaeted o subsuntively enacted at the bitance sheer dae.
Urefustedx s churged or eredited w the income statemant, dxcepk in the case of items credited dr chagged ro equity in which case.
it i inetuded in sguity.

Provisions

Provistuns aee recogniesd when the Coinpsay has 9 present legal or congtructive shligation as 1 zcsulr. of past events and iris
probable that out flow of tesources entbadying ebnnmic benefits will he required to sentls the obiigadon sud 2 reliable-estimate of
the amount can be made, However, providons ane spviwed af cach balance sheet date and adjusied to reflect the current Bese
ORI,

€aaly and cash equivalents

Fog the pizpase of cush Now statement, castvang eash equivalents comprise cash in hand and bank balences and other short m
highlp liquid sevestinents that are readily convertible tu known amounts of eish and which are subject 1o ne jnsignificant bsk of
change in vitue,

Jarak

ljaeah @ eassy payments under an .{}mh {Lensty ave recognived as an expense in the itcome stienwnt on 1 stzaight e hasis over
the: Haesh (Lease) e,

Iikerust {ree Joans from direciors (ab discration of Company)

Liarinig the year, doe oy wloption of Technical Relense 32 {IR-32) maued by the lastitoee of Chasrred Accountant of Palistan
{FCARY dawed 23tk famary 3016, such Toans have boen classified as paet of squily, Tese have been messared ab i value.
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

gy xi Pt :
1SSUIED, SUBSCRIBED AND FAID UP GAPITAL

] Aulhorized slare capitat

50,000,000-(2096; 50,000,000) ardinary: sharas of Rs, 10 2ach 500,000,000 500,000,000
82 Issued, sulscrbed and paldup gapilal
30,040,828 (20 18: 27,025,535) ardinary shares of Rs, 10 each fully pald in cash 00,409,200 FTOZ53.350
4,550,464 (2018 1,550.465).ordinary shares of K. 10 esch fully paid for
sngiduration ciher than eash . o _J5,564;650 15,594,850
Totai 315,902,930 285,560,000

63 A5052,953 (2016 25,032,458 or('ihmr_)e sharey are-held by the assocated undurmbtiogs.
COMNVERTIBLE LDAN

This represents sdvance thay is convestible o 3015203 shares at woli discreion of the Curpany, Dudng the: year, the company tigs
ssucdd ondirey shares @ R 100 ench including Re. 80 as premium per share,

LUANS FROM DIRECTORS - UNSECURED

i.oan from, Gueclors [ [aistag pany) £5,537,824

Tolat loans form dlrectors 74 554,537,004 .

74 Iheloans e bnterest free and ace repayable on the discretion of the Campany. Accordingly, the Jaan is sccounted for as eqity in
sevesdars with reftreace under TR 32 fssued by FIAP.

RESERVES

Caphal roserva 84 AL ATT 150,360,607
Roveoue rmsdmag . 5,3483,078,944d 2,002,143,042
Tetal Reservas ) 3.754,815,821 3,032,503,548

81 This reprsents share preminm reserve. Clasing the year, the Company Tas issued shares at premivin @ 30 per shacz amounting o
W, 270370 wallion.

LONG TERM FINAMCING
Fram banklisg companias - steared

Bank Al Hazih Limited

LIE-EQP o0 s0urce Oat0f 11842 M BMK+1% Serp-annually 76,026,950 140,216,175

LTFF Dek0g 443934 M SAPM% Semi-snnuplly 19%,934,000 50,664,000
Pak Brunei livestment Company Limited

LIF-EOF-awn souree Qet-18 150.07 W TR+ Seml-annuasy - 158,068,748

LIFF Ochid 77TM SBPH1% Seml-annually 573,063,000 G749 600
Tho Bank of Purish

LYFF Oct-17 263.966 M EAP+125% Semlannually 248,986,000 269,566,000
MeezanBank Linkted
Dliry. Musbyaricn Jan-18 53.29 M: \ B 5% Sarmf-anrualy 10,687,500 32,062,500
Tatal - fong term financing 1,228,877,480 741,857.920
Current portion of fong {erfi bortowings (138,541, 71¢) 185,584, 2245
Tois! long term portlon 1,090,138, 734 826,303,546

94 These represent long term financing ubstgined from commereint anks. Markup 3 payable on quartedy busis. These Joans are
securcd agsinst regisrered wortgage aver she propesy, plant end egaipment of the Company, fiest pat passe
chasgehypothecaion over currens assees of tha Company and personnl guacantees of the directors, Further, these e abu
serueed. against corporate guuramee givin by M/s MM Tincerprises (Favaiz) Limited (Associated undiriaking) add refstesed
hypatheearion / mongage evet fixed assets amonadag o s, 350 mitlion of M8 MM Enterprises (Prvie) Limted,

LOANS FROM DIRECTORS « UNSRCUREDR
This tepeosenis interst free lnang given o the Company by the direerars.

DEFERFSED LIABILITIES

the Compaay had operated an vafunded geatuity schene wp W January 31, 2003 covering all its employees who had complated
areseribed qualifying pedod of seevice, The unfimded gratuey seheme has been sabsurued by the provident fusd seheme upesared by the
typany foe all eraplovers as defined o e 4L Ths halance of graity payable sepeesents by entitlement of current ermployees ag at
January 3, 20003 aa vedueed by the payments made o emyployees sho hive left the Comgaay ainee then.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

12 TRADE AND QTHER FAYABLES

Credilars. S48, T 575,494,187
Wirabeiy 12t 4122 479,510,424 £16,222.349
Advances fom cusiomers 292194320 308,450,297
Aecryed Fabilitos 96,183,582 18,248,755
fayatle jo Provident Fund Trust 160,520,697 252,002 827
Fayahle o Worers' Profl Parlicipation Fund 30,258,632 16,000,127
FPayable 1o Yeorkers Weifare Fund . 35035202
Ciommission payable 149,130,090 113,231,913
Others i3 - BBsdedTy __ smiete
Tota) 1,998,344,77 1 1.970.682.753
24 These aresesuned agalnst collaterds naenticoed in pote 154,
122 Profic os Murababa investment is in ranige of 6.56% to 7.6 1%.(2016: 3.50% o 8.26% ),
123 These inehsle payables wwards assucinged: underiskings smounting o Rs. 30,585,454 (2016: Ra 20,439,647).

13 LOANS FROM BIRECTORS - UNSECURER )
Loan from direclons { relatad party 16d,606942 2000000 -
Tolat boans form diracloem o ) 134 188,505,842 -
3.5 These loans ace sepayable oo demand by the Direcss. Acensdinglyy the loan i nccnunted fog as Jown it aceondince. witl TR~ 32

sned by TOAD

14 SHOAT TERS BORKOWINGS

Fram bardlng companies - yecwred

States. Bank of Paxislan 1SBP) refinahces 1414143 2,173,300,000 2,404,687.07C
F0n el funning Inatews 144 4 144 262,347,794 174.433,940
£xher short tonn finances ) 4351448 727,084,244 244,055,070
Subtotal S T SYEREELN " 2827,176,988
Overdrawn balaiices Wz O SBATONTY 124,802,798
Totat - ) ’ 3388480498 0551070781
t4 The Gompany has seanged facilities from diffesent Hranchal instipaons, These facilities are secured ggainst pledge /

4.2

143
14.4
14,5

18 GURRENT FORTION OF LONG TERM BORROWINGS

hypesthecation of srocks, lien on confirmed exports and fneal. 1/4 docamems, promissory nots, registeeed morgage over
property, plane and equipment, pacd passe charge na current assets and persuna! guarantees of disectors, Further, rhese are ako
secured againge cprporate guasanles given by /s MM Eoterprives (Privar) Limited {assovisted undertaking) along with segistered
hyputhiecation / morlgage charge over fixed assees of M/s NM Brrerprises (Priviie} Limired amouating to Rs. 350 milfion, These
fiversy paaet o total credit fagififes of Rupers 5,650 millivn {2016; Rupees 4,525 million).

These ovardewn balances have Been wisen on acepunt of chegues issued Juse prior o chie year end, Flowever, constened bunks
stalements shosy fveuruble balances ac the year ende

Mark-up on such fmang 1 in range of 275% 10 3.500% (2016: 3.35% to 3500 4,

Mark-upr 6o such loans i o rnge of 6.49% to 7.98% (2016 7,10% to 8.50% )

welark-up oo soch loans is in mnpe of 657% o 752% (2086 6.9% 1 794 1

S %

Long lerrbonowings _ 2 138,841,716 85464204
Tetal 135,541,118 45,564,224

4iM
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

16 GONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

19.%
iy

i

i)

i}

v)

i)

i)

CONTINGENCIES

A suic is pending before the Civil Judge, Lahore againse Pakistan Cargo (Private} Limited for recovesy of inrf consignment
urrounting ke LS5 36,718 along with costof fands at the rare of 10% pet 1onum sod damayes to the extent of R 20 million
{Z74: LIS 36,718 anyl Ru. 2.0 mitlion}. The Company is expecting a posinve decksion.

A suit i pending before the Civik fudge, Kasur Bled by Umadr Trders. againgt Master Testile Mills Limited: for recovery of advance
paid of R LO3R0 (Fi6: Re 10308797 along with admissible machup, The case Js pending for plantfl evidence, The
mgrageiren is bopelil Tng o Merorablt decision,

A st s pending regaeding the Gas Infrostucer Bevelopment Cess (GIDC ACT 2118} on Gas Bills amounting ta R,
17,937,303/ (306 Rs 117,937,393/ ). ‘This has been- challenged and prosently, the recovery (GG ATT 2013) lias beon seyed
by the Rarachi High Couet. SNCPL Tas wlse filed sppeat agatist such interion order. The Cempeny is eonfident of fasoarble
pateamne and aceordingly, no provision hasbeen made i fiese Fnangial singements,

A it is peoding regracding the Gag Tagff Difference dn (Fay ills, This ke -been challenged. and presently, the eeeovery of Gay Bil
las been staped by the Lahore High Coure, Labore, The Company is confident of favoumble onicome: snd accoedingly, a0
prissision Has bed madis e these Sndncis starements.

The Asswtnnt Commissioner. Inkind Revenue (ACIR} pelized the Company for tae Aling and raised idipugned demand of Re.
2358101/~ This ordee was akw confitned: by the Commissioner Inlaad Revenue Appeals (CIR-AY. The Company being
mayrioved. fom the afresaid Appellate. ordes, ffled 2nd appeal before the Appellaie Fibunal Fikind: Recemae [ATTR). whick is
peraing for hearing The Company is confident of favourable outeoms and accordingy, no peovision has been made in these
Npancial starements.

The Company was selected for Tt Andit 21/5 177 theeegh 2 randons ballat condueied by the FBR for audit of die Tacome Tax
affgirs for the Tux Year 200 Peocoedings wore finlized. by the DCIR, /s 122000/422(5) of the Ondinanee whesel, eeaain
addizions were 1vade which sesulied inte taxable. income of Ry FIZ003,243/- o8 sgaingt the deglared faxable income of Re,
8,546,978/~ thus, ereating additional Impugned demand of Rs. 3,398,976/, The Company. filied. appeal before CIR-A aginet the,
impugned omlersehich s pending for headng, The Company is confident of favoursble pmcome wad accordingly, no provision,
buas been mide inthese: Gnanelal seaements.

Additional Comimissioner Inland Révgnue dnalized progesdings u/s 122(54) for the wid tax pear 2009 consideding the assossment,
u/s 120 to he ernpacous & prajudicil te 1he nenst of evenu ang made certain additions which resulzed inke euable fncoma of
e 424,228/~ The Gumpany filed oppeal befose ATTR, Labere against the imgugued order which is pending for hearing. The
Company is confident ef favourable outcosin: and scoordingly, no provision Tus been made in these finmecial satements.

COMMITHENTS

16.2

# Lalters of cradd for plant ang machinary. - 73,938,332
il Yarah renfals 16.24 19,662,184 31070786
iRy Letary of credit for rew matris! & storsy and spares + 53,257 695
i} Latiors of guarenon 87,230,000 152,1_ 18,000
Total . 186,792,168 310481812
1621 fhuttes lieah payments eisder faratt and the pedod in which these gayments will become due are ag fillows:

Mot latar than ene year 7,910,108 4,766,953

Lalarihan onia year and het latar than v yoars I . 11652020 22.504.834
Folal 14,662,168 34,076,728

&,
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JASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Ror the yeat ended June 30, 2017

otes to the financial statements

417 FROPERTY; FLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Oiperatnyfixod a8Eels 1741 4,265,457 8% 5718, 745,754
CapHat wOmk it pronrEss — " 473 ! 412,323,868 758 535 439
ol i ) 3557788 2975586 185

174 Operaliog tred asknts
Vi

P28

Fragheid ind 13 p30840. . FEYRL LR S - RLIE L

. Tuidig 1,09%,508,089 Tt R EEIE LS LA 520041086 [ERLTAL ‘ o004 BURSTIY

gl d ATHESTY JAATERED  LIIARHL EREisAE  WHR RHSRIN FIERTERaH . iatogeezm  SIEIELSER
psatNRg (2A385L26)

ehivies 16,588,068 13,686451 wmus  Wh §RA9E758 3,024,50 5 53432468 17,500;34%

Db soapent 14,747 557, 1,5Ha18 1589270 0% BANTE [1IR75) B T.346508 1372570

Fugriane snd BB 450455 3,308271 stptont e R 1,488,871 . 13,413,083 15592158

Gonptpss angRCoNIBes: 22,184,104 4,285,380 FrATTECT A 56518 FAZIR S - $8,276,15% 348424

Py popianafy . 4540548 1,348,334 WBAATEE 0% 3324858 716,293 4 3,840,151 R

PATAAN | LIS T 476069, TRIEAGLARE | WAE18E0 T R AZSIARN1E
. _ pratnad) . . jssantel

June 30,2017 ] LiaMas | LI Ta74an LEMRtARE  TILEIRND (3a08,020)  BOREGUAES 42551188

20186

riphoid bk 18E, 835,248 B RESELEP L1 v 83,035,340
{30000

Faeing 1,0 A0 PTY A v B A zappse 10% A5 HB4 55 41.85850% - 12833084 548,565,064

P gty ANBATLIS Al 439450 EANSOTLENL sp8 LAGATHRSHY. 27.090,7H - 2040558420 FARANEE
{4 WA {4 v 278 5045

Yy &35 397 2247550 5T B9 REREFA L] 500557 . 52,520,799 23085.200
FEY AL XAl el r2 200

Lyt cauipitieal 1267248 ATAAGR 14,147 837 4% 54961,583 TELIT4 - 5.398.751 7852300

Furiting wnd Bikgs 52,043,280 19,451874 §1,054958 0% 12508474 ARG - 14,020,192 20.578.26%

Comgtprs wid HLCASSEIE 0474 54 230320 e IALIGE 0% 13,098,340 T A2 580 - 15,531 83 1250057
3200 AR

firEaantbedue] TR AL 1100408 Y45 0% FAFARE 54,583 . pRR A &ATSGTT
. &ty . $12.419)

1.E60.510.575 AERRSEIGL 5.0 A1 ERTTCITRED 05, 0280 < THSLOATAEE | A21hIAEISE
156485125 (55,3380,

e Aliig . LtleaaLy T AT T T T3

aggiides SALINTE
0

-_I’_I Jime 3, 514 5,607.819.874

bl T iechdes Borrowing gost capitatized gmountng 10 K

5. 242 willan, 2016, B3 Ni

172 papragiation oF tho yaar has biso ailguated 48 vndat !

o1 of sal0% st 874,685,504 754,808.261
. Adpleisolve eounshEs a2 15825818 12,200.508
“folat 392,619,600 311, 102903

:
pra
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

172 Capital work in progress

Dponing balanga.

Builaing 101,404,802 29,897,845
Fldankand machinary 655,420,827 275,074,158
) o T 166,438,425 303,772,001
Addirtans during the yoar
Huitding 23,401,483 95,560,376
Pignt and machinery 895,301,825 728316,592
918,703,284 24,505,808
Fransfesrodto eperating flxed asspls:
Building {22:313.070) (25:248,619
Pigrd-and machinéry . H1,170,508,18%) (448258 841y
: {4,203,213,059) {274,608,480
Clasing balanse
Bidlding 32,495,187 107,408,502
Flanl and machinary’ 379,826,471 _ B85,429 Ra7
Total 412,322,668 758,030,424
18 INTANGIBLE ASBETS
Operaiing Ilangitla assals 20,689,568 -25,351.604
Total S 20,808,555 28,351,694
2017

Cemputer sofiwars 4,200,950 - 1,200,000 2% BI00F  38T00 1,200,000 .
ERPDrace- 26478477 " 28,076, 8%7 20% 480,983 6296135 5,786,118 20,635,559.
June 38, 2047 27,675,477 . 24,675,577 : 102,980 6482496 5968118 20,498,565

2016

gt sohwem FE4512

1,200,000 1704512 A 433,000 454,030 892,630- S04, 182
BRI Graz) - 25,881,185 25,881,185 0% . 431,353 431,353 25,449:813
Juns 10, ZOG 1200.600 26475677 AETENTE 433006 B90983  {,323053 25.351,89%

18 IWYESTMENT IN SUESIDIARY

investmard i Master Power (Privale) {Imited

250,000,000

60,000,000

Total

250,000,000

250,000,000

184 This represents e Company's invesiment in wholly owned subsidlary, “Mastes Power (Private) Limied™, "T'he Company balds
1000% (2014: 100%) sharex in the Master Power (Private) Limited. The bronkupr valug per shaee based.on 2udited accounts smounts
to Ry 157390 per shiare (2046: Re-6.23) at June 30, 2017, Twe shores are beld in the nawe of Directors of the Master Power
(Privie) Limired ngarsinated by Magter Texnile Mills Limited (the Pacent Company),

R
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M.‘_\STER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

200 JHVYESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
Kaster Wind Energy Limited 201 E06048,050 508,048,000

Fotal - 506,048,000 505,04 000

201 This represents the Company's investment in the associae company, Master Wind Bnergy Limited. The Company has commos
directorship with: the associnte and holds 18% (2016: 15%) equity I the asseciare, The breakup value pee share based on avdied
sceunnts works out to Re 117075 2056 Rs, 99209 per share) at June 30, 2017, The summrarized Bnancial infoensation of Master
Wind Energy Limited, extracied from its audited Enasseinl smtemends for the year ended 30 June 2017 and Junc 30, 2016, are ay
Tollows;

Assocfate's-Balance sheely

Curniassels 4,274 477,354 BE7, 100.043
Mor-curenl pssag 11,553,856,164 10.536.393.224
Gurmanl Hatilities 2;556,505,000 ¥91,750201
Nurs.current Tabilikies 8,322;1146,539 7 083,176,430
Assotiale's revenue and prifie ”

Ravenia 1,725,823,193 -
Prof befora-taxation for the yoaar 610,290,427 §.243.949

Profit{ {lose) altar taxation for tha year " B02,743,048 {5.216.595)

21 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Siares. 45,163,988 45,580,695
Epars parle 45,059,964 54,470,970
‘| nesa tools 1,308,872 ] 182144
Total ) ) 9420944 0332006

2% BTOUGK N TRADE
Rawt inalierisls 1,215,048,542 910,269,348
Work 1n prociiss LR ] 441,591,002
Finished gacds and wase . 221 1,413,049,284 1,449,183,157
Total ) 3,754, 860,861 2,801 143,507

224 These include gosids in transit amounting to Ts, H002.494 (2016: ke 79,255,386 ).

23 TRADE DEBTS + vonsiderad good

Exprrt - socuted sgainst lotlers of erpsll A 408,267 a70,751,439
Lugal - underured 234 ZE0 406,143 2%,444.93_5

THH430 18,196,824
i a5 Provision for doutful deblg. ] ] (5.391?3251 6,301,524
Tolai . 705,600,101 69 893,408

234 These include Re 38,886357 (2004 Ws. 52,761,686) receivable frem wlared partics Aging of related pardes balances are as
niertinned Belows .

Dura indusiiey Lamited 188,543 4,884,508 16,378,084 13,356,859 )2.842.95% 846426 + 22,782,578
Matler Enterprises {Frivato) Limied . . 4,409,405 1408405 N . A0S 1d0na08

Aeasler Syathebic iPrivale) timited v 37,39 4,034,342 5,121,283 47316 6480342 4787478 15585009

Master Wind Energy [Privase; Limeed . . a B . - LSR8 1583327

MK Caipasaion Private Limted . . * . 348,35 . . 388597
&{?ﬂ L 486,343 2,576,689 1672420 I5.086, 97 33379608 T629.55% L1853 940  52751.6%
A
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the finandial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

w4

25

26

b

2

2%

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Advances - unseaurdd and*éonsidared goad:

iz sugtilions 350,396,000 $08,652,453
o smploysas- spalnst expense 26,305,132 ARLEN Y
' 375,704,122 629,551,353

Letters of cradlL - congded good i ) } - 18,760,919
646,302 289

Tafat o o 376,701,133

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

704,310 3474983

Snart T pregaganants

Insurants claim raceivabie 2,706,264 1352244
Othet recaivables -3 813,475 13,572,748
Tolat ] ) 13,020,837 18190820

264 'l'hixi-nciudt'._a: receivable smounting to s, 'ifﬂ 49,206 {2016 Rs. 1,919,206) uupnsiwd.\virhr Cotlegtor of Cusmms. [rassEEINg [0 nkerim

TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

order for deposit of ot fourth of Gnpugned Gability which was subsequendy decided in faver of the Company.

Adishn income Lk - nal 467,052,613 298,714,350
Sales Tax fofundabla - nal &97,795,087 591,092,648
Spotial dxcisir duty rogevabie 4,718,003 13,644,781
{uly orawback racelvablo. 143,936,775 .
Expon rabilo.racelvable 140,269,828 158,740,852
Tofal i 431,791,284

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
Avadiable for sale {on-quotady
A} ftamra Avenun (Private) Limiod

30,000,000

"4,059,342,628

20,000,090

2,000,000 (2016, 3,G00,000) kily paid ordinary sharas of /s, 10 each

Tatal T T T Sthe00

10,080,000

WA shos eam inestnent is in an un-quoted company and ls-stated af cost,

CASH ANDBANK BALANCES

Gash with banks on:

« curent gecounts 19,542,289 58,884,246
- daposTLaCENNS ] 281 104,465 10,587,428

14,686,749 69,471,660
Gpsh iz band i ) o _ A5,878464 25,208,450
Totak 15,562,173 94,768,128

28 [t ol profit on bank deposits ranges from: 3% 1o 8% (2016 3% 10 5% ) per anoam,

SALES

Expuits. 294 T A90, 226507 7.466,063,613
Lecal 29,2 L2172 1.569,207 844
Waste salgs « local 34,496,451 56,879,504
10,258,845080 9,434.801.074

Loss:  Commission.on axparl sslas 149,019,403 75,644,951
Corimission on local salas . 0,184,034 B.510,67%
154,204,497 82,155,930

Total o ) 10,202,549,823 9.149,735,148

2.0 Trincludes ner foeign currency E):Ehmlgﬁ gain amousting W Rs. §365,063 (2016 Rs, 4312,007).
9.2 Joancludis Indicect expurts amousdng o Rs, 714,608,897 (24014 Rs. 296,515,048,

GifL.
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended June 30, 2017
W0 COST OF SALES

3

Haw mateninl consurnad . 6.240,388,36% 5,204,694.593
Satanee, wages and oler benofils 1,301.275,737 1,653,021 308
e, rates divd 1aves 1.676,172 2224474
Sizing matertal consunssd 77,080,485 §1,775,284
Fuc! and powsr 1,122,064,420 983,938,973
Packiny moaterat consamed 158,600,262 131,247,745
Kinras and spares consumed 220,798,508 242,676,341
Fraigni #fd aehiot 3,168,267 25,315,627
Vahigie sunring and mallonsades 4,987,451 4,273,524
Piitting. and stalionary: 2.“9;“_5 2,441,158
Repals ang mainteriancs 15,336,184 14,142.338
Insiifanies 34,260,400 35,199,597
Sifching and précessing charges 8% 784,119 85,825.638.
Faclgry expansag 23,835444 33722359
Depreciation 17.2 378,645,583 209.696,26%
9,724,602,016 8;130:291.950
Adjustment of wark-n-process ’

Cpering stuck 441,589,002 240,813,860
Clasing stagk [546,564,715} [144,691,002)
(103,573,713} 82,717,147

Adjustment of fisished gonds

Dpening.siock 1,448,183,167 1,484,183,13%

Clyging sloek. 11,913,049,394) {1,448, 183,467)

(464,966,437} 44999,562

Less: Expadkrabata & duty draw back (318,047,284} (45,110,304

Yotal - 8,838,79¢,002 6,797 404,585
W4 Raw material copsmet)

Opening stosi 910,269,343 768,751,072

_hdg; Purchases 5,906,075,662 5346292 865

7.516,345.610 B8,114.463,757

Luss: Closing stk §1,275;946,642) {916.269,348)

JTotal 5,240,398,364 5,204.804,358

oISTRIBUTION COST

Salarias, vopes and other parslis 426,746 04, 114,455
Cogan and arfreght 46,068,420 &1 425,508
Fraignl and forwarding 42,864,484 42 282,148
EXpart axpanses 47,082,828 85,836,459
Toigbhane ard telagrem 890,575 1,681 620
Travnling and conveyanee 34,007 658 2BB14,628
Yehlufie: running and malntonance 494,586 385,121
fnsurance 2,324,462 2,323,495
Postage and couder 9,118,659 25.349,866
Atverfisemont and publicly B,764,449 15,695,804
Others 34,886,832 15,094,585
T_O_h_al 445,079,744, 383,941,609
47
o9
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended June 30, 2017

32 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENHSES

Libial axeculive’s remunsrglion iz - 5,000.000
Salanas and ofber benedils 147,324,048 431,802,974
Pastage and corrraunication 27188 12,144
Vighiches rnning and maintenanca 6,552,817 4,186,391
Teaveling and Gonveysncs 330,304 506,755
frinling and stalianarny 2,353,778 4,528,055
Hopairs and maintandnce 3,R70,265 898,343
Nevws papers snd periodicals 6,350 3488
Algitors® remunaialion. 1,000,000 00,000
Lagatl snd-profassional chirgas 3,258,138 - 1,747,394
Boe:and subysriphen 4,960,502 JH57 830
Adverfisernant 283,916 64,510
Pravision for doubihul cebis - 5,046,247
ifice gxpanses LAu0,659 3,308,281
nsuronce 6,216;389 9,600,701
fjarah remals 7,5)'95;565 7.001.958
Olbers 4,358,134 10,031,322
Dopraglaiion and amortizalign 1t 13,458,061 L5097 543
Total ) T j ] 212,412,703 458,567,605

F29 T represents remaaesarion giveo o the chief exeoutive of the Company.

43 OFHER EXPENSES

‘Warkers' Prafil Paricipation Fund 20,258,082 18,008 127
‘Woriers' Waillarg Furd . 6,321,971

Loys on dispesal of property, pland and squipmant 30,008 -
Fotat ) 20,348,160 22.330.088

34  OTHER INCGME

income from financlal avsatn

Peofilon tank dapasits 140,042 591,363
Incume from assets ofher than financial vesets.

Gairt on dispaea) ol proparty, plant and squipment - 10 816,222
Forelgi curery fanslaton difererens - net 3,942,298 738,241
FRontal incne 4,000,000 198,300
Figversa: of prior veers Workers Welfare Fund 16,033,292 -
Taral ) 46,115,639 ) 11,944,126

4% FINAMCE COBT

Hhdrk-up { profit 0n iong tenn finareing 7,284,884 265,269,481
Ktaricup f prokitan shotf torm bowewdngs ars murabaha 174,263,458 134,260,557
frverost oy provident fong ¥.040,98% 7551958

52,697,547 43,465,900

Bank charges and vinery . . e . - -
Total o 201,485,828 241,628,678

36 TAXATION
364 During the year, 1o carcent ux Nabilng has been reeognized 3 the Company has availed tas crediv ufs 65- 1 of the lncome Tux
Drdinance, 2004, Therefoe, tax reconciliadon has abin aot beeo re-produced in thess Fouscial staements,

362 “The Company has not cecognized s deferred tay asset / Bability becnuse its current year taxable income falls yieler Gnal fix
repime and the Company also.expacts same trend-in fatore lax years as-wall

HIT
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

ar

FINANCIAL INETRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The Company hias exposuees o e following ks S ies use of fnancial instromonts:
- Uredit risk

pndiny risk

Forkee Risk

‘I Bogrd uf Direcons hag ovesall pesponsibilisy for the establishment and aversight of the Cumpany's dsh mansgerment farmework. The
fioard it siso responsible for develaping and mosilaring the Company's dsk management poiicies,

37.1 Greditrisk snd condentratlon of arecit risk

Credit risk represents the acconating loss that would e recogniaed at the reporting dare if coumter pardes failf complewdy w perform 1
el

Cryadic sisk arises principally rom: Wans snd.advaaces, tade debty, deposits, other reeeivables and Hank bulances. Cur of el [fuancial
asgpranf Re 789.647 milion 2016 Rs 758,492 n’nHlDﬂ) the flnancial assers that are subjeck ro credit risk amounted w0 Tes, FP3TE voiltion
{2006 Ra 733,195 million].

The Gumpary moniors. the oredit quality of the Gonngial assets with reference 10-the historical performance of such aseis nid available
exteennl crediv susings:

"The eredit quadity of fmancial assers thar are nescher pakt due: sior smpaired can be ssseysed: By reforence ro. external credit satings OF
histurical infeomation sbour seunemargy- definlt race: ‘Ui table Selos shones the hank bainrlcr.s and. mvi.hlment hield with. sume: sajor
coumperparticsat the balance sheer date.

Goodk Al Fabik Liviied Ats AR FACKRA, 1Ie5 M0 $49.483,260
Alliad. Bank Limhaif AT Al PAGRA 419,758 223,170
Bark A fadaly Liminad Al AR PACRA 4,BR4, 224 Baa9;914
MEH Bonk Llinited ALt RAA PACRA 51,447 11,447
United Sank Limiled A-y LEES GRS ENE800 SOF A48
PASIGzan Baiok Limiled At Ay SRS 1,964,010 7,504 444
Aminzi-Eank Liaterd At v JCEReiE ATF.E1F 418,960
HnBib Malyspalilan Bank Limiled Aw A FAGHA 516,687 3571.958
Huhibs Boek Liemdtac Ao 1w - Ads JCRAWIS 3,304,386 2.084,714
her Bk 6f Pupiab A A BAGRA 357843 oofadT
1Fubai s Bonk Palistaon Lirhed At A JeRAHE 1,068 1,885
RIB-Bank Linidad AvE Ay BAGRA Sib,saa H05,60F
Rak Brurisd investment Qompeny Lintited A A PAGHA - T AGEEOS
Chans Bank W54 - Mut avaitabis R R g9l | H1.990

Totnd ' . ' o 18, 588,715 BY AFT.660

The aging ol teads rEI:CI\"ibléh avthe tcpumng daless

Pasi dde hut ncd inpaired

110-30 days 261,619,833 T 484,518
31 10 150 days 106,698,624 101,442,564
past dus 150 days i 130,818,343 93 674,023

) AT #32,580,073
Mol yetdue 217,883,326 177,314,572
Total ) 706,600,144 509 895,485

974 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Compy will not Be ablii i ineet iy financial obligations as they Gl due, The Cormpany's

apprisach to manging liguidity is 10 ensore a¢ far 25 possiBle to always have sulficient iquidity t mest i labilites when doe. The
Cosmpany's approach o managing liquidity 8 m ensure, w8 feas possible, that it will alwags ive suffickent liquidity w mieer s

ubligatives when due, tnder both tnormal and stressed eonditions, withour ineorring wacceprible losses ov rivking damage ro. the
Compay’s sepaation, The Company vses diffetent methads which assisrs it in mositaring cash flow requirements. Typieally the
Gompany ensuies thar i has safficient cash on dermand 10 mept especied operational expenses for a feasanable pednd, including
the seivicing of financil obligarion.

The follwing aee cantraerwt maturtics of fnancial Habilities as ar 348 June 217

f.ong term finsEncing, 1+, 228,677,450 130, 64,716 4,080,136,734 -
Bharl tarm loans frorn diraalors 168,608,942 160,505,842 -

Shwr! torrn fAnanclng 2,850,162,418 1,888, T62,4%6 - -
Troada and otsec payeblos 1,995,34%,771 7,898,248,7T1 - -
Markup acooued on loans 83,672,805 62,872,804 - -
Tota) T,A14,266,383 4,224,119,649 4,090,138,734 B

HIEL
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended June 30, 2017

The i‘c:llnwmg are contraenual Mmaturities of fna:

1.ong term dpancing
Bhert ferm finanaing
tosns lram diraclors
Yrode-wnd olbier payakleys

Karkugr scciued an losns

aciul labilities a¢ ae 3 June 2016:

711.867.920.
2,581,476, 7H
830,807,648
1,970,982,753
36,566,588

55,864,224,

2,051,070, 789
1,978,952, 753
33,566,586

£25,303,698

a30,897.548

Tokai

3, 502,264,668

5.045.083,324

1.4567,201,342

7.3 Karkel elak

Masker risk is @ eisk ihiat changes in market price, such 22 forgign exclange mmes, inerest rates and cquity prices will effecs the
Crimpany's nanne ok the valte of 1is boldings of financial imstremems.

a} Currency risk

Currency risk is the sak that the Fair value or fafure cash Nows of 1 Grancal instearoents will fuctuate heeause of changes: in forelga

vxghange mtes.

“The Compang is exposed 1 eurrency sk on import of v muterials, srotes, spaces, machingey and expont of goods oxinly denominated
in U5 dollars, The Company's exposure t foareign curmney eisk s a3 follows:

Forslgh geblurslSn

Foreign credilrs neluding foreign eermmisaion pryable-USE

Fou tollowiag significant sxchangs rates bave bean-appied:

Popeas per S0
Avorage rats
Roperding duls rale

3,647,685

104.22
104,00

2,024,074

104.68
10450

As ar year end, had exchange of USD deprecitred o eppregiated sgainst the cureency with all oeher varinbles bekd consrans, the change in

pose tx profis / (oss), maindy as 2 result of forelgn exchunge gain / luss ou tanshation of forign carreney denosin

Boywp been wy flluws:

Eebtors US S
Crodies 3 5

B} Interest rata-risk

Pawerest rarg rizk s the eisk that the valse oF a Hrancial inarromment witl ucroate due g ehanges in the marker interest rates.

514,769

d pryables, would

282408

Al the reporiing date, e variable interest / markup rare profile of the Company's sipatficant interest beasing financiul insrruntents was ag
foliows:

Finansial labllities
l.ong lerm finanecing
Bhatt rem Avaneng
Murabana

T.23% ta T.BE%
GoA4th to T.1%
@,88% kg 7.81%

7.314% ta T.BE%
7.10% 10 B.50%
3,5% 10 B 26%

06,144,450
oHY, 182, BAH
479,519,335

330,045,420
432,469.048
418,222.048

Total

1,565,808,922

1,180,057 667

Flnanelal asasts
Cuubi i3t bank - dupusil accounts

+,80% to 2,75%

1.50% 0 2.75%

104,460

10,587 423

494,480

H).EB7. 423

Tetal’

Financial lizbllities

Ag reposting date, fxed matkop tats profile of the Gompany's significant interest bearing Grancialinstraments was as follows;

Long ierm finaricing 3% 0 L75% 3% 10 7.86% 1,141,363,000 381522 500
ghori term fnanaldg 275% i 1.60% 3.35%. 1 3,5% 2,773,300,800  2,404.687.570
Tolal' 5,915,263,000 2,788 208,579

4T
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MASTER TEXVILE MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial staternents
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Cash Nowrsensitivity anafysis Jor varfable rate instraments

A change of 10f basis points in interess ks a2 the seporduy date wanld have inceeaned / (deeccased) profiv for the yeat by the aimaunts

sizhles renain constank The enalysis i peaformod pi the. same basiz for 2014,

Ag Al Juae 30, 2017

Cash Howssrsitvily -vennble rate financisi fabilifios 15,550,064 {16,666,069)-
As-al June 50, 2016
Ciash fow sunsifivily -variabla.rate finandlal liabiliies. 1.860,577 {11.880.377)

The sensituty analysis prapared & nol pacsssasily ndloative of e offecis gr profifor the yearand asiels. faiiifes of te Conpany.

) Exjuify prica risk

Othes price dek ropterenea the yisk that the falr value.of Futute cash: fows of a finaacia insrument. witl Auciuate begguse of changes in
priarket prices fother than those asising from interest rane dsk of currency cisk), whether those changes ace caused by Rctoes specific fo (e
indiidudl Fnanciel fnsrument o (s fssver, o facrors affecting ol sirmilar financial instraiments wadid in the tarker. The Company is
gxpused 1o exuity prive sk o5 the Company halds investaear i Master Power (Privare) Limired, Master Wind Energy Limited and Al
Hlasrner Averne (Privatd. Sirited. (Mo 18, 19 and RNow: 26 respectively) whosé Tair value o future cushe foses will (uctuaw bogspse of

chinges in faix vahuc: X

w4 ¥ kel inatr

taesels
Trady dabs. - - - - TI,904,438  618,198:824 715,804,430 615,305 854
1eng toms depasiis - - - - 1364003 2,501,623 2,564,829 2,800,023
Shar tenn ihvestmanis. - - 48,000,000 30,600,000 - - 30,000,000 A6.000.000:
Glher racaivabies g - - a 6813472 13,372,143 LR EX BAILIE
Cauh dnd ban, 16,5821 $4768.128 - - - . BEABLATY 4,768,120
Tatal MEHEA1TY 24,758,128 35,400,008 30000000 JIEIINIEE 652371380 788,041,898 757,430,516

fIraneial ¥ab

Lortg lerm financing 4,223,477 460 714,867,920
Shart lsm Ghancing 1,753,882,008 201,476,582
Trace.and aihef payablss 1,985,243,77% 1,570,952,153
Jsriip atcicad 62,672,606 50,568,565
Totgk ) j T IS, ETR, 084 8 546,564.227

318 Fairvatos of finasclal Instrumenta
[t galiee 3 the amount thar would be received pn sale of dn asset or paid an gansfee of a labiily in an orderdy wnsiction
bupween rogrkel participan st the mersurement date, Consequandy, differences cao ardse between.canging values und Falr value
esnmmates. Underlying die definition of fuir vitue 15 the presumption that the Company is » going concer without any imention
requirement to ezl smaterially the scake of its operations o7 w0 ndertake o transaction on sdverse o,
[FRS 13, Taie value Measurements’ requires the Sompany to classify fric valoe mensarements using fir value biorarchy ehat
reiloty the sgnificance of the inputs used n making the momsurements, The faic value hiercchy bas the following Tavels;
Lewed T2 gaosed peices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assers or labitities;

Tevel % iputs uiher than quoced prices inchided within Levet 1 tlat tre absesvable for the sssets or Habilsty, eithes digectly (e a8
pricss) oy indivectly (be, derived from prices); and

Vel 3 inputs Tor the axeets oc Balslity that are nes based on observable macket data (unobrervable inputs).
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MASTER TEXTHLE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

37.61 The following table show the cuepories 28 well 23 cerying ameunls and Pair valoes of fnancid assets according to there
vespeetivis uategery, meludimg their ovels i the Far value hisracchy for fnuncial mstrments measured at fair value. Tt does nor
include fair safue infoenation. for financial assets aut measucedd ar faie vidue 1 he currying amount is magomble spproximaion. of
faur

Juno 38, 2017
Fisaniiul as2e)s mazsured.at {sir

value

Ehod wan unesbned]s - - 10,004,500 B 30,040,008 - . 50,009,000 30008000

Finangial Axsols fot medssaog 31

fainr waiiid: .

Kep-aurinil uasaty.

Lo wim dapealts B 2,804,625 B - 2,464.023 . - - x

Gltrent sfdokd

Trada debivusracin st - ZBR408,14) v - 240,404,143 “ N . .

s and deances . 25305132 . . 15305391 - - B -

Cithef ricivabled - [ RAELTX] . . 4813473 . - N -

©ah i uand bongzes 35,882,477 - - . 45,550 17% . - - .
JE,BEZIT  AABINBETS 20,008,000 + TLTE0TS ] - - 0,006,000 30,080,000

dupé 30, 2016, - - T

Financiaf assels measurdil at [l o

valuy

Shan. pm inpgEimaniy - 30,608,000 - Rl cAee o . - AW 20000000

Finansistagasis not massursd ab-

Faié vaiue

Ren-gurient agsnts:

L luim depusts - 2,801,823 - - 2,601,824 - 5 R

Curreni sssels

Trats dasteunasoursd . 243,424,995 B s 45,444,985 - - . .

Loing und agvakcoes. - 25,148,800 - ' 23,1185 - - . -

{Hivar racEraciss - 15372743 - - 15,372,743 - - N N

£:60 Gra TohR Batansey G4, 750.123 - - - §4, 74,178 > - - ~
S4.748:108 284,738,481 20,000,000 - ADE. 506578 ) v u 0000 3DE60.50

a1.5.2 “Thi: Company dovs nov hold any Gnangial Sability o fair value;

#7.8 GapHal fisk management
The Company's objeciives when aiaging capittl wre wr safeguard the entity’s obility o conrisug as o goisg congern, so that it can
compinug o provide adeguate serards for slareholfers and benefits for ouher smkeholders; sad 10 maintain 3 strong capim! base 1o support
the sesmined developraeat of ies bosiiesses,
The Conwpiy munages ke capikal stwcture which comprises capioal o reserves by manitonag serum oo et assers and imakes
safjustrnenta 1o i s the Lght of changes in economic conditions, 1. eder & mutnmin of jdjusi the capital structure, thy Company my,
adiust the amounr of dividend puid © sharcholders, appeopriatiug of amonis o orpital seseeves aod / or issor new shares,
tibnagatentwinh others in e indugtey, the Ciompary mareges 1t capital bk by moniwodng s debtU levels aod Biguid assets and keeping in
whew fmure Dsvestment requizements and expectations of the shareholders. Dobr is cakeularad 1 roml borrowings {leng wem Wan® and
Sahiez evm bogawing” w shewn in e bulance sheet). "Towl capital tumprises shseholders' exuity as shown in the balange sheet undker
Eshire capiznt sned resecves”.

T'he satient infoemazns relading w capuad sk managerent of the Company as of June 2, 2007 ao 2010 were wr follow
i [3 14 ¥

Tolal berrowings (inchudimg mursbatis) 5,666,240,299 ¥%,809,967,606
Luss: Cash and cush eguivilonty ) ) (24,582,17%) {94.768,128}
Net dobl 5,626,779,126 815,198,588
ot sguy i X o 4.699.355,6?5 ) 3.610,882 By
{olni capital 10,330:134,701 8,435,082,417
Gaadng ratio {3) . ) 54.5¢ . 5709
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MASTER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

U8 RELATED PARTIES CISCLUSURES

Helaned pardies eomprise subsidiary, associates, sssociated undedukings, companies where direemes also hold eerest, directons us the
umplogee, provident fund and key management persunnel of she Company. Transacdens and. balances with related parties other than
semuneration ond benefits to key management poesoniel under the twems of theic employmens are ox follows

Recefrablos from refated partles

e Indusides (Private] Limitsd Assacialed unterisking 18,255,699 35,792,578
M. M. Carparation {Private) Limited. Associated Linderiaking - agazar
Manter Entarprisas (Privaia).Limited: Aszqeistedupceniaking 1,409,40& 1.409,408
Mustgr Synthelic (Privalo) Limiled Assngated undertaking 8,824, 23% 16,585,139
Maister Wind Enesgy (Piveala} Limiled Asgnesled Lndaaking - 15066,22¢
‘Poyakiaio Ralated partics Assoeiated undartaling 30,508,495 20454 64T
Payabiete Provident Pund Wls2m007 259,092 827
Loans fran directary ) 7 B 727,643,786 ) B30,897 648

Totad T ' 67,043,694 1,366,206,805

Transactans with retaled partics ES

Asypriled undertakings Hnla of goods 140,476,439 160,523,438
Assciates undertakings Sula of foachinery 8,078,977 .-
Asgocoiedupdonalungs Purchises 8,073,245 1,760,456
Apsboiated undsrdkings Rantatintome 4,000,006 +
Prndent Fun Contribuion made 102,742,774 82,590,240
Subsidlary . invasinent made - 250,000,000
Tatab o ] 204,139,434 495004, 144

3% REMUNERATION DF CHIBF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Managerial rgmuneration . . . — : _B.600;,000

Tolab . s . BAGL000
No. of porstns s -

39,4 ‘The Chief Execurive € fficer of the Company in 2lso providud with € :;axﬁpqmy mainzained veldele.
A0 PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURER
“The fouing b fremation. is based on Tatest uneaudited fnancial stiements of the Fund:

Sixa of the fond ~ Total gssels .. ...382,966,243 335,595,053
Cost of investnents mado b i
Pargontage o investnontd mads 0% 0%
#air valug of inveatmenly . .

ak-up o Fix valoe of investments iy

Flaand batunieiey . 2,217,544 1% 21, 104,485 6%
Fatnl ) 3,117 978 A% 21,108,485 b

41 NUMBEROF EMPLOYEES
“Tlte: total average nurrbee of employees diing che year and ws au Juime 30, 2057 and 2016 cesprctively are us fallows:
Averags numbar of omployses during the year 4,143 4,228
Total pumber of ompioyeas as a1 Jure 30 4,940 412

47 GENBRAL
Conresponding fgures have been re-areanged / and reclassified wheee ever considered necessary for the purpose ol beiter preseatatios.
1lowever, na sgnificant weckssifcadon bug been made in these financial srsremanis, xeept as staked in nowe 7 & 13,

43 PAYE QF AUTHORIZATION . ‘5:,_) t ‘-7
“Fhcse finaneial staternents have been approved by the bonad of dinetors of the Company oa ‘ 3,{1 :“Em — 6: '1} 2—0
HIAL
= NN TS
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED _ Application for Generation License

4.3.3 Audited Financial Statements of Procon Engineering (Pvt.)
Limited
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PROCON ENGINEERING (PRIVATE} LIMITED
FINAL ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
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RAO & COM pANY 4, Karachi Ghambers

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Hasrat Mohani Road,
32442778 & 32412779 Karachi-2
FAX: 32419452 PAKISTAN
TELEGRAMS
AKOUNTVIEW

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of PROCON ENGINEERING (PRIVATE) LIMITED as at June 30, 2047 and the-related profit
and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and slatement of changes In equity together with the notes
farming part therect, for the year then ended and we state that we. have abtained alf fhe informaticn and explanations which, to the best of
our knowledge and bellef, were nécessary for the purposes of our audit. '

L3

Itis the responsibility of the Company's. management fo establish and malntain & system of internal coniro), and prepare and-prasent the
above said statements in canformity with the approved accoutting standards: and the requiraments of the Companies: Ordinance, 1984, Our
responsibility is o express an opinion on these statements basad on our augit. .

e Foa

We condueted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assirance about whether the above said statements are free of any materal misstatement, An audit
includes exaraliing, on a fest basfs, avidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in' the above said statements, An audit atso includes

assessing the aecounting policles. and significant estmates made by management, as well as, evaluatiig the ovarall presantation of ihe
dbove said statements. We beliave that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our oplnion and, after due verification, we report that:

However, instead of making provision annually to cover the obligations under the scheme | the Company accounts for gratuity as.
an expense at the fime of making payment fo an outgoing employes. Intemational Accounting Slandard -19 “Employee Benefits®
requires such liabifity to be recorded on the basis of projected unit credit method. In the ansence of maasuramsnt of liability on
projected unit gredit method , the Impact on thess finangial statements could ot be quantified;

a) The Company opefates an unfunded gratuity scheme cavering all of its permanent employees who are efigible under the scheme,

b} in-ourapinion, proper books of account have beeri kept by the Company as tequired by the Companies Crdinance, 1984:
o)  in our opinion:

L exceptforthe matiers discussed in paragraph (a} above the balance sheet and profit and loss aceount, tegether with the
* nates therson have been drawn up in conformity with the Comparies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement wilh the
boaks of account and ars further in accordance with accounting policies consistendy applied;

Il the expenditure incurred durlag the year wes for the purpase-of the Company’s business; and

. the busiess conducted, invesiments made and the expenditure incurred during the ysar ware in acoordance with the
dbjects of thie Company,

- d)  in our oplnion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given ta us, axcept for the effects. of adjustment
that gotld have been on the financial statements of the matters discussad in. paragraph (a) above, {he balance sheet, profit and
loss aceount, statement of comprehensive income, cash fiow statoment and statemsnt of changes in equity, logsther with the
notes forming part thereof conform wilh approved accounting standards as applicable In Pakistan, and, give the information
required by the Companies Ordinance, 1884, in the manner go required and respectively give & true and fair view of the state of
{he Company's. affaits as at June 30, 2047, and of the profit, folal comprehansive [neome, its cash flows and changes In equity for
the-year then ended: and

&) Inour opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat & Ushr Ordinance, 1980 {XVIIf of 1980)§L_

\ Chartersd Aceountants
Engagement Partner; Khalid Adeeb

Karachi,
* 5 s g
17807 2017
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PROCON ENGINEERING (PRIVATE) LITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JUNE 30, 2617

O S T o Py

2047 2018
Mota RuUpees Rupess
ABSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and aguipreent 4 1,140,716,855 871,038,019
Intangible assats. 5 7,508,295 5,235,982
Leng term invastment 5 585,160,278 502,284, 6567
Long term deposits 7 8,681,195 7,538,397
1,741,958,624 1,386,063.965
Currentassets ,
Store and spares 12,678,117 5,311,166
Stock-in-trade & 1 ,44‘8,450,580 562,148,416
Trade receivables. o 331,723,359 349,478,502
Short tetm advances 10 617,161,358 272,997,308 |
Frepayments and other receivables 11 8,182,799 | 10,032,828
Tax refunds due from the Government _ 54,325,728 | ¢ 52,835,267 |
7ash and bank kalances 12 15,260,716 38,160,212
2,487,791,657 1,280,961,697
4,720 758 281 2677855662
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorized capital
500,000 (2016: 500,000) Ordinary shares of Rs.100 edch: 50,000,000 50,000,000
lssued, subscribed and paid-up capitat ‘ 13 30,600,000 36,000,000
General reserves 150,000,600 150,000,000
Lean from directors 146,323,965 -
Unappropriated profit 1,026,347,329 631,668,722
1,352,671,294 811,668,722
Non-current liabilities _ 7
. Long-term borrowings 14 517,061,457 815,613,466
- Deferrad taxation 15 84,485.072 70,876,669
4 - 801,546,529 886,490,135
] . Current liabilities _
Trade, accrued and other payables 16 088,880,239 736,682,497
Accrued mark-up. 17 64,080,898 £6,140,919
Short term borrowlngs 18 1,131,098,285 95,945,863
Due to related parties 18 2,184,144 20,463,763
Provision for taxation 85,316,012 69,663,758
) 2,275,540,458 978,896,805
Contingencies and commitments 20

4,979 758,281

2 677,055,660 (L

The annexed rotes from 1 to 35 fornm an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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PROCON ENGINGERING (PRIVATE) LINITED

PROFIT AND LOSE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Sales
Cosi of satles
Gross profit

Selling and distribulion expanses
Administrative and gerieral expenses

Operating profit
Finance cost

QOther ingome
Other charges

Share of profit / (loss) from associate
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit-after taxation

Earning per share-basic and diluted

2017 2016
Note Rupses Rupees

21 8,236,783,503 6,926,082,230
22 (7.286,583,591) __ (6,195,393,554)
950,199,912 730,588,671
23 (76,962,607) (48,648,931)]
24 (384,877, 738)[{  (272,141,118)
(481,840,430 (320,790,050)

. 488,358,482 409,898,622

25 (48,492 426) (25,852,152)
439,867,056 384,048,470
26 T 1474657 |[ 2,466,938 |
27 {31,636,778) (38,418,994)
(36,162,087 ~(35,952,058)

409,704,975 348,094,414

82,878,711 (3,766,433)

497,583,686 344,327,981

28 (97,905,073) (87,227,622)
394,678,607 257.100.369

29 1,315.60

857.00 &

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements,

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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PROGON ENGINEERIMNG (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

2097 2018
Rupess Runpges

Profit after taxation for the year 384,678,807 257,100,358

Other comprehensive ingome - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 394 878,607 257',1'00,35_9 Q

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an Infegral part of these financiat statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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PRGCON ¥ it
CABH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2077

TED

o S s
o R e e w R ST

2047 2016
Noig Rupess. Rupses
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before taxation 432 583,686 344,327,981
Adjustment far: _
Depraciation 4.1 155,545,023 104,048,028
Amortization on software 5 5,027 887 2,248,520
Finance cost 25 48,432 426 25,852,152
Share in post acquisition (profit) / loss from associate B3 {82,878,711) 3,766,433
Gain on disposal of properly, plant and equipment 26 {713,724} (1,102,717}
Unrealised Foreign currency exchange loss a7 1,447,991 13915111}
125,820,602 148,737 527
619,504,278 49% 055 508
Changes in. Working Capital
{Increase) / decrease in current assets N
Store and spares (7,366,951) (805,366)
Stoc_:k'—ih—trac!e (886,304, 164) {116,635,908)
Trads receivables 17,755,143 21,513,352
Short term advances (185,265,877}  (105,105,256)
Prepayments and cther receivables 1,850,027 {358,952}
{1,039.331,822) (201,002 128)
(419,827 444y 291,963,380
Increase [ (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade, accrued and other payables 282,197, 742 198,675,893
Bue ta related parties (18,279,624} (46,654,868)
233,918,118 168,021,025
Cash generated from operations {185,909,328) 449,984,405
Finance cost paid {36,572,447) (20,783,390)
Income tax paid (249,032 1566) (87,834,392)
Long term deposit (1,042,798) 100,600
(285,647,401) (108,517,182)
Net cash generated from oparating activities {472,598,727) 341,467,223
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition in property, plant and equipment (425,475,136) (284,151,165}
Addition in intangible assets (7,300,000} (4,050,000)
Proceeds from disposal of oroperty, plant and equipment 965,000 1,610,718
Investment In DSCs 3,000

Net cash {used in) investing activities (431,810,136)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(286.867,447)

Repayment of liabilities against asset subject to finance lease - {518,022)
Long term barrowings received / (repaid) during the year - net 106,570,000 (80,192,580)
Short term borrowings 774,908,367 40,811,158
Net cash. (used in) financing activities 881,478,387 (33,899,414)
Net (decrease} / increase in cash and cash equivalents {22,590,486) 14,880,367
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 38,160,212 23,279,850
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 12 15,269,716 38,160,212 ?_

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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PROCON EXNGINEBRING (PRIVATE: LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES N EQUITY
POR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

fssuad, General toan from
subsuribed s . Unapgproprigted Tofal
. regarves directors i

and paid up profit
Balance as on Jups, 30, 2018 30,000,000 150,000,000 - 374 568,363 554,568,363
Total comprehensive iscome for the year - - - 257,100,353 257,400,358
Transactons with ownors - - - - -
Balance ag on Jung, 30, 2018 30,000,000 150,000,000 - 631 .663,,?2:2 811,668,722
Total camprehensive incame forthe year - - - 354 678,607 364,678,607
Transactions with owners
Long term Borrowing transferred from.
non-current liabililies (note 14) - - 146,323,965 - 146,323,965
Balance as on June, 30, 2017 30,000,000 150,000,000 146:323,965  1,026347.326  1,352671,294 ]

j

The annexed notes irtun 110 25 form an itegral part of these financial statements,
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34

3.2

33

PROCON ENGINEERING (FRIVATE)
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE ,
FOR THE YEAR SNDED JUNE 30, 2017

LARITED

STATUS AMD NATURE OF BUSINESS

Tha Company was incorporated in Pakistan undsr the Companies Ordinancs, 1984 on Octobar 13, 1988, Tha
Company is engaged in manufacturing of sutomotive parts and componants. The cegistered address of the
Company is 4- Darul Arman Ce-operative Housing Society Shahrah-a-Faisal Karachi.

STATENMENT OF GOMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved adccounting standards comprise of such Internatisnal Financiat Reporting
Standards (IFRSs} issuad by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notifiad under the Companies
Qrdinance, 1984 and provisions of and directives. issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case the
raquirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall pravail.

During the year, the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has been pramuigated, however, Securities and Exchange
Commission. of Pakistan (SECP) vids its circular no. 17 of 2017 dated July 20, 2017 communicated
commission’s decislon that the companiés whose financial year close on or before 30 June 2017 shall prepare
their financial statements in accordance with the pravisions of the repealed Companies Ordinancs, 1984,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preéparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention excepi as other wise stated
in the respective palicies and notes given heraundar,

fn these financial statements, except for the amounts reflected in the cash flow statement, all transactions have
been accounted for on accrual basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These finanicial statements are presenied in Pakistan Rupees which is the functional currency of the Company.

Changes in acecounting standards and interpretations

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective and relevant

Following amendments to existing standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for

accounting periods beginning on January 01, 2016 and are considered to be relevant to ihe company's
operalions:

IAS 1, 'Presentation of Financial Statements' aifns to improve presentation and diselosure in financial reports
by emphasising the importance of understandability, comparability and clarity in presentation.

Tha amendments provide clarification on number of issues including: .

- Materially ~ an entity should not aggregate or disaggregate information in a manner that obscures. useful
infermation. Where items are material, sufficient information must bs provided to explain the impact on the
financial position or performance.

- Disaggregation and subtotais — line itemns specified in 1AS 1 may need to be disaggregatad where this is
relevant to an understanding of the entity's financial position or performance. There Is also new guldance on
the use of subtotaisq_/
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3.4

3.5

Maotas — coiirmailon thal tis notes do not nead 10 ke presentad in a particuiar ordar,

i
- {hher Cemprahiensive Incoms (OCH - ariaing from: invesiments accounted for under the equily methed - the ﬁ
share of the OCI arising from equily - acsounted invesiments is grouped based on whethar the items will or o
will nof subsequently be reciassified to profit or loas. Each group should then be presentad as 2 single line o
iten [ the statement of comprehensive income. 4
The above do not have any significant impact on these financial stalements, 5
b} Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards fhat are %
sffective but not ralevant -
0

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting pariods beginning
on or after Jenuary 01, 2016 are considerad not to be relavant to Company's financial statements and hence
have not been detailed hera.

¢) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
not yet effective but relevant

Following new amendment to published standard 1$ effective for accounting pericds. beginnirg on or after
January 1, 2017 and is considered to be relevant for Company's financlal statements.

[AS 7, 'Cashflow statements’ - This amendmant requires disclosure to explain changes in liabilities for which
cash flows have been, or will be classified as financing activities in the statement of cash. flows, The
amendment is part of the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative, In the first year of adoption, comparative information
need not be provided,

A AN

I

g

b

Significant accounting estimates and judgments.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with. approved acqounting standards requires the use of i
certain critical accounting estimates. It al¢o requires management to exarcise judgment, estimates and pet }
assumptions. in the progess of applying accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabflities, o
income ang expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 7

.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policles, management has made the following estimates
and judgments, which are significant to the financial statements:

(i) Property, plant and equipment
(in Trade debts

(it Taxation

(iv) Valuation of stock in trade

g

s
P

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow tor
the company and the amount of revenus and the associated cost Incurred or to be incurred can be measured
reliably.

&
H

(i) sale of goods is recognised when the goods are invoiced and risk and rewards transferred.

(iiy all other income are recorded as and when accrue@
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3.7

3.3

3.9

Proparty, plant art eguinment

Thenad .

Prepedy, olant and aquismsant e sisted &t cost less accumulated dapresiation and impairment. Depreciation. is
charged to. Income. applying the diminishing balence mathod at the ralss spacifisd in note 4. Depreciation is
charged on all propary, plant gand equipment from the month they are availsble for use til the month they atg
disposed of. Any gain or [oss on disposal of property, plant and squipment are taken in profit and loss agsount in
the yaar of disposal. Minor repairs and maintenance ars charged to current expensas. Major renawals and
impravements. are capitalized.

Leased

Leases that ransfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of asseis to the company are accounted
for as finance leases. At the Incaptien of a finance lease, ttie cust of the leased asset is capitalised at the fair
value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease paymants, Lease paymants are
apportioned between the finance charges and raduction of the: lease liability 50 as o achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remalning balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to the income siaterent. The
legsor glvas an option to purchase assets at the end of lease term,

investment in assoclate
Entities in which the Company has significant influence but not controf and whichr are: neither ifs subsldiaries nor
joint ventures are associates and are accounted for by using the eguity method of accounting.

These investments are initially recognized at cost, thereafter the carrying amount is increased or decreased
recognize the Company's share of profit of Ioss of associates. Share of post acquisition profit or loss of
associates is accounted for in the Company's profit or loss. Distribution seceived from investee, reduces the
carrying amount of investment. The Compary's share of changes recognized in other comprehensive income by
the associate are recognlzed by the Company in other eomprehensive income.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at weighted average cost except for items in transit which are stated at
cost incurred upto the balance sheet date. For items which are slow moving and / or idenlified as surplus to the
Cempany's requirements, adequate provision is made for any excess book value over estimated realizable
value. The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a regular basis and provision is made
for cbsolescence.

Stock-in-trade
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determinéd by first-in first-out method.

Cost of stock-in-transit comprises bank charges and any other cost incurred il balance sheet date. Cost of Work.
in-Progress and finished goods include prime cost and apprepriate portion of manufacturing expenses.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in. the ardinary ¢ourse of business less costs necessarily
to be ingurred in ortder to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognized and carried af ariginal inveice amount less an aliowance for any uncoflectible
amounts. Known bad debts, if any, are written off and provision Is made against debts considerad doubtful,

Advances, deposits and prepayments
These are stated at cost@

£

Certified True Lopy




"

3.5

3.14

Saenoand caah eoudvaisnis

Cash end cash equivalsnts are cartisd in the balancs shest i cost. For s wurpass of cash flow staternent,
cash and cash eguivalenis comprise cash in hand, cash with banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and
othar ehort tarm highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject o insignificant risk of change in valus.

y G

Related parly trangactions

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normat course of business are conducted at arm's lengih at
normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactiens using vaiuation modes, as
admigsible, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, it is
in the interest of the Company to do so.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit and loss, held
to matuiity, loans and recéivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management datermines. the classification of its financial assets at iniiial
recognition.

Financial instruments - classification, recognition, measurement, derecognition and offsetting

Financial assefs at fair value through profit or foss

Financial assels at fair valug through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Darivatives are also
categorized as field for trading unless they designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivatives financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are incfuded in the current assets, except for the maturities greater than 2
months afterthe end of the reporting period, which are classified as non-currént assets.

Held to maturity financial assets

Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
maturity where management has a positive intention and ability to hold till maturity.

Avajlable for sale financiafl assets

Avallable for sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated In this category or not classified
in any of other categories. These are Included in ron-current assets uniess the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the financial assets within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the
Company commils to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carred at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at
fair value througt profit or (oss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the
profit and loss account. Financiai assets are derecognised when the right to recsive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available for sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity financial assets are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument, A financial fiability is derecognised when the obfigation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled ar expires. When an existing financial fiability is replaced by another frem the same lender on
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income@
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3.16

397

3,18

e

A finencial asset and financial labiity 1s offsel and the net amiount is reponed in the balanca sheel if me
Company has a tegally enforceable right to sel-off the recognized amounis and the Company inlands sithar o
sefle on @ et basiz of to realize the asset and dischargs the lizbility simuiianecusly, Correspondding income on
Zssets and charge on liabifty is aiso offsel.

Derivative Tinancial instrumanis and hedging activities

Dervatives are imitlally recognised at fair value on tha date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measurad at their fair value. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on
whather the derivalive is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hadged. The
Comparty designatas eertain derivatives as either

tHedges of the fair value of recognized assets or labilities or a firm commitment (fair valua hedgay, or

Hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
(cash flow hedge).

Fair value hedge

Ghanges in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair vaiue hedges are recorded in the
profit and loss acceunt, together with afty changes in the fair valye of the hedged asset or liability that are
attributabie to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedge
On an ongolng basis, the Company assesses whether each derivative continues i be highly effective in

offselting changes in the cash flows of hedged items. If and when a derivative is no longer expected to bae highly
effective, haedge accounting is discontinued.

The effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hadges
is recognized in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective porticn is recognized
immediately i the profit and loss account.

Offsatting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounit is reported in the balance sheet, if the Company has
a legally enforceable right to setoff the recognised amounts and the Compary intends to settle either on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the tiability simultaneously,

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance: sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairmenit
or reversal of previous impairment, including items of property, plant and equipment and infangible assets. In the
event that an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the carrying amount is reduced to
racoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. A previously recognised
impairment toss is reversed only If there has been a change in the estimates used lo determine the recoverable
amount, however nct to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
amartisation ar depreciation), had no impairment losses. been recognised for the assst in prior years. Reversal of
impairment loss Is restricted to the original cost of the asset,

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events, it is probable that an out fiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required {o settle the

obligatian and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of ob!igatior(.'i

78

T

&
i
=
iz
2




3.4

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.28

Fovelyn curreney transactiosng

Forelgn currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate applicable at the ransaction date. Monetary
agsets and liabllides are translatea into rupees using exchange rates applicable 5t the balance shesi daie. Al
gaing and fosses on settiernant and translation at yaar end are recognisad in the profit and loss account,

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are recognisad as an expersas in the period i which these are incurred except to the exiant of
borrowing costs that are directly altributable to the acquisition, conétruction or produciion of a qualifying assets.
Such borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset,

Warranty obligations

The Company recognises the estimated liability, ap an accrual basis, to repair or replace products under
warranfy al the halance shast date, and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in the profit and Ioss
aggount wher the sale is recognised.

Staff retirement benefits - Gratuity

The Gompany operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all of its permansnt employees who are eligiole
under the scheme, However, instead of making provision anriually to cover the obligations under the scheme, the
Company accaunts for gratuity as an expensé at the time of making payment to an cutgoing employee.

Trade, acerued and others payable

Liabilities. for trade and other payables are carried at cost, which is the faijr value of the consideration to be paid in
future for goods and services received.

Taxation

Current

Provision for surrent taxation js based an taxable income at cyrrent rates of taxation after taking inte account
tax rebates and tax credit available, if any, The company provides for deferred taxation on liability method for all
major temporary differences, if any. Net deferred tax debits, if any, on account of teriporary differences have not
been recognized.

Daferred

Deferred taxation is recognized, using the balance sheet liabiiity method, providing for zll temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and fabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax recognized is based on the expected manner of the realization or

gettlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using rates of taxation enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
and the credits can be utilized,

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per shares (EPS) data. Basic EPS Is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss aftributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
autstanding during the period. Diluted EPS Js determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Loan from directors

Loan from director is accounted for by using Technical Release-32 "Accounting Directors Loan® (TR 32) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) on 25th January 2016 which provided specific
guidance on Director's loan that are interest free:

Directer's loan that is interest free and payable at the discretion of the Company is to be recorded as atuity
at face value and is not to be subsegusntly remeasured,

- Director's loan that Is interast free and payable on demand is to be recorded under current Iiabilitiesq
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4 PROPERTY, PLAMT AND EQUIPNIENTS

4,

-

QPERATING FIXED ASSETS
Cost a3 on .i\ddi_t.lon'sf Costas at Acgumu‘latad Degvraciaiien 3 Acc;‘m{umed Writ'tan dq““”,
Partictlars July 01 95 (f%elet_m{m)f June 30, 2017 d‘egraniatwnraa (adjustment) deprecla‘lmnras at  value af Junis 30
’ “franisfers ! at July 01,2018  for the year Juna 30, 2017 2017
CQwhiad
Leage-hald lang 54,881,704 . 54,561,701 . 16,388,510 16,368,510 38,193,191
5.F, units 9,365,398 3,258,118 12,824,017 - - - 12,824,047
Builcling; 239,272,765 5,308,866 281,120,784 147,328,040 9,390,706 1:51;121.9'.?4(;,! 83,501,044
6,541,154
Plant ait machinery 1,224,283,270 252,895;9‘]0 1,499,781,778 524265201 407,740,017 732,005,218 767,758,559
22,587.508 ™% .
Furniture, fixture and aguipments 61,399,437 35,009,554 98,493,003 35,182 421 5,187,523 41,819,944 54,873,057
* Motor boal 815,000 . 815,000 746,920 4,212 731,192 23,868
Camputers 27,923,194 4,450,459 32373.653 17,126,574 3,964,847 21,091,221 11,232 432
Liata communication systern 2,752,185 2,752,185 2216478 80,508, 2,296,982 486,203
Woter vehicles 141,895,341 7,742,372 137,684,058 45,668,930 12028907 55,975,458 81,688,600
. {1,973,855} (£,722,379)
1722268792 338,747,200 2,005,166,475 873544501  155,545023 1,027 357,205 1,060,798,370
2017 Rupees 29123,748% 14,722,379)
£1,973,655)
Costasan Add_iﬁom: f Costas at Acc_umu{ated Dg preciation I Accumylated Written down
Particulars Juty 04, 2015 {dslations) | June 30 2016 depreclatﬁon as (adfustment] depreciation asat  value-at June 38,
P *transfers. ! atJuly 01, 2018  forthe year June 30, 2016 2016
Qwned
L.ease-hold land 53,481,701 1,080,000 54,561,701 - + 54,561,701
SF, vnits 8,565,859 800,000 9,365,304 - B - 9,365,899
Building 237,969,536 1203170 289,272,765 137,209,806 10,114,234 147,329,040 91,943,725
Piant and machinery 981,086,012 243,197,258 1,224,283,270 542,357 269 81,967,431 624,285,201 500,014,069
Fumiturs, Mixlure and squipments 52,219,926 9,179,541 61,399,437 32,756,822 3,385,599 36,152 421 25,247,016
Motor boat 815,000 815,000 781,965 4955 186,820 28,080
Computers 21,997,157 5,926,037 27,923,194 13,796,378 3,420,196, 17,126,574 16,796,520
Dala eamimunication system 2,752,185 2,752,185 2,120,762 94,713 2,215 475 536,710
Motor vehietes 78,431,964 16,264,820 181,896,341 37,058,525 5,105,398 45,668,330 58,226,411
6,711,665" 5,610,122*
) 25317 (2,105,118) _
1,438,319,439 270,750,805 4722268792 765091528 104,048,022 873,544,564 848,724,231
(2.513,117) {2,105,116)
5.741,665% 5610,122
{eased assets
Malor vehicles 671,665 (6,741,665 . 5510122 {5g103e -
6,711,665 {6.711.665) 5,610,122 {5.61Q“l'2_2)
1,445,031,104 279,750,805 1,722.268,792 771,601,650 104/048,028 873,544,561 448,724,211
@i {2,105,116)
80
LAY

Dperatiny fixed assals
Caoilal werk-In-progress

Nots
4.4
4.2

2547
Rupees
1.060,748,970

79,917,888

S5
Hupess
348,724 231

72,313,768

1,140,715,358

871,038,018
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2017 28 }
Hots Rupees Rupess |
411 Allocation of depraciation '
Cost of Satas 22 133.859,227 52,027 195 ’
Administration and general expenses Z4 71,545,796 2,020,882
185,546,023 104,048,078
4.2 Capital work in progress.
Opening balance as at Juiy 01 22,313,788 17,913,428
Additions _ , _
- Building 53,251,340 16,821,800
- Plant and machinery 33,466,505 _ -
86,727,846 16,821,800
l.ess: '”F'-r‘an‘éferrec_f to operating fixed assets
- Building (6,541,152) - )
- Plant and maghinery (22,582 596) (15,421,440 |
(29,123.747) {15,421 440}
Closing balance as at Jure 30 79,017,886 23,313,788
§ INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software.
Cost .
As at 1st July 8,958,062 4,908,062
Addition 7,300,000 4,050.000
16,258,062 8,958,062 |
Amortization .
Agat 1st July (3,722,080 {1,473,560)
Amortization during the year 24 (5,027,687) {2,248,520)
(8,749,767} (3,72_2,0__80}
» 7,608,295 5,235,982
u Rate 33,3% 33.3% |
8 LONG TERM INVESTMENT
Investment in associate ‘
Master Wind Energy Limited
508,048 ordinary shares of Rs.1,000 each
Ownership interest 15% (2016: 15%)
Cost of investment B.1 £06,048,000 506,048,000
Share of post acquisition profit/ (loss)
Opening {3,766,433) -
Bhare of profit/ (loss) for the year 82,878,711 (3,766,433)
78,112,278 (3,766,433)
585,160,278

502,281,667 Q.
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5.2

8.3

operse wind anergy genaration project.

Wind Enmergy Limited is engagad in ihe business of suppiving gensia: s parer and (0 38iun B0y

The Company's sharehoiding in associate is nelow 20%, howsver, the Company exeicisas significant infiuences

by virtus of commen direciorship.

Summarised financial information of associate as per audited financial statements for the year ended

30 June 2017

Associate's balance shaet:
Current assels

Non-current assets.

Cutrent liabilities

Non-current fiabifities

Associate’s revenue and profit
Revanue
Profit before taxation for the year

Profit/ {loss) after taxation for the year
LONG TERM DEPOSIT

Deposits - considered good

Sui Southern Gas Company

Pakistan Telecommunication Cempany Limited
S.F Units

K- Electric Limitsd

Other deposit

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material and components
Work in process
Goods-in-transit

2077 2016
Mots Rugpees Rupees
4,274.477,344 667,100,343
11,552,856,164  10,535,393.228
2 556,506,090 791,750,201
19,322, 116,539 7.083,776,336
1,723,823,193 | )
610,290,427 4,243,949
602,743,845 (5,216,695)
715,127 716,127
77,815 77,615
350,000 350,000
5,925,731 5,925,731
1,912,722 469,924
8,581,185 7,538,397
988,017,700 438,002,701
139,679,555 63,701,252
320,753,325 60,352,453
1,448,450,580

&2

562,146,416 (L
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2917 76 \
Mota Hupsss Hugees ;
TRADE REGEVABLES ‘N
Unsecured, considerad good 331,723,359 349,478,502 :
This includes ihs refated party balances of amounting Rs 51,785,382/- (2016 : Rs. 28,412,951). i
SHORT TERM ADVANCES - unsecurad, considerad good
Advances to staff 15,906,503 12,813.804
Advance against impart 13,239,810 2,142,082
Advances for purchases 24,581,616 32,802,755
Advaricd sales lax 234,164,182 74,867,593
Advance income tax : _ 329,269,247 150,371,074
~_B17,161,388 274,997,308
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Prepayments 2,306,200 390,356
Other receivables 1,815,103 6,071,208
Due from associated undertakings 1.1 4061496 3571282
8,162,769 10,032,826
Represents inter company current account balances which are in the normal course of business,
GASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cagh in hand 7,541,386 33,510,578
Cash at bank
- puirent account 7,728,330 4649634
' 15,269,716 38,160,217
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID - UP CAPITAL
2017 2016
No. of shares  No. of shares
- Ortfinary shares of Rs.100 each _ AP
40 fully paid up in cash 4,000 4,000
Ordinary shares of Rs.100 each
299,860 299,960 fully paid up as Banus Share 29,996,000 29,996,000
300,000 300,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 Q
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14.1

15

181
16

17

207 2018

Hots Funses Rupess
LOKG TERM BORROWING- unsacurad
Dubiin Invastmants Limited 14.1 517,081,457 515,673,488
From refated parties 14.2 - 300,000,000
517,061,457 815,613,466

This represents forgign currensy loan: obtained from an invesiment company for business purpose and the
facility is payable-in eleven equal semi annual instalments commencing from June 30, 2018 and having mark-

up at the rate LIBOR plug 1% per annum, mark-up payable on semi annually basis starting from the date of first
drawn.

From: ralated parties

Directors - 314,203,959
Qther related parties - {1.4-,203,959):

These represent upsecured and interest free loan o the Company by its directors, In the absence of specific
terms of thie loan and guidance available, the Cormipany had recognized this loan at cost. However, during the
year, the Company has entered into an agreement with the directors of the Company, in purstance of whigh
Rs. 145,000,000 of loan is repayable at the discretion of the Campany, Accordingly, the Company has
recognized this ioan as equity and presented under share capital and reserves. Remaining Rs. 261,570,000 of
foan is payable on demand of directors and hence transferred to short term barrowings.

DEFERRED TAXATION 1591 84,485,072 70,876,669
This represents temporary differences in respect of accelerated tax depreciation allowance.
TRADE, ACCRUED AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 802,161,490 37’3;807,13‘%
Maobilization advances 10,062,345 164,996,132
Accrued expenses 132,128,430 171,972,658
Workers' profit participation fund 21,994,688 18,629,915
Woarkers' welfare fund payable 8,194,009 5,873,968
Advance from customers 14,309,188 1,602,693

986,880,239 736,682,497
ACCRUED MARK-UP
Short term barrowings 11,903,878 1,152,936
Interest on director loan 49,674,685 49,674,885
Tooling advance 497,284 -
Finance ¢harge on finance lease - 555,671
Long. term borrowings 5,984 651 4 757,427

68,060,898 56,140,919 Q
84
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18.2

19

20

20.1

20.2

2017 2095
Mote Rupsas Rupzes
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From banks - sgcdred
Running fnance 18.1 856,648,271 81,741,804
From related parties - unsecured 7
Directors 18.2 233,704 961 | 14,203,859
Other rslated parties 18.2 40,745,033 | ~
274,449,994 14,203,956
1,131,098,265 05945883

These faclities have been obtained from various banks under mark-up arrangements against aggregate
sanctioned limit of Rs. 1,100 miliion ( 2618: 802 million). These facilities carry mark-up at 3 % avg. KIBOR plus
bank premium{ 2016: 3 % avg. KIBOR plus agreed bank premium} per annum payable quarterly. The
aggregate running finance facilities are secured against hypothecation charges over the Gompany's stock and
book debts and personal guarantees of all directors of the Company.

These reprasent unsecured and intersst frae loan which are payable on demand.

DUE TO RELATED PARTY- ungecured

Advance from associated undertaking 2,184,144 20,463,768

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingency
There is no contingency as at bafance sheet date. (2018 Nil)

Commitments

~ Commitments in respect of letter of credits amounting to Rs.824.516 million (2016; Rs.559.0368 million).
- Commitments in respect of letter of acceptances amounting to Rs,108.057 million (2016: Rs.34.303 million).

- Commitments in respect of bank guarantee amounting to Rs.15.665 million (2016: Rs.14.980 million}.%
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21

22

23

HALES - Nat
Gross sales
Scrap salgse

| 2ss;
Sales discount and return
Bales tax

COST OF SALES

Raw matérial consumed
QOpening stock as at July 01
Purchases

- import

- Local

Raw material availabte for consumption
Closing stock as at June 30

Other manufacturing expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits
Fiectricity, power and gas

Rertt, rates and taxes

Stores and spares

Repairand aintenance
Miscellapsous

Water expenses

Development

Weaving, painting and galvanizing
Insurance

Depreciation

Cost of goods manufactured during the year

Operning steck - work-in-process
Clasing stock - work-in-process

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Freight and forwarding

Advertisemant and publicity

Techrical assistance fae

86

07 2613
Funess Rugess
g 477 959,680 TE6T, 292,384
128,863,250 75,782,341
9,600,852,810 8,032,574,725
4,304,949 13,397,171 |
1,369,764,458 1,083,095,324
1,364,069,406 1,106,492 405
. 8,236,783,503 ,926,062,230
438,092 701 248,473,381
497,089,794 | | 3,721,335,928 |
2.179,575,807 1,823,167,484 |
&,876,665,601 5,644,493.412
7,314,758,302 5,790,966,773
(988,017,700} {438,092,701)
6,326, 740,602 5,352,874,072
631,431,183 450,532,358
88,699,215 89,418,610
11,600,874 4,774,301
52,979,322 41,817,394
71,945,444 47,797,008
7.432,413 6,869,023
3,472,574 3,826,240
5,418,534 3,706,607
21,661,304 13,706,916
7,451,891 5,162,391
133,899,227 92,027,165
1,035,821,281 759,638,012
7,362 561,883 6,112,512,084
63,701,262 | 146,582,736
{139,679,655) 163,701,262)
{75978,293) _ 82881475
7,286,583,501 8,195,393 559
32,870,532 25,612,487
1,477,713 1,328,439
42,514,447 21,807,005
76,862,682 48,648 931 gL
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28

27

ADIEIRISTRETVE AMND GENERAL EXPENBES

Salarizs and banafits
Diractors rermungration
Oifice electricily
Telephone and telex
Printing and stationary
Leqgal and professional
Audit fee

Conveyance and travelling
Entertainment

Staff welfafe

Hajj expenses

Medical and first. aid.
Qffice equipment repair and maintehance
Fae and subscription
Rent, rates and taxes
Misceltaneous

Repair and maintenance building
Transportation charges
Vahicle running expenses
Depreciation

Seacurity

Amortization

FINANGCE COST

Interest on bank loan and overdraft
Interest on long term borrowings
Bank charges

OTHER INCONME

Income from financial assets

Profit on bank deposit

Profit on disposal of property, piant and equipment

Income from non financial assets
Rental iIncome

OTHER CHARGES

Workers' profit participation fund
Waorkers' welfare fund

Loss en foreign currency translation

87

Mots

2017 ;
Ruypees Rupess -
173,544,244 127,323,852 : |
8,400,000 8,000,000
5,867,210 5,395,603 ?
5,954,802 4,149,912 ;
6,132,889 3,739,008
3,442 277 1,579,043 &
432,000 432,000 9
45,557 257 31,396,218 .
7,023,058 5,418,888
11,486,933 10,169,426
195,189 299,941 E
3,526,703 1,044,358 0
4,264,638 2,505,786 i
1,717,953 2,585,406
266,528 418,348 4
1,916,461 3,494,827 b
4,597,253 2,288,541 -
43,940,097 26,673,573 i
21,501,044 13,847,443 ]
21,545,796 12,020,862
8,517,919 9,119,675 |
5,027,887 2,248,520 i
384,877,738 272,141,118 o
36,247,724 15,504,909 |
10,478,640 9,082,859
1,268,061 1,264,384 |
48,492,426 25,852,152 |
400,973 1,004,221

713,724 1,102,717
1,114,697 2,106,938

350,000 360,000 ‘
1,474,697 2,466,938 |
21,994,688 18,629,915 |
8,794,099 5,873,568
1,447,991 13,915,111
31,636,778 _38,418,8944Q
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TARATION

- Current ysar
- Pricr year
- Deferred

Reconciliation between accounting profit-and tax expense
Accounting profit for the year before tax

Tax rate

Tax on accounting profit

Prior year adjustrment

impact of tax credit cn BMR (858)

Cthers
Tax expense

85,316,512
(1,020,236)

o
it
f+)

it
e
]

<

i

wl

59,563,758

13,608,403 17,563,864
97,005,079 87,227 622
492,583,686 344,327,981
31% 32%
152,700,943 110,184,954
(1,020,236 .
(85,398,337) (75,391,150}
31,622,709 52,433,818
97,605,079 87,227,622

The Company's income for tax year 2018 has been selected for audit under section 214D of the Income Tax
Crdinance, 2001. The Deputy Commissioner IR has raised the demand of Rs. 13,738,022 in its order dated 03
July 2017. The Company has filed appeal against the said order before. Commissicner Inland Revenue, the
proceedings of which were pending till the date of the finalization of these financial statemenis. The
management is hopeful for favourable cutcome, therefore, no adjustment in respect of said demand has been

made in these financial statements.

EARNING PER SHARE - basic and diluted

Net profit for the year

Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding during the year

Eaming pat share - basic and dilute

88

394,678._607 257,100,359
---------------- Number of 5Hares wweees
308,000 300,000
Rupess
1,36 857 o
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REMUKERATION OF CHIER SXECUTIVE, DIREGTOR N0 EAECUTIVES

1
The aggragate amount charged it ihe socauats for remuneration, including 2l benefits. w the Disclors amd Sxacuises of ha Company vais @
foows:

CHIER I CHIEF
PIRECTOR axpoumyE DREOOR ey

wsseseanen 3047 PSRN | | - -
Basic salary 8,400,000 4,062,060 §,000,000 3,890,000
Leave gncashment - 301,486 - 723,867
Bonus . 307,500 - 145,000
GratLity , . - - 522,000
5,400,000 4 B70.988 6,000,000 4,581,667

Number of person(s) 1 1 1 1

FINANGIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Cortrpariy fs exposed:to the follewing fiancial risks from the use of fimancial instruments ;

- Market risk Inciuding currency risk and intarast rate rsk,

- Gredit risk

- Liguidity sk,

~ Operational risk.

Thig note presents information about the Company's expostre to each of the above risk, dhe Company's objeciives, policies and procedures for
measuring and maraging risk, and the Company's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are-included throughout thase financial
The Company risk management palicies are established to Identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set. appropriate sk limits and
sonfrols, and to monitor risks and adherence fo limits, The Company averall isk management programma focuses on Hie unpredictabilily of financial
tnarkets and seeks to minimize patential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance,

The Company's senior managgment provides policies for overall risk management, as well a5 policies coverlng specific areas such as foreign
exchange: risk, interest rate Ask, credit risk, financial instrumants and investment of excess lquidity. It s the Company polisy thet no trading in
The Beard-of Diraclors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which aré summarized telow

311 Market risk

Market risk Is tha risk that fair valus of future cash flows will fuctuste because of changes in market prices. The Company has exposed to
markel risks such as interest rata risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include long-term nancing and shestterm borrowings.

a}  Forelgn currency sk

Foraign currency fisk is the risk that tha valus of a firiancial instrument will flucheate due to changes in forsign exchanga rates, Foreign
currency fisk arises mainly where recelvables and payables exisl dus to transactions with foreign buyers and suppliers.

ply) 2016
Rupees Rupees
Long-terrs bomowing 517,061,457 815,613,466
_ Reporting Data Rate
AED {o PKR- Buy 285 28.51

Sensilivity analysis:
At reporting date, if the FKR had slrengthened by Rupee ane against the AED with af ofher variatites held constant, post£ax profit for the year
would have been increased/{decreased) by Rs. 18.085 million (2016: Rs.5.16 million)

The sensitivily analysis prepared is not nacessarily indicative of the effacts on profit {loss} for the year and assels / liabilities of the Company.
b} Interest rate risk

Imerest rate risk is the sk that falr value or fulure cash flows of the francial Instruments will fluctuate due to change In the market interest
rates. The Company interest rate risk arises from short-ferm borrowings oblained with floating rafes, All Ihe berrowings of the Company are
gblained in functional currencies. Applicabie interest rates of finandial instruments are given in respective notes.

Change in interest rate by 1% may have a pesifive or negative impact of approximately Rs, 5.17 miflion {2016: Rs. 0.55 million ) in profit and
loss account before taxation. The analysis is based an closing balarices on the assumption that all ather variables remain constant. Q
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Craglt risk

Cradit fisk i the risk jhai ong sarly o 2 fnsaciaf instrurment will fadl o dischay
loss. Gancantrafion of credit risk arises whan a number of tountsroaries ar an

The maxiniurmn sxposurs to credit fsk a1 the reporiing dale is 28 ioflows ;

Long-term. dgpozits

Trade recelvables - unsecuraed
Shost term advances

Prepayments and other recelvables
Bank balances

Credit quafity of financial assats

b
9

4

& an oldigaton and causa the ofsr pany © inour 2 Inancls
#G6¢ i similar businass,

W7 1018
Rupees Rupsas
8581106 7,538,397
372335 349478502
15,906,503 12,813,804
5,876,599 9,642,470
7,728,330 4,648,534

The credit policy of financial agsets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by reference to extemal credit ratings or to historical

friformation about counterparty defautt rates:

Trade debts

Customers with no defaull in e pastone year

Short ferm advances
Counter parties without cradit rating

Prepaymants and ofher receivahles
Counter parties without credi rating

Bank balances
A+

Balances with banks

Bk Al Habib Limited PACRA
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS
Habib Mefropolitan Bank Limited  PACRA
Bank Al Falali Limited PACRA
Nafional Bank of Pakistan JOR-VIS
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VI3
Sumenit Bank Limited JCRVIS
Faysal Bank Limited PAGRA

Muslim Commercial Bank Limited  PACRA

Accrued mark up
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA
Habit Bank Limited JCRVIS

Habib Matropolitan Bank Limited ~ PACRA
Meezan Bank Limited - Murabaha lean

Shorttern running finance

Bank Al Habib Limited FACRA
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS
Meazan Bank Limitad - Murabaha loan

Habib Metropolitan Bank

Alt
A-1¥
Atr

At
A+

90

AA#

331,723,359 349,478,502
16,906,503 12,813,804
5,876,599 9,842,470
7,728 330 4,649,634
2017 2016
4,478,876 914,783
153,621 135,834
16,979 250,855
21,648 21,047
2.588 2,744 675
3,002,070 296,757
251 251
3 3G
52,867 285,397
7728310 _ 4,649,634
2017 2016
Rupees Rupees
9,215,682 760,956
1418,715 237,792
1,182,100 154,188
6,381 -
11,903,878 1,152,836
705,317,296 65,813,127
112,715,914 15,928,777
11,836,025 -
26,679,036 -
856,648,271 81,741,904
LA
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A Llgalciyelsh
Linmifatity risk is tha risk that e Company will not be-able to mest its fnancial obiigation as they fall due.
The Corapany appias prudent fieuidity risk managemsnt by malntaining sufiicient cash and the availawity of funding through an adequate
amount of commiiied credif facitifles. Table belaw summarlzes this maturity peofite of the Company's financisl iabifies at the foliowing
reporting dates based on contraciual undistounted payments. Balances <due within 12 menihs equal their cativing balances as the fmpact of
disoounting is not significant,

2047 2044

Financial liahilitias: _
Long:tesm baawing. - SUASTAST  BI051487 - . . §17.061,967 815,612,466
Trads, actided and other :
payaties - : - GM3B224 . oaamae a4, 382264 70,676,921
HKeerued mak-up. . - . 68,060,598 . £:3,060,835 66,050,896 5,140,913
Shor-lgrm running Snaace 856,648,271 . BSG6A8.T1 274440394 - M489 1131008265 95,945,853
(g to related parties . . . 2,184,144 A 2,184,144 2,184, 142 20,463,768

O GSBhMEITL  SITAB1AST | 175076 1J89077300 - TA%07T300 | 286278700 1698,736.907

Effective interest rates for (he. monatdry financlal assels and liabifities are mentienet i the respective notés ta the financial statements.
314 Falrvalue of financial instruments
Fair valug is the amount for which an assat could be exchanged, or & liabflity settled, betlween knowledgeable and willing parties in an arni's

length fransaction, Gonsenuently, differences car arise between carrying valuss and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the: defirition of fair value ls-the présumption that the Company is a going concern without any intention or requirement fo curtail
matgrially the scale of its. aperations of 1o undertake a transaction on adverse ferms,

Fair valug of all financlal assats and findncial labilifles are sstimated to approximate their tospective: carrying amount.
3.3 Capital rlsk management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management i to maintein fealthy capital. ratios, strong credit rafing and. optimat capital
structures ins order to ensure-ample availability of finance for its existing and potential investment projects, to maxiize shareholders value and

The Company manages iis capital structure and makes adjustment {o i, i light of changes in economic conditions. In order to mainiain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust ihe amount of dividends paid th shareholdars, refurr capital to sharehalders or issue new
shares, No changes: weré mads i the objectives, policies and processes during the year ended June 30, 2016.

The Company monitars capital using & gearing ratio, which Is net debt divided by total capitat plus net debt. The GCompany includes within net
debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings including any finance cost thereon, Yrade and other payables, less cash and bank balances. Capital
signifies eqully as snown id the balance stieef plus net debt,

During thia yesr, the Company strategy was to maintain gearing. The gearing ratios as at June 36, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

2017 2016
_. Rupess Rupees
Long term borowing 517,061,457 815,613,466
Cash and bank balances (15,269,716 | (38,160,212
Nel debts 501,761,741 777453,254
Share capital ‘ 39,000,000 30,000,000
General teserves 150,000,000 150,000,900
Loan from directors 146,323,065 -
Unappropriated profit 1,025,347 329 631,668,722
Total equity 1,352,671,204 811,668,722
Total Capital 1,864 463,035 1,569,121.876 :
Gearing Ratio 0.27 0.4% q_
91
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Tie Gompany fnances fls expanzinns projEcs Brough aguty, Bortwings and irandgement of s working eapiial ih 2 view 1o madintaining an
apfeopiiata mix batwiasna varous sowrces of financs o minimiza sk

3.8 Dperational RBisk
Operation Ask is the of diract o indirect Iss arising from a wide variefy of cquses assodiated with processes, technolagy and infrastrusturs
supporting ths Company's eperations sither internaly within the Company or extemally at the Company's senrices providers, and from axismal
factor other than cradif, market and liquidity risk such as those arlsing from legal and regulatory requirements acd generally accepied
standards of investment management behaviour, Opsrational risks arisa from all of the Company's activities.

The Company's objsctive is.to manage operational dsk so as 1o balance lirniting of financial iosses and damags 1o iis reputalion with achieving
ils objectiva of gengrating retums for staketiolders.

The primary responsibility for the develepment and implemantation of controls over cperational risk rests with the board of directors, The
responsibility encompasses the control in the following areas:

- requirement for eppropriate segregation of duties belween vasicus function, rofes and. responsibilities;

- requirsment for the reconcillation and monitoring of kansaction’;

- dempliance with reguiatory and other lagal requiraimant;
docurmentation of entrol and procedures;

- requirernent for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and adequacy of eoniral and procedures to address the risk identified;

- ethical and husiness standard; and

- risk mitigation, including insurance where this effective.

- senior management ensures that the Company's staff have adequate training and exparience and fosters. effectiva communication related to
pperational tisk management,

32. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All transactions invelving related parties arlsing in the normial course of business are candiicted at arm's length. The related parties and sssoclated
undertakings comprise local assoclated companies, staff retireraent funds, directors and key management personnel. Transacticris with rofated
parties during the year, if any, disclosed elsewhers in these financial stalements, ara-as foliows:

2017 2016
Rupses Rupees
Loan from Directors and family membars
Acquired during the year ' 284,570,000 651,796,000
Repaid during the year 178,000,000 775,806,101
Associated companies '
Sales 193,970,059 148,050,374
Purchasss 237,602,552 381,689,566
Rent 7,860,000 360,000
33 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Mumbar of emiployees as at June 30 1,561 786
Average number of employees during the year 1,174 679 @.

34 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
The coinparative figures have bean rearanged and/or reclassified, wheraver necessary, for the purpose of comparison in the financiaf stelements,

35 GENERAL _
35.1 Figures have been rounded off lo the nearest rupees, untess otherwise stated. 17 a@T ROt
35,2 These financial statements were authorized for fssue by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on i

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.3.4 Audited Financial Statements of Master Wind Energy Lim-
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MASTER WIND ENERGY
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORTHE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
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AFFERGUSON&CO,

AUDTTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed belance sheet of Master Wind Energy Limited (the
‘cornpany’) as at June 30, 2017 dnd the refated profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income, cagh flow statement and statement of changes in equity together
with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we stale that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

It is the responsibility of the company’s management to establish and maintain a system
of internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with
the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance,
1084, Our responsibility is Lo express an.opinion on these staterents based on our gucit,

We conducted onr audit in accordance with the auditing standards as apphcable in
Palistan, These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
ceasonable assurance about whether the above said statemerts are free of any material
imisstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing
the aceounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as,
svaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We beligve that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report
that:

{(a)  inouropinion, proper books of account have reen kept by the company as reguired
by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

(i} inour opiniom

(i  the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Or dinance,
1984, and ave in agreement with the books ef account and are further in
accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

Gi} the expenditure ineusred during the year was for the purpose of the
company’s business; and

{(#)  the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred
during the year were in accordance with the objects of the company;

i

A, B BERGHISON & 0O, Chartered Accowntants, a membar firm af the P nehoork
25 U Aziz Avene, Cunal Baark, Gulbarg-V, P.OBox 30, Lahore-54660, Pakistan
el vom Fan)} a5t s868-7L F 3577 S7dpeat Faxs w0z (42) 3677 5754 unow, prc.Lonypk
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AFFERGUSON&CO.

(¢}  inouropinion and tothe best of ourinformation and according to the explanations
given to us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flow statement and
statement of changes in equity together with the noles forming part thereof
conform with approved aceounting standards as appleable in Pakistan, and, give
the information required by the Compunies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner 5o
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the compuny’s
affairs as at June 30, 2017 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, its cash
flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and '

(dy in our opinion, no akat was deduetible at source under the Zakat and Ushy
Ordinance, 1080 (XVII of 1980).

{ rrered Aceonntants

Laboyre, August 25, 2017

Engngement Partner: Muhammad Masood
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MASTER WIND ENERGY LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCQUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2047

Haleg-nst

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Criber ncome

Finuance eost

Profit belfore taxation
Tanation

Profit/(loss) for the year

———theanrermlooles 1 to 36 form an imtegral part of these financial statements,

4

e QAP Sy o

Chief Execulive
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Note

15

6

17

8

19

20

2087 2016
Rupees Rupees
1,723,823/193 -
{5423,228,046) -
14,200,595,147 -

(77,110,971} (97,218,247}
44,009,570 41,557,061
{557:203,319) {201,865)
610,200,427 4,243,945

{(7,546,532) {9,450,044)
602,743,845 “(5,216,608)

A;’ g,

Director
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MASTER WIND ENERGY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

2Oy Bl
Rupees Rupees
Profit/Quss) for the year 602,743,845 (5,218,6935)
Oiher- comprehensive incomes
Trems thot nery be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Tterns ot will not be récassified subsequerily to profit or loss " -
Total comprehensive incoma/(loss} for the year 602,943,845 (5,216,695

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements,

A

Chief Executive Director
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MASTER WIND ENERGY LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

2017 2018
Notes Rupees Rupeaes
Cash Alows frot operating activities
Cash generated from operations 21 1,761,556,314 232,853,500
lony Lerm prepayments-net = (23535,801)
Finanes cost pald (682,4215,060) 8,166)
Tneome tax paid {19,549,710) (6,004,757
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,0059,5885,535 234,548,782
Cash flows from investing netlvities
Tixad vapital expenditure TL,a10,805,073) | (7,440.584,254)
Profit on bank deposits received 34,617,498 »
Met ensh eutflow from Investing activities (3.275,703,675) (7,440,384,204)
Lash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Jong term finances acgaired 3,114,600,000 7.515,000,001
Repayment of long term flimnces  {p23,468,514) -
Met cashioflow Feons Ananeing aetivities 2,802,131,486 % 511,000,001
Net inorsase to cush and cash squivalents ©,6%6,013,340 297,144,459
Cash and eash squivalents of the beginning of the year 415,170,030 18,090744
Exchange iosses on cash and cash eguivalents (242,337) {46,203)
Cash and easl equivalents at the end of the year 14 1,090,041,059 415,570,090
 The enpexed notes 1o 30 form an integral part of these financial statements,
4 "y — 8D
Chief Executive Director
190
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MASTER WIND ENERGY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE g0, 2017

Bupees
Issued, Revenuareserves
subseribed and (accopnidated loss)/ Total
paid up share ur-appropristed
capital profit
Balance ag.on July 4, 2015 4,379,680,000 (21,466,571) 1,552,183,7209
Loss for the year - ' G605l (52696)
E Ether somprebensive nenme for the year - - -
“Total go;qp%ehan&ive loss for the year “ (5,216,605) (5,216,605
Total coniributions by and distributions
to owners of the company yecognised

diveetly i cquity - - -
Balanes ugon June 30, 2015 3,373,650,000  {26,682,960) 3,346,%‘;»‘:@34
Brofit for the your - F 602,743,348 F02,743,545
Othier comprehensive facome for the yeay - - -
Total comprehensive ineome for tha year - fioz,743,845 602,741,848

- Toipl contributions by and distribirtions
t ownery of the company recognised

directly i eguity - - -

Balance as on Jone 30, 2017 9 57 650,000 T Er6,060,870 3,540, 710,879

The amesed notes 1 to 30 form an infegcal part of these financial statements,

) * 7 £~ H’\
/p(\ mﬁm (\99“ (/g {f}z lﬂ S

Chief Execntive Director
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MASTER WIND ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'TS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

1 The eompany and its sctivities

Mastor Wind Brergy Limited (the 'company’) wag lusorporated oo May 03, 2005, a3 4 private Tomited eompany under the
Corrpanies Qrdinance, 1084, The eompany fas been converted from private to pubtte Hoited company with effect from July oy,
o011, Tha wegistered office of fhe company is-sitmated at Master Houss, 54 Daral Aman. Co-Cperative Housing Soeluty, Shahrah--
faieal, Kavacht and the company’s wind power plant has been set vp st Jhimpir, Distriet Thutta, Sindh on land that is leased 1o
the somnpany by Allernative Energy Development Boned (ARDD'), Government of Pakistan,

- THe sempany’s princpal shjsetive is 1o casuy on the business of supplying general elevtric powar and to setnp and operate wind
power generation. projects to gevsvate, acamnnlate, distrilute and supply elestricity.

The tompuy has set up o wind power station. of 52.60 MW gross capacity st the ahove mentioned lueation ansl achisvad
Cormmersial Oporations Date (CDDY) on Getober 14, 2016. The company's 1aniff fias boen determiined by National Hlectric Powey
Rogulxtory Authinity (WEPRA) througls pxder dated April 23, 2014, The company has an Energy Furchase Agreemant {ELAT
with 1 sole eustonier; National Transmission and Despatch Company Limited {NTDCY) for twenty years which commeneed fom
the COD.Furthar, NEPRA has Issued a ‘Generation License' to the company on Decernber 26, 2011 for a Lo of twenty years
wltich sommented Bom. the CODL

a Basis of preparation

=] Phese Fnancial statements hava heen prepared in actordance with approved secounting, standards @ sppliedbls in
Paleistan. The Companies Orclinance, 1984 has been repenled after the enastment of the Cotnpanies Ast, 2017, Howaver, ag
alicwed by the Securities and Exchangs Comnlssion of Paldstan (SECP') vide Cireular Ne. CLD/CCD/PR(11) faoty daterd July 20,
ey g farther darified through its press refease dated July 20, 2017, cortpanies whaze finaneial year, includfng qusoterly aud
ather interim period, dloses on or hefore Juns 30, 2017, shail prepare finaneial statements in aceordance with the previsions of
Drpanies Ordinance, 1984, Accordingly appreved aceounting standards comprise of stch Imternational Finanelal Regporting
Standards (TFRSe  issved by the Internatienal Accounting Standards Board (TASB) and Isiamio Fnancial Avcounting Slandsrds
CTRASSY lssned by Dnsfitute of Chartered Aecountants of Pakistan ag are notified under the Companies Ordinancs, 1984, fthe
Drdinanee) provisions of and directives issued under the Ordinance, Wherever the vequirements of the Ordinance v divectives
fmpad by SECP differ with the reguirements of [FRSs, or IRASs, the requivements of the Crdinance or the requirements of the

safd direrves prevail.

R itial application of stindards, amendments or an Interprefation to existing stundards
PP » T 1

Tz Following amendoients to existing standards have been publislied that are applicable to the company's fimancial statements
covering annmul periods, beginning on or after the following dates:

234 Stmadar&s, amendments to published standards and interpretations that sve effoctive in thy

{ervtair standards, amendments and nterpretations to approved accounting standartls are effective in the exrvent year bt are
congdernd not to be relevant or tu have any significant effect on the company's operations (although Uy may affect the
Avecunding for fisture wansactions and events) and are, therefore, not detailed ju these financial statements.

2.8 Exomption from applieability of certain Interpretations to standards

SECP through SRO 24(T}/2012 dated January 16, zo12 has granted exemption from the application of Intevautional Financial
Ruporting Intoerprelation Committes (IFRIC) 4 '‘Deternsining whether an Arvangament contains a Lease’ aad IFRIC 12 Service
Cancension Arranigements' to all companies, However, the S8ECP made it mandatory to disclose the fmpaet of tha application of
BRI 4 or TFRIC 12 o the yesults of the companies. This torpretafon provides puidance on determining whether
appangements tat do not take the legal form of a lease should, nonetheless, he accounted for as a lease in accordance with. FAS 17,

"Lonsws',

Under [FRIC 4, the consideration required to be made by the lesser for the vight to use the dsset is tir be aceountes] for @ a
fnance lease under Interpational Accounting Standard (TA8) 17 'Leases’. The company's wind power plants eontrol due o
purclnse of tofal putput by NTDC appers to fall wder the scope of IFRIC 4. Consequently, if the company were to iligw 1FRIC -
4208 148 - 17, the effect on the financial statemants would be as follows:

.
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De-recognition of property, plant gndd eguipment

Recogniticn of lesse debtor 11,664, 865,018

Inereage in we-nppropristed profit at the

bezinning of the yesr -
Tereabe tn proflt for the year 227, A5 00%
Incrpase in bu-approptisted profit at the end af ths year ﬁ,ﬁ ;3:2*"0;,4@3

- Gtandards, amendirents and interpretations o existing standards Ehal ave not yéf effertive and
Bl have not baen early adopted by Hie cornpany

There are certain standsrds, amendments s the approved avecunting standards and interprotations that are mandatory for the
ornpany's actonnting perinds hegbaning on or aftér July 1, 2017 but are considéred not fo be relevant oe & have any significant
uifect onthe comiamy's operations and are, thersfure; not detailed in these finaneial statpmenty.

G Bagiz of measoremaent
Bk These fuancinl stotements have been propared wnder the kistarical cost convention.
1. The cormpany’s signifisant aceounting policies are stated in vole 4. Not all of these significant policies require the

management to otake difficult, subjective or complex judgment ov estimates. The following iy intended to provide so
yndaretunddig of the policies the memagement considers eritical heeause of their complexity, judginent of estimation involved tn
their applestion. and el bipast on these findueial stateraents, Estimates and judgments are continually evinated. and are
twged on historicnd expevienve, induding espectations of future events that mre believed o be rensonabla under the
piemestances. Thess Judgrments involve gssoymiptions or estimates in respest of Arture events and the actual rasulte may differ

from theseeatimates that have been explaived as follows :
%) Usefil Hees aad vesidoal values of property, plant aad equipment
The eumpany reviews the useful Hves and residual values of property; plant and equipment on regulyr basis. Any chane v

estimates in future yeirs rmight affect the emryivg amounts of the respective iters of property, plant and equipment with a
correspending sifeet on. the depreciation chavge and impairment.

A 4 Changs Bi nceounting estimate

Duridieg the year, the company’s manageirent has carried out a comprehensive review of the expected pattern of consurnption of
the friure economtie Denefits smbodied in eeviain assets znd a5 a result of this review, bas revised Hy depreciution method for
sueh ssmals, Previonsly, the company depreciated its furniture and fixtuees, computer equipment, office equipment and vehigles
s the sedusing balance method over theiy estimated uzeful Hves. Now, the company charges deprociation on these nssets based
o the steaight Hine method: aver thale estintoted remaining nseful Hves, Such a change has been accounted for as a change in an
sevounting estimate in accordance with ¥AS 8 "Accounting Policles, Chatgey in Accounting Estimuies and Frrorg The alTect of
tais change in the asccounting sstimats on the profit before taxation fur the year ended June 30, 2017, curying amovnt of
aperating Faed sssets oy ab that date and future profits before taxstion i not matevial hence, bus not been detailed in these
fhiancial statements.

G Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting polickes adopted in the preparation of these financial stataments are vet ot below. These policles bave
Baen consistently applied to all vears presented.

gk Faxntion

Current

The peofite and patug of the company derived from elecirls powsr generation ave exampt from tox in terms of Clauss (152} of Pait
1 of the Sseead Seedula to the Inceme Tax Ordinanes, 2004, subject to-the conditions and limitations provided therein.

i
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Inder chanse (11A) of Part [V of the Second Schaduleto the Invome Tax Ordinance, 2001, the eorpany is alsy exempt fron: levy
of minhmn fax oh tanover' under seetion 115 of the Ieome Tax Ordinance, 2001 Howevar, full provision is mﬁdﬂ i _11’3'3 proft
anel T ageount on income from sources net covered under the above clauses ab curvent rates of taxation after taking into

aeconnt tx avedits and rebates avaitable, ifany.

Deferred

Deferred tox is aceounted for waing the bajanes sheat lability methed i respect of all temporary differeness axdsing from
JiFerenees hebwaen the carrying rmuount of 2ssets and Habilities in the Granciel statementy and the vortespunding tax brsey used
in the computation of the taxable profit. However, (e deferred tax is oot accounted for it 1t arises Trom Inital vaeognition of an
asset ov Rability i a transaction other than a business combinatlon hat at the time of transaction neither affects sceounting noe
tasableprofit or loss, Deferved tax Habilities ave generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences mnd deferved Lax assels
ave vacopnised 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductle temporay
differences, nntsed tax Tosses andd tix creditsean bautilived,

Froforred tox is calonlated 2t the rates it ave expected 1o-apply To the period when the differences reverss based un tax vates that
Tuve boen snasted o substantively enacted by the balance sheet dats, Teferend tax i charged or credited in the profit and sy
aveount, exaept in the sage of items credited or chavged to aquity in vkl case it 1g included i agnity.

fleferred tax has not Geon provided o these financial statements 43 the compiny's management bellaves that the temporary
diffevences will it yeverss in the [oreseeable fature due to the fact that the profits.and gains of the conpany derived fron electsic
power generation are exempt from tax subject to the conditions and Hmitations provided for in terms of danse {132) of Part | of
the Sacond Schedule to the neeme Tex Ordinance, 2001,

1. Employees' retirement bonefits md ather obligations

T yruin fentares of She schemes operated by the company for its einployees are 4s Tollowssy

A3 Defined gontribution plan

Th rompray sperates 1 defined contributory provident fand for all its permanent employess. Contributions are made aguaily by

the company and the employess at the rate of 6.67% per munam of the gross salary subject to completion of mintumm epafifying
pindod of sexvies as determined under the rules of the fuisd,The company hag no further payinent obligntions once the

coptributinns have been pukd.

43 Property, plant and eguipment
R | Dperating fixed assets

Operating fyed assats are stated ot cost less aecumulated depreciation and muy identified impaivment loss,

Mepresiation on 2l items of operating fived assets Is elrrged to profit and loss acconnt on the straight Hne method so a3 fo wiike
off tha ost of 5n asset over its estimater wseful (s at the annual rates mentioned i note 9.1 to these financial statements after

taking {nto acvonat thalr residual values.

The aesely residual vidues and useful Hves ave reviewed, at each financlsl year end, and adjusted if torpact on depreviation is
significant. The compuny's estimate of the residual value of its operating fived assets as at Jung 20, 2037 has not rexquired wy
adjustment a3 s impact iz conskdeged insignificant,

An dsget’s corying amount i weitten dovar fimmediately to its recoversble amount 1f the asset’s earrying amennt §§ grester than
t egtimated recoverable amount (note 4.4).

Subsequent covs are jncluded in the ssset's earrying amoust or recognised ag a separate assel, a8 appropriate, ouly when it is
probable that fature economic benefits associated with the item. will flow to the company and the cost of the item ean be
easared relfably, All other repalr and maintenance eosts are charged to income durizg the peried in which they are insureed,

Tl gain ov doss on disposal or retirement of sn asset reprogented by the difference betwenn the sale proceeds and the carvying
amenat of the asset Is recognized a5 an mcome or £Xpanse.
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4. Capital work-in-progress

ent loss. All expenditure connected with specific assets

Clapitel work-in-progress b siated ut cost lags any fdeptitied impalim
eapitel work-in-progress. These are transferred 1o

tnouvred during fnstallation and construction perfod are carried under
operating fueed assets as and whan these are available for nso.

i e P Major spareparts and stand-by equipment

Hajor gpare parte aid stand by eguipient qualify ag property; plant and sruipment wiren an entity sxpects Hyust: thiem duvig
mope tiax oue vear, Fransfers are made to operating assets category as and when such fems are available for use,

LN tmpairment of non-finaneis] assety

Assols ther have an indefinite useful lfa - for example, gopdvdll or ntangible assets not ready to use - are not sebjest W
amoriisstion and are tested annually for impafrmment, or move frequently if ovenis or changes i siventnstances indicate that i‘ht_fy
wight e impafved, Assots that ave subjeet to amortization dre reviewed for fmpatement whenever events or changes &

sireamstarioss Sndionte that the zasrying ametot may net be vecoverdble. An impampent loss is recognised for the amount by

which the ssset’s carrying amount axceeds itg redoverable amount, The recoverable amount is tha higher of am asset's fale valaz
fowest lgvels for which

fegy -costs o sell and value i1 use, For thie purposes of nssessing fimpalrent, assets are grouped ot the G
there avs separately identifiable cash fows (cash-generating undts} Mon-fuancial assets other than goodwil that suffersd o
inpadrinent aps roviewed for possible reversal of the hnpairsent at each roporting date,

55 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other veceivables

Ailvanees and receivablos are stated jaftially at fair value and subseynently measured at smortised eost using the effactive otarast
eafe malhod less provision for inpairment, i any. Provision for impairment i sstablished wheve there is abjective svidence that
he pompary wilt not be abbe to eollect all mmounts due. according to the orfeinal termse of the receivables, Tha emount of the
provision Is charged to Yie profit or lose. Advances and receivables arewritten off'when considerad irrecoverable.

4.0 Oash and cash equivilents
Cash and cash equivalents includes.cash In hand and with banks on curtesnt sad deposit aceants,

47 Financial nysoly
RN Clrasification

The company classifios its Anancial assete in the fullowisg categories: at faie salue through profit or loss, jeans nnd rzcehvabisg,
available for sale and held to maturity, The classification depends on the purpese for whidh the financial assats were aveptived.
Managerment determines the elassifiention of its fineamcial assety at the time of initial recpgnition,

al Financinl assets at Taie value through profit or loss

Finareeial assels ok fafv value throngl profit ov loss are financial assets held for trading and fingnclal assets desfgnaredpon inital
rdeognition a4 at fair value through profit or lesy. Dervatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated g3
hedges. A fnameial asset i classified as held for trading if acquived principally for the parposs of selling in the short term. Assets
i1 this eategory wre classified ns cursent assets if expected to he settied within twelve months, otherwise, they ere classiffed a8 not-
auEret.

I} Loans and recalvables

Loans ard reosivables nve non-derivative Bnaneisl assets with fixed or determinuhle payments that are not yueted in an active
saarket, They ave included [n cnrrent nssets, except for matarities greater than twalve months affer the balanece shoet date, which
are classified ag non-current ugsets, Loans and racelvables comprise other reccivables and cash and cash equevalents fn the

balwaes shoet,
¢l Available-for-sale finuneinl assets

Availahle-for-sals financial asssts ave non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or ot classified in any of the
sther cutagories. They are fachuded in non-carrent assets unless management intends to dispase of tha investimants within fwelve
months feomn the halance sheet date,
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4 Held to mnturity

Fenancial assels with Bxed or detevritnable payments and fived maturity, where management has the intention and shitity o hold
HH rtarity ave elagsified ae held to maturity and are stated at amortised cost

4078 Reeogrition aod measarement

Al Siasielnl assets are recognised At the thne when the ompany becomng u party to the eontractual provisions of the instrument,
Euzuiny parchases and sales of Hivestments are recognised on trade-date -~ the date on which the company contuits to pyrahase
ov sefl the-azset, Financial assety ave inflally vecogrized at fair value plus transaction costs for all finaneint assets not capricd ok
faly value lreough profit or foss, Financial assets carried at Talr value throngh profit or Ioss are nitiatly revognised at faiy velue
and Yeausseiion cosls are expensed in the proft or loss, Financial assets are derecognised when the vights to receive cash fows
from Phs assels Bave sxpived ar have beep transferred snd the company bas transferved substandially 2 the risks and rewaids of
ownership, Aviilalle-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently enxried af
faie wilue, Loang and receivables and held-te-matarity mvestments ave eapried at amortised cost usiog the offectve tatecest rate

rrnetiind.

GGaing or lusses arising from changes in the fair vulue of the Frencial assets. ot fair vahie through profit or loss' category sre
presonted in the profit o loss in the period fn which they srise. Dividend income from firametal assets at fair value through profit
o Inss is yecommised in the profit or loss as past of other incoma wlien the company's right fo recelva payments {1s estubiished.

Changes I the fair value of seearities classified 2 available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive noome, Whea
saonnities olassifed 18 availnbie-fonesale are zold or fmpaired, the aconmulated faiv value adfustments recognised in aquity are
inetudad in the profit or loss a3 gaing and lossss from fnvestmtent secuvities. Tuterest on available-for-sale seenrities calenlubed
wstng the effective interest mothod iy recognised in the profit or Joss, Dividends on available-fop-sale equity instrunents w
recognized n the profit or loss when the conmpany’s right to reeoive puymenty is astalished,

T fair vahies of quoted investraents ave based gi earrent pricey. I the warket for 1 finaueial ssast is wot active (und for unlisted
sweuritics), the compary measures the investments.at vust Jegy Inmpeinnent in valus, i any,

The cowipany useosses at oach balapes sheet date whether there is objective evidenes that 2 Hrancial asset or o grosp of financial
aagels iy npaiced. IF any such evidence exists for avaifable-for-sale financial assets, the gumulntive toss is removed from equity
ant} rootpmised T the profit orloss, Impairment Insges recozpised. in the proft or luss on equity instruments are tiot reversed
Hlrough the profit or loss, Tmpairment esting of ade debiy and other vecatvableg Is deseribed in note 4.2 to these finsnelal

statempnts,

4.8 Fhrmaeiad Habilities

All Goanial Habilitios are recognised at the tme when the vompany brcomes z parly to the contractual provishons of the
insbrument.

A Bnarcizl Hability jg derecopised whym the obligation under the Hability fs diseharged or canselled. or wxpired. Witers an
sxisvitg fnancdal Hability s replaced by another from the same fender on substantially different terms, or the terms:of an existing
liakility ave substantially wwodified, sueh an exchange or modification s treated as o devecogmition of the orlghual Hability and the
recogmition of a new Babilily, and the difference in respective sarrying amounts is recognised In the profit or loss aceount.

4. Offsetting of financial sssets and fnancial Habilites

Stnaneial assets and financipl listilfitles are offset and the net amonnt is reported in the financial statements only when thers s
legally enforresbls right to set off the recognised amewnt and the company intends either to setthe on o net basis or tu eallse th
assers and fo settle (he lxbitities simultaneously.

G030 HBoreowings

Borewings sre recogmised inifially of falr value, net of transaction costs mewred. Borrowings ara subsequently grated af
amortised cost, auy difference between the proceeds (avt of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the profit
o1 fogs aver tha period of the borrowings using the sffective interest mathod.

b
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Finanpe cosls are acconted for on an acerual basis and. ave shown 13 acerued Ranance wost to the exteat of the amount remalaing
unpaid,

Borigwings are olassified ag current Habilities unless the company has an uncanditional ight to defer settlement of He Habiliey
for al least bwelve months alter the balance sheet date.

il Borrowing costs

Uanersl and specific borrowing costs direetly athributable to the avguisition, construction. or production of eualifying assers,
whish are easets that nocessarily taks a substantiatperiod of thne to get yeady for thair hatended use ov sale, are added 1o the cost
sfthose aspets, wtil such time ne tie assets ave substantially ready for thelr intended uze or sale,

Invpstinent tneorme earitad on the temporaty fnvestment of specific borrowings peuding their expenditure o qualifying sesels is
{Jedured from the horrowing costs eligibla for eapalisation,

Al olires howrowintg costs ave recognised i profit.ox loss in the peviod in which they are intrad,
i 4 Tirade debts und othey receivables

‘Prade delsts md other receivables sre recognized njttally at invoice value, which approsimates fair valug, wd subspguently
mssured 4t amortised cost using the effoctive Interest methad, less provision for kupairment, A provision for impairment of
trade delvts and othier receivables §s ssiablished when there i3 obtective avidence that the company will not be ableto cotlest all
the amosnt dos aocording to the original teems of the recelvable, Signifleant finunelal difficalties of the tlebto, probability that
the defitor will enier banlkvuptey of fnanclal veorganisation, and defanit or Aelingquency in payments are considered indicators
thast the teade debt &s inpaived., The provision is recognised in the profit and loss sceaunt, Wiren o trade debt i uneollectible, & is
wiitten off againgt the provision, Subsequent vecoveries of amourts previously written off are eredited to the peofit aid loss
aeciamt,

413 "rade and vther payables

Trade aud other payebles are recognised inidally at fair valne and subsequently mensured amortised cox: using the effective
fterest meshod, Bxchange gaing and losses arising oy translation in respect of fiabilitles in fovelgn eurveney ave wided fo the
carrying amount of the respective Habilities.

digd Provisions

Provisions are recogaised when; the sompany has 4 present legal or eonstructive obligation as 4 result of past evenls; i 3g
probabie that m outflow of resources shalf be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has haer: reliably estitated.
Provisious 2re not recogoised for fature operating losses.

Wisra thels ave 4 namber of sindlar obligatiuns, the kelihood that an outfiow shall be requiced in sattlemant is determined by
eavsidering Ue viass of obligations as & whole. A provigion is recognised even if the ikelihood of an sutflow with respect to any
s e ineluded in the same chags of obligations may ba small.

Proisione ave measured at the present valus of the expenditires expected to be required to settle the obligation using & pre-tax
vt that refleuts current market assesssnents of the time value of money and the visks speeific to the biiation. The inerease in
the provision due to passege of tima Is recognised as interest expensa,

el Foredgn curreiey trangactons and teanslation

Y} Funetional and presentation enrvency

Trerns intladed inthe Gnancial staternents of the eompay ave treesured using the ecurreney of the primary econainie environutent
in which the company eperates (the functional eurvency}, The financial statements are prasented in Pal Rupees, which s the
companyd Banctivnal and presentation currency,

) Transactions and balancey

Forsgn surraey ransaciions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the datey af the transactions,
Voreign sxchange guins and losses resalting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at yesr-end
oxchunge rates of monetary assots and lubilitles denominated in foreign currencizs are recognised i the profit and loss apeount
weept Tor exchange differences velated to foreign surrency loans oblzined for the sequisition, development and toastruction of
gualifying assets which are capitalised over the period of the lmplementation Agreement in actorddme with 3RU 24(E) /3015
dalgd January 16, 2012 of the SECP.

H
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4t Contingent Habilities

Copthigent liability s disclosed when:

- thewe s o possible ebligalion that arises from past events and whase existerios will he confirmed only by the oceurcence ot on
otertrencs of one or more uneertair ftnre evairts not whallywithin the conteol of the company; or

- thera Js present obfigation that acises from past events but it s not probalila that an outflew of resgirees embodying etonomic

henelits wiil be required to settls the obligation brthe anomt of the ahligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliaidlivy.

T Kevenue pecognition

Revenvo 18 recognised whenitis probubla that the econpmic Tianefits will flow 1o the company and the revenue can he nusasured
relinbly Revenua is measuved at the faic value-of the consideration reeeived by reveivitbls on thie following basis:

Revenue i ateount of enargy by recognised og transmission of electricly to NTRGC on n monthly insis, whereas oo aoeount of
Kem: Project Missed Volume ig recognised when these g due ag invofead when underlying data iy available on monthly baxis.
Moreover interest on delayed paviments by Central Power Parchasing Agenéy Guaranigs Limited(CPPAGY agalnet invoices ig
eognized s wveue when the invoice becomies due o8 per the BPA.

Tnermes on bank deposits is acerued on 3 Hina proporiion basts by reference to tha principal outsianding and the appliedbie rte of
PRI

ERE: Slhinve capital

Ordinavy shares ava classified 15 cquity-wnd recpgnised at their Fapis value, Tneresents] costs directly attcibutabla to the izsua of
wew shates aveshown In squity &9 o deduetion, tet of tax,

10 {enses

The wympany & the lesses:

4,191 Operating leases

{7ass where 3 sigrificant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retainsd by the lessor are classifiad as operating
{gusog Pusnnnts mede upder operating leases {net of any incentives recilyed From the lessor) are chargad to profit and loss
Acopunt on a striight lide bosts over the lease term,

420 Stoves and spaves

Stares and spares are valued prineipally at weighted average cost except for isems irz transit which ape stated afinvoice value plos
ather charges pabd thereon till the balanve sheet date while {tems considered obsolate are carried at nil value,

5 Fasaed, subszribed sud pald up share eapital

This represonts 2,373,850 {2016: 3,373,650) ordinary sheres of Rs 1,000 sach fally paid in cash.

2017 2016
Rupess Rupeos
G, Lomg term finances - secured
Long borra loana from financial mstitutions - loeat - note 6.t 5,456,000,001 2,550,803,601
Long term Toans [rom fnancial institution - foreign « note 6.2 55171,6G0,600 083,060,000
“Totid reveipl 10,627,600,001 75 G00,601
Tnitiad loan fransaction cost (320,940,867) (420,940,867)
L0;306,659:134 7,192,45%134
Smoviisstion of indtisl Josn transaction cost 77,200,133 28,406,748
©10,3063,868,267 7,920,465,882
Bxchange loss 368,054,898 2LTRO,000
10,399,923,165 745,185,882
Repuid dusing the year (n2,468,514) -
WATA5488T 74138530
Turrent portion shown under carrent liahilides (855,438,119 Q87,400,540

3 6402,116,530  7o83vpbaat
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e Tihs vepresests debt fnancing asmennting to Ks 5,458 million obtained from Consortiom of banks comprisiug Hesuan
Bank Limited, Bal Al-Habib Limited, The Banl of Punjab and Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited in pursnance of the Mushariks
Agremment dated February 20, 2015, Tha complete facility of Rs 5,456 million has been availed by the company ag at 3:&1163
sen,zony, The overall finanging is secured against a fivst charge by way of hypothesation over all present and futurs assets of the
companiy. It carrles markeup, payable quagterly, at the vate of thres monihs Karachi Inter-Bank Offer Rate (KIBOR) plus 3% per
annnn. Tie effective rate charged during the year on the ontstanding balanea 15 .44 % per annum {2016 1 5.1% per antung). As of
Sung 30, 207, the prinelpal amaunt is rapayable fa nineteen unegual semi anunal installments ending o August 15, 2026
aceardance with the amortization schedule, During the current year an amount of Rs £13.9¢ miflion was repaid in the monih of
Feliryngry 2017

6.2 This represents Tong term fmance facflity of USD 49.6 millivn obtained from OFIC for the constyuction of the wind
pewer plant it Shimphe i accordance. with, fhe Finanes Agresment dated March 09, 2015, The complete fcility of USD 42.6
silliens { oquivaient to Rs 5,063 milllon) [2016. : USL 47.6 million (equivaient to Rs 4,663 million)] bas been availed by the
ity 88 ofJane 30, 2007, The gverall financing s secuved against a fest-charge by way of hypothecation over all present snd
Tt sasans of the company. It carries mark-up, payable quacterly, at the rate of three months London Inter-Beak Offtred Rato
(LIBORY plus 2,9% OPIC guarantes fee per annwn and 0.3% alternste besis maintenance fes per annuni.The effective vrie

chuarged during the vear on the cutstanding balance is 4.82% per antium (20161 317% per annum) . A of June 30, 207, the

peincipal amonang is repavalle in nineteen unequal semi anaual fostallments ending on August 15, 2026 i accordanee with the
amortisatien scheduls provided by OPIC.During the corrent yser an wnonnt of Rg 108.47 million was repatd in the menth of

February go17.

noly B

Rupees Rupees
7 Trade and other payables
Creditors 1,4064,444:408 sn,548,156
Avernsgd linbilities 5,455,450 FO,BO0
Lasnder fees amnd charges pryalle 2,851,771 T894
Payahble to Frovident Fund ~note 71 58,332 &4;445.345
Pavabie o smployess « 13,0080
Subes tax payakile 107,380,410 5194
Sindh sales rax pyable Boo 3047
Worliers' predit participation fund »note R 40,514,500

1 B0G, 701,695, 5&5&,66;3;6'@{;'}

Tl A sepagate fand has been created in the month of May 2017, daring the current year, Mejor amount has been transferved
te the fund and balance was transferred subsequentl to vear end. Muarkup af the rate of 4.5% (2016 4.5% to 5%) par anmiem has
bewn chavged ou the funds wiilized by the company. Disclosures requived by the Filth Schedule to the Companies Ordinanie, 1084

arn detdiled in noie oy,

2017 zoiG
Rupees Huptes
Pk Workers' profit parteipation fugd
Opening balance - -
Provision for the year -riote 138 30,514,521 -
Closing balancs . 50,514,521 -

25 Frovisien for Workers' Welfare Pond has vot bezn made sinve all the available taxable profits were adjusted against mx

deprociation aud the company has no taxable ineome,

%
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Uontingeneies and cormitoents

Contingeneies

trrevocable. lotter of credit of USD 1733 million equivalent to Rs 181,566 million (2016: 115D 1753 wnillion
equivalant to Rs 181,046 miflion) in favour of NTDC ander section 2.7(b) of the EFA;

For lax years 2015 and 2016, the tax authorltes raised an aggregata demand of Rs 3.799 million whupaly the
“Umabsarbed Depragidtion” and “Depreciation Alluwance' ware Sisallowed for the renson that vormendement of
Iustiess had not happened. The company has patd an amount of Bs 1,930 miillion agakust the orders to avedd any
coereive nensures,

‘T comipany is contesting the above orders before CIRA and ag not mada any provision agaimst the whave
Aemands as the management is confident that the wWiimats outcome of the appeals would be in faver of e
company, inter alix on the basis of the advice of the tax consultant ancl the relevant law and the facs;

During the cureent year proceedings under Section 176(1) of the Ineorme Tax Ordinmtes, 2001 for tax year 20135
were initiated by the Depuly Commissioner Infd Revenus (DCIR) . Later, the DCIR issued shuw eanss notics
nader section. 151014) of the Income Tax Ovdinance, 2001 wherein he contenled that the company hay aot
dedueied tix amonbng to Bs 26,517 milllion on payments of ks 134,585 million. No further correspondence hay
been reecived from the tax department in His regavd tll date. The company has paid an amonnt of B3 9.54
wmillinn eut-of thetotal amount §9 a8 to avold any coareive rgasires, )

Bagad on advice of the comipany's tax advisor the monagement belevey that thers are ynexltcriows growada 1
guppork the compuny’s stanee in respest of this mutter. Consequently, no provision for this aeount has been
wadein these financial slatemants.

Comunitinents

The company has an agreement with Zheflang Husdong Engloeeriag Sclence & Technology Development Co.
Limited (Zheljang’t for the Cpemtions and Maintenance {0 % M'} of the wind power plant for a peried of twe
years from the Taking-Over Data (TOL'} as per tering of the © 3¢ M Ageeement, Furthermore, the company hes
also signed an O & M Agresment for a terin of elght years starting from the end of the above esytoned
Zheijang's © % M Agreement, with a cousortium between O Wind Energy GMBH and General Elpetrie
Inlernational Ine (hereinafter veferred to as the 'Consortiont’), Undar the terms of both above mentioned O &M
Agreements, the company {8 requived to pay a monthly fised O & M fee which shall be adjusted anneally to
aceount for the effect of inflation on the basis of indexation mechatism mentivned in the O &M Agresmants,

“The anounk of fature payments vader operating leases and the period in which these payments will beecine dus
are a5 follows:

HOA 2016

Bupees Rrpees

H527.004 -

$.ailure than sos year bt not latey than fve years 11,264,000 GT5AS

{avtey than five years 77,015,671 75891471

9.

Go806705  9mA06.705

Property, plant sl equipment

Operating Gxed assets - npte il 11,454,553,178 550,973

apiial workdneprogyess - note 5,2 2,772,500 101,104,050

Majar spare parts and stand-by squipment - H018.9.3 0,530,486 -

i

650,056,164 10,53L644.004
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&1 Orperatiog fived naseks

CO8r

Baluria 1 af July 02 2015
svddithing during e yime
Balance s al Jung 30, 2016

Bulance #s av July 01, 2016
Additions during the year:
«*Pransisry fum enpifal
wrk-inprogress (ke 9.a.14)
~ Dhineel ndditiocs
- Exchinge foss cupitatised thorw g,01)
Bokten ey 62 Jurie 30, 2007

DRERECIATION

Galunee as al July o eoty

Chiarge for theyearinoke ¢4,
Ralanen as al Jugs 40 2016
Bulance 15 athudy o1, 201§

Chmge for the vear (note 9.1,2)
Bakanes us Al Jine 4, 2017
Btookvalue s at June g, 2016

Kook vedue a5 st June o, 206

sl dleprectation rate 2%

n

Rupaeg
Huitdirgr o Flantand Frzpinreared Cohipnee . P
" N : o s, [ATS o i e
Teanchold lanl e ROt fisturys ijiEpmant: M eyigment Vehicles Cotal

£35,000 F:726,58n 1073250 768 86,921 2.840,987 13,576,470
- N JipBaghs 291704 1030100 29,719,565 47,651,580
435,600 5746585 5156194 30408 LSS $AE60.552 35,:16%,)56
435,000 5726,588 555,194 b, 0% 1,417,003 113,560,552 §1380,156
3460158 179364970 - | - RREE AN
- - “,04,082 b5, thl AT Fuen H,01,8599-
7,158y 15,208,245 - - - 15:334.808
55107, 2i1h 14,814.855252 ATLRA 3.999.084 420,204 2,555 918, Frass
20,000- ERETR [ELtH aB.oux u240 4abhy26 Fiddtygng
ASodon- $37:00% it _i,ub1plo . 143,058 5106315 Faihagm
Gy, b 1,689,064 F16,u28 LSO 154,430 5,508,861 10,310.18_2
59,600 £682%.604 THh02B L5ooun RER L] 2,606.860: 1,820,184
LA%A540 443,473,283 g7uBe L3aaRg 388,059 5595739 . I55,200.795
1563110 T5E85.917 Lh56.200 LEA0I #BauBy Lo ot 46,119,577
365,400 3043525 4448168 LT 962,595 . 2?‘9_53.501 A0,53%.974
Shadyind Mgfbag, 456 5442967 RRECA] 2465807 A alngs 1045 L5017

5 i 15 20 13 X4
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g.2.1  This vapresents the exchange difference on the forefon cocrency loan, as referred fo in note & Yo these finaneid
SECP (as fully exploined nnote 4.15 to

staterments, sapitalised In accordance with BRO 24(F}/ 2012 dited Jannary 16, 2012 of the ; ;
These finansial statements), Had the company followed 143 21 "The Tffects of Changes in Forvign Sxchange Rates”, the affeet on

thi fimancial statements woald be as [ullows:

2047 gord
Ruypeas Hupees

Thoermass 51 the book value of property, plant and eqaipnient {35,271,00%) -
Decreasse in cost of sales 63,895 "
Tnexeass e other expeises (15,334,898} -
Desrense i profit for the year and wa-nppropriated profit £15,27L003) -
g3 Tha depeéciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales ~oke 14 448,921,518 -
Unslineated sspenditare- Capital work <in- progress - nole g.2.2 1,520,949 £024.074 -
Adurinfstrnitve expenges ~notey 2’95?‘5-28 £:449, 505

455299795 1ATHTY
9.1.8  There was nodisposal of operating fived asyets during the cursent and previous years.
G Capital worlein-progress {{TWIP)
Advances it gappher 2,77%.500 433,385,918
Phont and machinery and el works « $,229,041,657
Unallovated expenditure ~nete .22 - Bay,Buabq8

2,772,500 10,495, 10:4,030

9.2t The reconciliation of the saviying aromt I8 as folluws:
Opuing balanee 19,491,104,030 5929,558008
Additions during the year 1,500,744,910 7,461,517,007%
‘Transfaes during the year -nple gl £11,599,066,440) -
Closing badenos 2,772,508 10,462 10,050
RN Tnatlecated expendimre
Ul seated expenditure ineurvad upio COD:
Bularies, wages and other bunefits 113,235,959 101,738,502
Travelliug and conveyance 52,845,996 48,535,099
Telephone sndcommunication 2,704,841 250,597
Consultancy charges 180,445,294 170,781,330
Lagal and professional charges. 26,304,185 26,174,183
T and subseription 16,662,020 15,832,962
Rual 4,092,112 408,575
Velicle running sxpenses 2,136,890 LG8, 93
Depreciation on operating fived asuely -noteg.1,2 g 218,721 FEGRTFR
Printing and stagionery 271,404 FFEA0Y
Searily expenses 10,229,997 10,065,997
Repairs and meintenance 1L,375:504 LDLGTS
Coavried forwaed 420,416,526 201,104,160

A
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o

2017 201
Ritpees Raupees
Brought {orwsrd 420,416,526 341,196,150
Tnsursnee 777216,877 0By
Batectainmet . - YahES
Mot mark-ng on long tevm finances - aote 5. 2.8 483,004,818 34,084,832
Exchungs loss 20,730,000 B 720,000
{ilivies 838,818 -
Lemdor's fees and charyges 47,683,612 9.4 17,080
Others 1797,073. 1,561,448
L044,867,724 "Bz, BoGABL
Zale of trisl production (67.448,099) *
To77a19,652 Ro 8RBT
“Pransiervad bo pperating fived assets duving the year
a% pork of e overall vansfes from CWIP {g77.419,652) -
- Ho7,826.40
1.8 Netmark-up o long term finsnees
This ts corgposed off
Wark-mp on leng ferm flnance 401,900,154, BT
Bitezest acoee on ternporary fnvestments of burrowings (6,271,336) (254,844
485;6'951,818' “Gog,ha.302
G Major spave parts and stand-by eguipment
Eipening balaee N B
Addiions during the year 986,510,486 _ ~
losing balanee 66,530,486 -

9o Thess major spare party znd stand-by equipment are in the possession and sontrol of the company's O & M contractos,
Zhejlang Huadong Engineering Scizncs & Technology Devalopiment Co. Limited {the Operatox), for smooth and uninterrupted
aperation and maintenance of the company's plant as per the tevms of the ¢ & M Agreement dated Pebruary 1, 2015 T a period
of tw yewirs from the Taking Gver Date. Furthermore, the sowpany has also signed ai O & M Agreament tated Fehruary 4, 2015
For o Lewm of sight vears starting from the end of the above mentioned the Oporator's O & M Agreement, with the General Blecitic
Infernatienal e (GE) and these ftems will be handsd over to the GE on expiy of the Operator's O &M Agresuisat, As per the
reerms of the ahove mentioned O & M Agreements, the Cperator's and, subsequ ently, the GE will replenish and hand over thess
Stervs e the company on the expiry of thelr respective O & M Agreemeits,

2017 2oib
Ripees HEupres
ich Long term prepaynients
Prepsid vent - note 101 ) - 400,204
- 3,749,204

tond This reprosents prepald portion of rentals to AEDS for a period upto January 31, 2018 for u a0 year lease of 1,408 acres of
land, sitnated in Jhivapir, Distriet Thatta, The aforementioned land bas been alovated 1o the company by AEDS out of the teial
L] Tenaed far & perlod of thivty yesrs from Govermmnent of Pakistan {'GoP"} Jor Wind Power Geueration Projects under the
Muster Eanse Dewd dated February 11, 2008, The company, in order to gain uccess to the land for comdneting feasibitity/ather
asgociatad stadies has signed an Agreement to Lease with AEDB dated October 28, 2008. The formal sub-lease agresment was
signed dated Jannary 23, 2015, The term of the site sub-lsase has commenced from this date and will end with the term of the
B4, During the current year the propaid portion of rent was transfered to corvent asgets,
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11, Srores and spares

Nl of the femy of stoves and spates are of interchangenble nature and can b used as machine spires or cormned as giores.
Aveordingly, 1t is not practicable to distingnish stores from spares nntil thele actual usage. Moreover; slores and spares nelnds
fravme wiich oy result in fxed capital expendituee hut are not distinguishable.

These slores and spares are in the possession and conkrol of the company's O & M contractor, Zhejlang Huadoog Enginestiag
Selenca &% Teshnology Development Co. Linjted {the Operator), for smovth and unintersupted operation and maintenanes of e
porripany's plant as per the terms of the O & M Agrepment dated Pebroary 1, 2015 for n period of two years from the Taking Over
fiate. Turthermore, the company has alse signed an O & M Agreement dated Febriuary 4, 2015 for a teom of eight years sta rting
fomihe end of the above mentioned the Operater's O & M Agreement, with the GE and thess items will be handed overto the GF
an expivy of the Operator's O 5 M Agvesmsaent, As per the erms of the above mentioned O & M Ageecents, the Operator andt,
subsequently, the GE will replenish and hand over these fems to the company on the sxpiry of thele respective O M

Abramneing,

2087 2oyt
Rupoas fapees
i, Trade debts
‘Feade debts - considered good -note 13,1 470,662,720 -

£2.1 Tligss ropresent trade receivables from NTDC and aye sonsidered good. These are secured by way of guarantee tenvied by
Cherprmment of Paldstar under the Implementation Agreement dated January 12, 2015 and ave in the normal covrse of buginess
and Mtevest froe, Furthermore, these are subject to markup on delay payments vnder the Bnergy Purchese Agreement dated
Jamary 16, 2od5 at the vate of thiree months KIBOR plus &.5% per anwun.

2GE7 EOLD
Hupees Bupessd
155 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other veteivables
Advanens 1o eraployess-considered good -note 151 799,991 FRthaya
Adrvarreey to others- considered good 12,000 48,500
Tasucanes claim receivable - considered good - 74594,780
Clairns roppvarable from NTDC for pass through Hems:
« Workery' profit paticipation fund ~Tinke 152 30,514,522 -
- Bindh Infrastractaee development coss - ukg 13.3 91,048,398 91,045,908
Propayrenis -
15 1589|32‘§ -

- Prepaid insurnace

+ Land ledse rentab-currant portion ~nole 10.4 1,448,795 -
Profit revefvalle on bank deposits 15,663,408 .
Balanaces with statutory authorily:

- Bales tax receivable -net - 179,900,183
155056937 ..., 27980013
1.1 This ineludes advange given to divector of the company amounling to Rs H00,006 { 20106 NI
a0y woi6
Rupees Hinpeus

132 Workers' Profit Participation Fond

Opening halonee - -
Aperued lor the year ~note 7.2 0,514,528 .
30:514,52L -

[ — o

Tlostng alance

Under sextion 0.2{a) of the EPA with NTDC, payments to Worlers' Profit Partivipation Pund ave recoverable from NTDC a5 a
pags throngh it

1.3 Thiz ammound repressns Siwdls Mmftastrwcture Development Goss levied on the import of plant sud machinesy, As per
approved upfront tariff by NEPRA, it is sllowed to be recovered from NTDC as a pass through item in twelve squal monthily
instalments following the COD. Turing thes eurrent yid no liporks wers made aod no infragiroeture cess was being paid.

/e\“?‘ﬁ
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201 o1l

Rupees Buapees
14 Cash and bank balances
Cash in hapd 62,255 581,88
{Lagh al bank
- Ui greent aceanat - v B4l
- O saving acepunts . . )
Loeal currency ~note 14.1 T 1L,0Y5,927,541 n34,508,850
Foveign eurrenty: ~0n0te 14.2 1,994,95,%43 | | Fi,04 8,352
090,878,784 AMLE7LIOL
3,000,041,039 415,170,050

r.) Profiton balinces In saving aceounts ranges From 5.75% o 4% (20160 4.5% to 593 pat anmnu.
19.%  Profiton balinces in-saving accounts ranges frome0.a% to o.95% feot 0.2% to 0.85%) pet annun.

15 [hesers exclasive of sales tax of Re 291,694 million,

2017 A
Ruapees Hupees

16, Cost of saleg
Balusios, wazes i wther benefits ~nbte 15,1 G019, 550 -
Traveliing and conveyance 1,135,286 -
Tedephions and communication, 131,555 -
Clecirieity rongumad fn-honse 4,572,736 -
Cansaitaney oo 20,030:433 “
Faus and mibseription 45,117 -
Land lense reatls L739,203 .
Vohiele pupning exponssy 612,016 «
Deprretdution oy operating fixed assets -note 9.1.2 448 821,318 *
Secqrity expenses 230,000 -
(iTiee axponses 154,303 -
Stationery, printing and postage 21,164 -
Enlertaimmant 214,520 -
Tnsaranes 33445759 e

523,223,040 -

16.1  Saliides, wages and ofher henefits include Rs 356,716 {2016 ; NI} in respect of provident fund.

(78 Administrative expenses
falaring, wages and piher benefits - note 373 43,708,707 19,585,006
Lignl ansd profarsional charges L215,912 L33547
Consaltanny charges 4,078,514 -
[dlies LO20,000 2,408,140
Sepurity eNpenas v A00,422
Stationery, printing aad postage 820,644 AFLE0L
Respairs and mainiensnce 146,591 Hab,aio
Office expenses 7745 EREL AL
Tesvelling and conveyance 11,487,778 585,77
Vehivle running and matnienan cs B63,808 492,464
Biges and subscoiption 119,314 L5760
Commupion o axpenses 1,494,484 318,561
Eaterisipment 43,378 11,229
Exchange loss -gote 172 242,387 48,203
Thsuranes 945,234 us,701
Deprecialion on operating fxed assely «nipte 9.1.4 957Ee8 2,449,203
77,110,971 35 21,247

P Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs 2,203,573 (2016 2 Re B4L,ag6] n respect of provident fund.

vr This sepreseuts sxchange foss on foretgn ewTency lransactions and franslation of foreln curvency batances other than
foreign cusroney loan,

P
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18, {her ineome
fnieowre frow finaretal assely
Taeome on bagl deposits

T Finance cost

Kark-p on long term finances-soimired

Gank chargns
Markap o Provident Fund
Ampetizston of loap-transaction cost ~nols 6

Lender's faes and charges

24 Paxgiion

Cuprent tax
-For fe year
~Prior your

TR Relationship belween tax expense aid accounting pendit
Profit befere laxation

‘P ot the appiesble tate of 31% (a016: 32%)
T effeet of amownts that are:

Brampt as veferred toin note 4.1

Bffuct of change in prior vear's lax

Charged at different tax rate

2l {ngl generated from opevations’

Frofil bafors tay

Adjnstment for von-cash chavges aned other enns
« Dapraciation on operating fixed assets

- Finanee cost

- Profit on hanh deposits

< Euchanpe losy

« Land leng pestaly

Profii before worldng capital changes

Effeed ta tash flow due to working capital changes:

- Dacresse / (inerease) in advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
- {perease in trade dabts

- Tnrease it storas and spares

- Ineresse i brade aud other payables

« Taerease in accrued markap on long term fnances

i
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2017
Rupees Hupees
44,008,570 I SR
519,569,640 “
4258 8,160
¢28,68g 1635705
20,437857
2,902,575 -
 ESHR05.519 203,805
481,623 10, 6E1L08
64,059 (12204657
7,546,582 a,460,844
630,290,437 4243948
189.190,032 1,358,064 -
{175.547,066) G3R%045
64,959 {1,220,4553
{661,343 I
7546582 b5, et )
610,200,427 4 242,549
451,778,846 2,445,205
557,203,319 2o By
(44,000,370} -
242,337 44,207
57359293 _ <
1,577,245 052 H,04 1,280
193,965,579 [CANEE R )
(97()166?;7?(}) v |
(46,569,398}
1,038,087,093 | 437275,605
99,540,200 ¢ 60,211,920
184,311,662 aen, g4 2R
T aan,B8a,500

/761,360,314
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B, Fransactions with related parties

other telated weows comparies. md key management personnet, The
pompany in Ue novinal course of husiness carries ouy transactions with varions related parties, Amounts due frozeand (o related
partios ave shown under receivables and payables and remuneration of key managessent persennel s disclosed fn nate 25,
Bienificant related party transactions hava heen disclosed in respective notes in the fnancial statements except for the folluwing |

‘The velated parties comprise the associated audertakings,

a1 foa6
Rupees Rupees
Hefationship with the company Natuve of transactions
i, Assocdated undertakings Parchase of fixed gzseks 1,510,206 4,Ddp,E05
Commo coste-charzed ’
{0 BOImPany 2,230,552 4,800,000

There e no other significant transactions with related pacties during the year, tiher than those disclosed elsowhecs o these
firaneial statementy.

. 2]
25+ Capacily and preduction Mf';dzi
Insiabied wpacity A
Antualenergy delbvered 71
=g, Fiuancisl pisk management
el Finaneial visk factows

The vompany's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks: market rigk (incleding curreney visk, oiher prive visk s interes
rate risk), credit risk and Houidity risk The company's averall risk management programe foenses on the wnpredistability of
Sinmmaial markets and seeks by minfoize potentizl advarse effects b the franelal performanse,

Risk mansgeinent is earried oot by the Boaed of Directors (tha Board’). The Board provides prinefples for aearall ek
nanagement, as well ag policies covering specific arexs such as foreign exchangs risk, interest rate risk, eredit visk and investment
of weerss Jiguidity, All treasury yelated transactions are earried otit within the parameters of these policies.

{a} Market risk
{1 Currency risk

Cacrency visle ls the visk that the fair vahie or foture cash flows of a finanelal insirument will fncinate because of changes in
foreign eechnge rates, Currensy wisk acises mudnly from firture cormerein? transactions or receivables end payalies that exist
thue to transactions in foreign cwrrencies.

The eompany is sxposed to ourrgney visk arising primarily with respect to the United States Dollar (USD). Chrrenily, Ths
company'y forsign exchange risk cxposure is restriciest to bank balances end muoimis recsivable fiom/payalils fo- the foreigu

angiies.

At Jone 30, aory if the Kupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD with all ather varjubley held constant, o
fipact oq proft or loss for the year wonld have been Rs 32,849 milion {2016 Nil) higher mainly as a result of exchatge gatunon
teansiation of D donominated financial instrament.

At June 30, o1y If the Rupes had weakened / sengthened by 5% against the USH with al} other variables held constang, the
fmipsct on groperty, plant and equipntent fov the year would have been Rs 254.959 million (2016: Rs 249.183 willlon} highey
yrainly 25 3 reawlt of exchange loss / gain on translation: of B30 denominated financlal instrument,

A
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(D Olliey price pisk

value or future eash flows of a fnancial mstoement witl foetuste because of
Frism inferest tate visk or currency risk), whethar those changes are eauzed by
ar Its issuer, ot factors affecting all simitar financial instivrnents. rraded in
the market, The sompany is net exposed to equity price rigk since thore re no invastorenty in equity nstruments traded in the
ket oifber chastBed 18 available-for-sale or at felr value through profit or loss at the repocting date. The eompany is alsn ok
st o sommedity price risk since it does et hold aoy froancial fostoument based on tommaodity pries.

Other priceTisk yepresents the oisk that the falr
changes i market prices. (ofher than those arising
favtore spacifie to the individual Bnancial instrument

(iify Interest pate risk

Trdepast cate rislk represpits the pisk that the. falr value or fufure. cash flows of & Hosucial nstrument will fuctuate hednums of

thatiges In market inderest eatos,

The cempany bas ng significant long-term interest-bearing. asgets. The company's interest rata risk mafuly adses from
bostvwings, Barrowings obtained at variable rates exposethe company to.cash flow hnterest rase visk.

Al thie balwnoe sieet date, the hirtersst rate profile of the compeny's interest baaring Franeial instraments was:

B T
Rupess Hanpoes
Fized rate Inslrumonts:
Finanvigl assels
Bl bafanaes ~ savibg accounts 3,095,878,784 L E7LI0L
Tinaneial Habilihies = -
3,090,878,784 44,5704

Mol exposure

Flntting smbe iostrumentay
Financial agsels
Financiad Habjiities

Lony revm finances-secured {10,663,854.899) £7,585,720,001)

Nt ezposure {10,669,654,890) {7.5588,720,001)

Fuir valtiv sensithvily pnalyeis for fixed rate Instrunents

Tl sompany does not aceount for any fived rate financial assels and liabilities at fair valoe theough profit ov loss, Thetefre, a
change o interest rate st the balanee sheet date weuld not affect profitor loss of the company.

Cash fow sensitivity anatysis for varlable rate Instroments

1 intarest raiss ou variable rate financial instrunzents, at the year end date, fuctnates by 1% higher/Tower with all ether variables
teld constant, post tay profit for the year would have been Rs t1n.a70 million. (2o16: Nib) lower/higher mainly a3 a rasuit of
Wigher/Tower Brievest expeniss an foating rate tustraments.

o[ intersal rtes un vaviable rate fnaceisl nstraments, at the year end dute, fnctuntes by 1% higher/lower with all other variables
ldd pomstant, capital worl-in-progress would have besn Nil {20t Ré 77.39 raillion) higher/lower mainly as o result of
igher iswer interest expense o floating rate instruments,

ﬁa
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(€53 Credik rislke

Coadly tisk pepresents the risk that one party to & fnancisl instrumoent will cause 4
diseharge an obligation. The wompany’s evedit sk is primarily attributable to its
with banks aud government, The credit tisk is litmited hecanse the counter parties ave bepds with re

and govecnent authiorities.

{i) Bxposuis to eeedil visk

finanoial loss for the other party by falling ©
trade and other receivables amd ity balances
asonably high credit vatings

The teveying mnount of finaneial nesets represents the maxivivn eradit exposmre. fhe magimum exposurs to cradit visk af thr

vaporting date was a5 follows:

Trade debls
Aadvances and othier reeatyables
Bunk bulances

As uf June 30, age analysis of trade debis was as follows:
Weithor past dus nor impaired

Past due bt not impaired:

-1t a0 davs

- %1 o0 days

~g1 1 180 days

£ Credit quality ef financial agsels

2017
Ripees

576,660,700
138,638,518
3,090,878,784

2015
Rupees

HAOE0,130
414.588,745

4199.579,822

513,818,875

816,070,727

TRa0GL,852
1,283,742
1,225,419

154,591,991

970,062,720

“the credit goality of flzmeial assets that sre neither past due pov impaired can be pssessed by refesencs bo external ceodit vatings
G wvailabled ar o historienl informanion aboug counterparty default rate!

Rating

Short term Long term

i Mot available
Bank Al-Halib Thnited Al Adct
Chiflank, M.A N Al
() Elguidity vigh

Rating 2017 218
Ageney Hupees Huopees
470,602,720 -
PACRA 534085 10,371,086
MOODY'S 3,090,204,590 404,310,756
4:080,541,501 b5 88,745

Lipidity risk 3¢ (e rish thal an entity will encounter diTioulty {n meeting obligations asspeiated with financial liabilities.

Prugdand Tiguidity risk management implies mdintaining suffiefont cash and the availability of funding throngh an adeguate
srsenint of wmmitted oredit favilities, The company's approach to managing liquidity is to enaure that, as fav us pussible, it abwags
has sufficient Houidity to roeet its Habilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditfons, without incorring
unaesesibls Togs o risking damage to the company's reputation,

The lable helow sualyses the company’s financial Habilities fnto relevant maturity grovpings hased on the remaining periced at the
Halanee shaot date 1o the contractuat maturiy date,

A

Caryying Lesgthan ong  Onetofive years  Moesthan Beg
#inonat year years
Rupees
AL 36, 2017
Lang lerm %nances - secured 10.4:41,186,385 55,308,102 RETIR 5,723,580,673
Teade and other payables 106,705,692 1,608,786y - .
Aczrued markap unlong term Anances 8o.752,148 89,752,128 - -
19,157,640,405 35754932 5,861967,500 5.753,380,672
119
1 .
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Curryitig Less than one Oneto fiveyears  Move than five

amount yarr o Yenrs
o Rupees

AL Jwese 30, 20106
Long term finances - securad HEIFTED; 0L 157,409,546 #,581,808,844 Ay7Eeh SELBIL
Trade and other payables 568,663,690 568,661,699 - -
Aecrued wartag m Jong term finsnces Boan,0ab 50,211,926 : i

8,162,505,626 786257 2,581,805,849 LS04 6
.2 Fipancial indtrioents by dategories

Loansg and receivables

£017 216
Asgelz ag per balunee sheot Rapees Rupecs
Teadeelahta 70,662,720 -
Advances angd ptler voceivables 138,038.4:8 GU,850150
Balanees witls banks 3,000,878,784, 1 BEE T
4,159:579,829 Fiy 618,878

Finaneial Eabilities al anartived

wost
2017 ot
Rarpues Hupues
Faahilitios as per balaacee sheet
Long term finances - seoured 10,441,186,285 AR, 70,008
Trade awl other payables 1,499,320,4 82 a8, 054,458
89,752,128 G196

Aeerned mariop oo [ong term. finances

12,050850008 5, 102596,485

LY Falr value estimation

VFair value is lbe srmount for which an asset could Be exchanged, or 8 lizbility can be settlyd between knowledgeable willing parties
by 30 4rms Tength transaetion and s deterntined on the basis of objective evidence at each veporting date. The company fas il
diselozed the falr values for finansial assets and Habilities, as they are either ghort term in nature or reprice poriodicaBy.
Therelore, thalr carrying smounts are veasenable approximation of fair value.

EEWES Offsetting fnancial assets and fnancial Habilities

Thete nie ae denifiennl financist assets and finanefal Habifities that are subject to offsetting, enforceabla waster netting
srrangenmnis aud similar agreements.

EX Capital management

The eonpasy's objeclives when managing vapital are (o safeguard the company's ability 1o coutinue as 2 going concern in order to
provide venons for sharsholders acd benefits for other stnkeholders and to maintain un optimal capital structure o reduce the
cosl of capital, Tn arder to malntals er adjust the capital stractare, the company ruty adiost the smoust of dlvidaals paid 1o
sharcholders, seturn capital to sharehelders firnugh repurchase of shares, lssue new sharey or sell assets to redoce debt.

Comsistant with athers in the ludustry, the sompany menitors eapital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratlo is calenlated o3
wel debt divided by total capital, Net debt is caleulated as total borrowings (including ‘currerst anid non-guryent borrowings’ as
shown in the balanes shost) Togs sash and cash equivalents. Total copitel Is calentated 28 ‘equity’ as shown in ke balanee shee(

phas et delt. Tho gearing ratio as at.June 40, 2017 15 as foliows:
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2017 2a16

Rupess Hupees
Borrowings
-~ Long tepm Fuanses - seeured —note 6 10,177,454,661 7y 8s 88
~ Cash and tash squivalonts ~tiote 14 {3,000,941,010} (a1, 0y, 230
el daist 7.086,513,61% &,Ra6,015,882
Tatal squity 3:944, 710,879 3,346,007,054
“Intal sapitsl 15,036,224,401  10,172,052,586

Gonring ratio Pexcentage 64% G
In accordince with the tesms. of agreemant with the landers of leng: term finance (as disclosed fn note 6 to these fAnendinf
shmmettgl, the eompany s veguired to eomply-with the following financial covanants:

- the debt to equity matio must be not more teap 75%, Equity for the purpose of compuiing deht ko squity ratio, as perthe terms of
the vhove mentioned agreement, will include eguity contéiburions and/or sharebolder loan wheteas, debi will only fnelode loan

takes froim thelender,

“Thir company bas complied with this covenant thronghowt the reporting perind. As st June 30, 2017, the above mentioned mio
warg 64%% (2o 6r%)

B5. Remuneration of Chief Executive and Divectors
251 The aggregate amount charged in the Bnaneial statemenis for the year for refaneration, inohuding cortaln bunedits, 1o

tha Chief Bxecutive, Eirsctors and Execotives of the company is as follows:

Chief Exeeutive Director
2017 2016 2017 2G
Eupees Rupews Ritpees Bupees

Shovt vy enployen benefits

Maragoerial remuneration - . 20,400,000 s, 10
Bsrveg - - 1,700,000 B

- - 22,100,000 WBER086E

Namber of persons - - 1 1

a8 Wo rerneration has bean given to Yhe Chief Executive and other diractors of the company,

#1.3  The corpany also provides the divéctors dnd soime of Ity exeentives with company maintained cars in accordancs with
comnpany's potlop

2017 ZaiH
2, Number of evployees
Tistal masber of employees ag at e 30 16 K
Avprage number of employess during the yoar 24 g
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=7, Hsclosures relating to Provident Fund zoLy 20U

Rupees Rugsees

The company oparabes & recopnised provident Bund for its permanent employees.
(i) Sizn of the Fundl- total assets £,478,101 -
i Cost of Investiaents made €,874,765 -
{50} Percentazs of investinents rhade o98.52% -
@) Fair valua of investments 6,874,765 -

Break up of investments

Special account in s séhedulad bank 6,874,763 -

Break up of investments % age of size of the Fund

Special account in a scheduied bank G3.52% -

The figares Tor 2oy are haged on the urr-sadited financial stterments of the Provident Fond, Investments ont of Provident Fund
s bovn made in accordance with the provistons of section 227 of the Ordinancs and the rules formulated for this parpose.

28, Date of anthorisation for fssue 25 ﬁ&jﬁ- 87

Thase Unancixd slalmments were authorised for issus on UEL ony g 4 , 2017 by the Board of Divectors of the company.

A N Feent after the balanee sheet date.
The Board of Direstors have proposed 4 final dividend for the year ended June 3o, zoigof ks . . por share 2ouf: NG,
ammuniing to R & 2388 (2016: Nil) at thelr meeting held on 72 & Al 2047 sor approval of the metders #t the
Arpnal General Meeting 1o be held on - —

T8 BER oy
i1 Corpesponding figures

Correaponding ligeres have been rewarranged aod re-classified, wherever necessary, for the purposes of eomparison e better
presentation. Hewever, oo significant re-arrangements have heen mada,

o

Q’% e + -

4 e i T, 4

3 ﬁff%’- & g 1 - "’M;%}:» *

7 - (ﬁ\wmmww&mmw EMW,{L{%” = T

W DA e T SRR
Chief Zrecotive Drgclor
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a7, Dsclosures relating to Frovident Pund 2617 2016
Rupeos Rupees

V'he companty operates avecoghised provident fund for its permanent amployess.

6] Sime of the Fund- total agsats 6,578,101 -

() Cast of imvestments made 6,874,765 -
(655 Percpninge of invesiments made 98.52% -
{in Fair valne of invastimernts 68747765 -

Breakypy of investmetits
Special account iy o gebeduled bank 6,894,765
Break up of investments % age of size of the Fund

Spectal necotmt in-a schedwled banl oindb

The Bgures for uury wre basad ont tha un-sudited Hnansial statements of the Provident Pund. Tyivestments out of Provident Fund
have been niada o aceordanes with the provisions of section 22y of the Ordtnanes and the pules formulated for this purpose.

28, Date of anthorisation for issue

These Bnancial statements were authorised forissue on 2 5 ALE PRI7 2017 by the Beard of Divectors of the company:

e Eventalter the balanee sheet date

The Beard of 'D.irectugg’gay%pm[lageﬂ a finad dividend for theyear ended June 50, 2017 of B¢ 1 6;5 . per share (2o1b: Ni1),
amouniing o Rs v,iéﬁm;.,ém;.‘,&é?{zmﬁ; M ab thefr meeting held on ézw%wﬁm T Tor approval of the members at the
Ansnal Generyl Meeting to be beld on:__g o ooy spes '

0. Corvesponding figures

Corresponding figures have bean ve-arfanged and re-clissifed, wherever necessary, for the purposes of comparison and befter
presentatios., However, no significant re-asraugernents hayve been made.

M kawmm%wﬁj; ‘;-’;L»&? /ﬂg }i/; A“*w:’;

{Chief Txemtive Divegtor
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) [LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.3.5 Latest financial statements of the Applicant

Master Hydro (Private) Limited was incorporated on August 9, 2017. Audited Financial

Statements of the Project Company will be available after one operational year.

]
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MASTER HYDRO {PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.3.6 Employment records of technical and engineering staff

- Lap
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August 09, 2017

Syed Shahzad Ali

House # B-152 Block 3 Saadi Town
Scheme 33 Karachi

CNIC# 41304-2323997-7

Letfer of Appointment

Dear Mr. Syed Shahzad Ali

Master Hydro Private Limited (“the company™), based on your representation, assurances, expertise
and qualifications is pleased to offer you the position of Senior Project Manager Y our appointment will
be subject to your antecedents being verified and found to be satisfactory by the company in you and
are continuing to be qualified, competent and medically fit to the satisfaction of the company.

You will be governed by the following terms and conditions:

Gross Salary

Benefits : As per Company Policy
Department : Site Operations

Job Location :

1. The negotiated salary, allowances, benefits etc. shall remain confidential and you will not
divulge any related information to anybody in any case unless compelled to do so by a Court
of Law.

2. You will be entitled to such allowances and benefits as may be prescribed by the Company
from time to time applicable to your level. Annual Leaves (15), sick leave (08), and casual
leave (10) will be governed by the Company rules and regulations as applicable from time to
time.

3. Payment against any entitlement shall be subject to provisions as stipulated in the relevant
Policies and amended from time to time, included in the HR Policy Manual.

4. During your service, you will be governed by the terms of this Letter of Appointment and
the relevant Company Rules and Regulations contained in the HR Policy Manual, as may be
applicable from time to time.

5. You may be transferred or assigned tasks anywhere in Pakistan at the sole discretion of the
Management in the interest of the Company.

@‘«55@@
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6. You will have authority necessary to perform your duties. This authority will be subject to
any rules, regulations, stipulation and conditions as may be laid from time to time by the
Directors or Management of the Company.

7. You will discharge all such duties, responsibilities and authorities as assigned to you,
efficiently and diligently to the satisfaction of the Management and you will not act in any
manner contrary to the interest of the Company.

8. As an employee you will not divulge directly or indirectly to any person or organization any
knowledge or information which you may acquire concerning the affairs, property,
enterprise, clients, and undertaking of the company including but not limited to its business,
trade matters and secrets. You are required to protect intellectual property rights and interests
of the company. In this respect at the time of joining the company, you shall be required to
sign Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA).

9. You will be bound to make good any loss or damage to Company property caused by
negligence, inadvertence, fraud, carelessness or act of omission, on your part. The
termination of your services may not exonerate you from liability to make good this loss or
damage.

10. You shall not accept any other employment, whether part time or otherwise with any other
person nor engage in any business activity directly or indirectly during your service with the
Company.

11. Your services will be subject to termination by 30 days written notice on either side or pay
in lieu thereof.

12. In case of resignation or termination, you will not leave the Company until formal acceptance
of resignation and / or clearance is issued by the Company. The clearance will be processed
within 40 days from the date of resignation.

13. In case of breach of any of the terms of this Letter of Appointment and Company rules and
regulations, or any fraudulent activity which may constitute a misconduct on your part, your
services are Jiable to immediate termination and you will not be entitled to any compensation
as a result thereof. In such a case, suitable necessary action may further be initiated against
you as per Law and Company rules and regulations.

14. Under the Rules, you are eligible to become member of Provident Trust Fund (whenever the
company decides to have a fund).

. P
< ‘ X&ﬁﬁﬁ
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Please join us ai the earliest but not later than August 09, 2017 You are advised to report to HR
Department at Master Hydro (Private) Limited.

Please sign and date a copy of the letter as your unequivocal acceptance of the aforesaid terms and
conditions and their after hand it over to HR Department.

We look forward to welcome you as a member of Master Hydro (Private) Limited

With Best Regards,

Human Resources / Administration Division
Master Hydro (Private) Limited

ACCEPTANCE
I, Syed Shahzad Ali, hereby declare that I have carefully read/understood the terms and
conditions of employment as set out in letter of which this is a true copy. I confirm that I fully
accept the conditions of the letter of appointment. I shall report for duty on August 09, 2017,

Oy

Syed Shahzad Ali Date: August 09, 2017
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August 23, 2017

Faheem Ali

House # G-69, Fauji Fertilizer
Company Township, Mirpur,
Mathelo, Sindh

CNIC# 45104-0127236-7

Letter of Appointment

Dear Mr. Faheem Ali

Master Hydro (Private) Limited (“the company™), based on your representation, assurances, expertise
and qualifications is pieased to offer you the position of Mechanical Engineer. Your appointment will
be subject to your antecedents being verified and found to be satisfactory by the company in you and
ar¢ continuing to be qualified, competent and medically fit to the satisfaction of the company.

You will be governed by the following terms and conditions:

Gross Salary
Benefits : As per Company Policy
Department : Site Operations

Job Location :

1. The negotiated salary, allowances, benefits etc. shall reinain confidential and you will not
divulge any related information to anybody in any case unless compelled to do so by a Court
of Law.

2. You will be entitled to such allowances and benefits as may be prescribed by the Company
from time to time applicable to your level. Annual Leaves (15), sick leave (08), and casual
leave (10) will be governed by the Company rules and regulations as applicable from time to
time.

3. Payment against any entitlement shall be subject to provisions as stipulated in the relevant
Policies and amended from time to time, included in the HR Policy Manual.

4. During your service, you will be governed by the terms of this Letter of Appointment and
the relevant Company Rules and Regulations contained in the HR Policy Manual, as may be
applicable from time to time.

a
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5. You may be transferred or assigned tasks anywhere in Pakistan at the sole discretion of the
Management in the interest of the Company.

6. You will have authority necessary to perform your duties. This authority will be subject to
any rules, regulations, stipulation and conditions as may be laid from time to time by the
Directors or Management of the Company.

7. You will discharge all such duties, responsibilities and authorities as assigned to you,
efficiently and diligently to the satisfaction of the Management and you will not act in any
manner contrary to the interest of the Company.

8. Asan employee you will not divulge directly or indirectly to any person or organization any
knowledge or information which you may acquire concerning the affairs, property,
enterprise, clients, and undertaking of the company including but not limited to its business,
trade matters and secrets. You are required to protect intellectual property rights and interests
of the company. In this respect at the time of joining the company, you shall be required to
sign Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA).

9. You will be bound to make good any loss or damage to Company property caused by
negligence, inadvertence, fraud, carelessness or act of omission, on your part. The
termination of your services may not exonerate you from liability to make good this loss or
damage.

10. You shall not accept any other employment, whether part time or otherwise with any other
person nor engage in any business activity directly or indirectly during your service with the
Company.

11. Your services will be subject to termination by 30 days written notice on either side or pay
in lieu thereof.

12. In case of resignation or termination, you will not leave the Company until formal acceptance
of resignation and / or clearance is issued by the Company. The clearance will be processed
within 40 days from the date of resignation.

13. In case of breach of any of the terms of this Letter of Appointment and Company rules and
regulations, or any fraudulent activity which may constitute a misconduct on your part, your
services are liable to immediate termination and you will not be entitled to any compensation
as a resuli thereof. In such a case, suitable necessary action may further be initiated against
you as per Law and Company rules and regulations.

14. Under the Rules, you are eligible to become member of Provident Trust Fund (whenever the
company decides to have a fund).

Gy

U
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Please join us at the earliest but not later than August 23, 2017 You are advised to report to HR
Department at Master Hydro (Private) Limited.

Please sign and date a copy of the letter as your unequivocal acceptance of the aforesaid terms and
conditions and their after hand it over to HR Department.

We lock forward to welcome you as a member of Master Hydro (Private) Limited

With Best Regards,

Human Resources / Administration Division
Master Hydro (Private) Limited

ACCEPTANCE

I, Faheem Ali, hereby declare that I have carefully read/understood the terms and conditions
of employment as set out in letter of which this is a true copy. I confirm that I fully accept the
conditions of the letter of appointment. I shall report for duty on August 23, 2017,

Iny
\?:yﬁffi\
R

Faheem Ali Date: August 23,2017
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September 04, 2017

Abdul Jabbar House
#72-A Street #f 244,
F-10/1,

Islamabad

Letter of Appoiniment

Dear Mr. Abdul Jabbar

Master Hydro (Private) Limited (“the company™), based on your representation, assurances, expertise
and qualifications is pleased to offer you the position of Elecirical Engineer. Your appointment will be
subject to your antecedents being verified and found to be satisfactory by the company in you and are
continuing to be qualified, competent and medically fit to the satisfaction of the company.

You will be governed by the following terms and conditions:

Gross Salary
Benetits : As per Company Policy
Department : Site Operations

Job Location :

1. The negotiated salary, allowances, benefits etc. shall remain confidential and you will not
divulge any related information to anybody in any case unless compelled to do so by a Court
of Law.

2. You will be entitled to such allowances and benefits as may be prescribed by the Company
from time to time applicable to your level. Annual Leaves (15), sick leave (08), and casual
leave (10) will be governed by the Company rules and regulations as applicable from time to
time. :

3. Payment against any entitlement shall be subject to provisions as stipulated in the relevant
Policies and amended from time to time, included in the HR Policy Manual.

4. During your service, you will be governed by the terms of this Letter of Appointment and
the relevant Company Rules and Regulations contained in the HR Policy Manual, as may be
applicable from time to time.
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10.

11.

12.

[3.

14.

You may be transferred or assigned tasks anywhere in Pakistan at the sole discretion of the
Management in the interest of the Company.

You will have authority necessary to perform your duties. This authority will be subject to
any rules, regulations, stipulation and conditions as may be laid from time to time by the
Directors or Management of the Company.

You will discharge all such duties, responsibilities and authorities as assigned to you,
efficiently and diligently to the satisfaction of the Management and you will not act in any
manner contrary to the interest of the Company.

As an employee you will not divulge directly or indirectly to any person or organization any
knowledge or information which you may acquire concerning the affairs, property,
enterprise, clients, and undertaking of the company including but not limited to its business,
trade matters and secrets. You are required to protect intellectual property rights and interests
of the company. In this respect at the time of joining the company, you shall be required to
sign Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA).

You will be bound to make good any loss or damage to Company property caused by
negligence, inadvertence, fraud, carelessness or act of omission, on your part. The
termination of your services may not exonerate you from liability to make good this loss or
damage.

You shall not accept any other employment, whether part time or otherwise with any other
person nor engage in any business activity directly or indirectly during your service with the
Company.

Your services will be subject to termination by 30 days written notice on either side or pay
in lieu thereof.

In case of resignation or termination, you will not leave the Company until formal acceptance
of resignation and / or clearance is issued by the Company. The clearance will be processed
within 40 days from the date of resignation.

In case of breach of any of the terms of this Letter of Appointment and Company rules and
regulations, or any fraudulent activity which may constitute a misconduct on your part, your
services are liable to immediate termination and you will not be entitled to any compensation
as a resulf thereof. In such a case, suitable necessary action may further be initiated against
you as per Law and Company rules and regulations.

Under the Rules, you are eligible to become member of Provident Trust Fund (whenever the
company decides to have a fund).

A
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Please join us at the earliest but not later than September 04, 2017 You are advised to report to HR
Department at Master Hydro (Private) Limited.

Please sign and date a copy of the letter as your unequivocal acceptance of the aforesaid terms and
conditions and their after hand it over to HR Department.

We look forward to welcome you as a member of Master Hydro (Private) Limited

With Best Regards,

Human Resources / Administration Pivision
Master Hydro (Private) Limited

ACCEPTANCE
1, Abdul Jabbar, hereby declare that I have carefully read/understood the terms and conditions
of employment as set out in letter of which this is a true copy. I confirm that I fully accept the
conditions of the letter of appointment. I shall report for duty on September 04, 2017.

et

Abdul Jabbar Date: September 04, 2017
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.3.7 DProfile of sub contractors, if any, along with expressions of

interest of such sub-contractors

The Project will be developed under a standard, lump-sum, fixed schedule, turn-key EPC
contract, in line with market norms and standards for such projects. Sinohydro Corporation
Limited (SHCL) and Hydrochina International (FIDC) have been selected as the preferred

EPC contractor for the project.

Sinohydro Corporation Limited

Sinohydro Corporation Limited is well known as China's leading contractors in hydropower
construction, responsible for 65% of large and medium scale hydropower stations in China.
With over 60 years of development and expertise, SHCL is the key international brand of
Powerchina Corporation, a Fortune Global 500 company. In 2016, Powerchina was ranked
no. 6 on the engineering design enterprises (ENR) lists of Top 250 Global Contractors and
no. 11 in Top 250 International Contractors. With diversified operations in over 100 coun-
tries, SHCL's businesses cover almost all areas of the construction sector, inciuding energy,

transport, water works, civil engineering and building.

Over the past decade, SHCL has constructed more than 78 hydropower plants globally with
a total capacity of 27,780 MW. In addition, it has built 16 thermal and renewable power
plants overseas, with a total capacity of approximately 2,776 MW. SHCL multi-purpose
hydropower projects not only generate electricity, they also provide flood protection, river
regulation and diversion, agricultural irrigation, tourism development and improved shipping
transport. SHCL has been awarded ISO 9001, [SO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 for their high
performance standards. Currently, SHCL has 65 water projects under construction in more

than 24 countries, with a total contract value of nearly US § 3.45

A brochure of SHCL is attached below for rgference.

135 EAD
Gertii] True Gopy



MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

Projects undertaken by Sinohydro in Pakistan

Sinohydro has significant experience in the global hydel power sector, and has also completed
a number of projects in Pakistan. A list of projects completed by Sinohydro Corporation
Limited in Pakistan is provided below as reference®.

Project Name Capacity (MW) Status

Tarbela 4th Extengion - Civil Works 1410 Completed
(Ghazi Barotha Hydropower Project 1450 Completed
Gomal Zam Multipurpose Dam Project 17.4 Completed

Hydrochina Corporation International

Hydrochina Corporation International is a large consultation enterprise for development of
water resource and renewable energy, and serves as an important institution for undertak-
ing and implementation of oversea business in the Powerchina group. HDC is focused on
development of hydro, wind and solar power through provision of resource survey, planning,
investigation, design, consultation, financing, procurement, EPC contracting, construction

supervision, and operation maintenance for renewable energy projects.

Hydrochina has expanded its business scope to the sectors of transmission and transforma-
tion, thermal power, power grid construction, eavironment protection, municipal construc-
tion, port and navigation and oil underground structure as well. Over the years, HDC has
developed three core business sectors, design and consultation, EPC contract and invest-
ment, and setting up of overseas representative offices or branches for providing high quality
services abroad. HDOC is ranked No.l in the 60 China’s ENR, 15th in the Global top 150

engineering design companies and 59th of 225 international engineering design companies.

A brochure of HDC is attached below for reference.

2Sinohydro has also undertaken irrigation projects in Pakistan,recently Darawat Dam was completed by
the company
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.4 Charges or Encumbrances

Pursuant to the Regulation 3(5)(e), there is no charge or encumbrances on the Project

Company assets.
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.5 Technical & Financial Proposal

Pursuant to the Regulation 3(5)(f), please refer to section 77
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.6 'Technical details of proposed facility

Please refer to section 77 of this document for complete technical details of proposed facility
as required under Regulation 3(5)(g) and Schedule IIT of the Licensing Regulations.
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MASTER HYDRO (PRIVATE) LIMITED Application for Generation License

4.7 Project Feasibility Study

Please see attached Project Feasibility Study as required pursuant to Regulation 3(5)(h) of

the Licensing Regulations.
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VOLUME 1: Main Report (Part §)
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1.
1.1

1.2

FEASIBILITY STUDY

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, [EGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP

ARKARI GOL HPP

INTRODUCTION AND SUNMMARY

Introduction

The Government of the Khyber Pakhtunkwa Province (KPK) represented by the
Pakhtunkhwa Hydel Development Organization (PHYDO) is engaged in the
development of the hydropower resources in the mountainous areas of KPK.

When the available hydropower potential is systematically developed, the power
demand of the province may be met with sufficient surplus for export to other
provinces, thus significantly contributing to satisfy the future power demand of
Pakistan.

Within the inventory of hydropower potential of the Chitral District within the KPK
Province, a project site at the Arkari River, a left side tributary of Lutkho River
approximately 37 km from Chitral Town was identified by SHYDO/GTZ and
selected by GoKPK and PHYDO for conducting a Feasibility Study.

The summary describes the Uchhatur-Andakht hydropower project which was
found the most favourable solution for the hydropower development of the lower
reaches of the Arkari River.

Extensive field reconnaissance, topographical survey, hydrological and geological
investigations as well as environmental and social impact and mitigation studies
and engineering studies were carried out for preparation of the Feasibility Study.
This study establishes a project that will be relevant to supply power to the National
grid system.

The chapters dealing with the engineering structures are preceded by a description
of the results of the above mentioned field investigations as well as those of the
study of alternative fayouts and a discussion of design criteria such as
optimization of maximum storage level, determination of furbine discharge and
regarding storage operation of the plant. As a result of field investigations and
engineering studies, it is concluded that the project is technically viable,
economically feasible and envircnmentally safe.

Power Market

Introduction

Electricity is the basic requirement of life and economy and most vital instrument
of socioeconomic development of a country. Electricity has pivotal role in running
machinery in factories and industrial units, for lighting our cities and powering our
vehicles. Provision of electricity to all sectors of economy is a challenge for the
government,

There has been an enormous increase in the demand of electricity as a result of
industrial development and population growth, in comparison to enhancement in

. _Y—lr\D
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FEASIBILITY STUDY ARKARI GOl HPP

electricity production. Supply of electricity is, therefore, far less than the
demand, resuitantly crisis has emerged and load shedding has become a routine
of the day.

Electricity Demand

The electricity demand is a function of GDP growth, population growth, unmet
demands etc. at present the available capacity is not capable of meeting
demand due to various reasons including capacity and capability as sufficient
fuel is not available for power plants. However in order to asses’ future power
requirement it is essential that a realistic demand is made so that adequate
planning could be made for capacity addition.

Demand Forecasting

Demand forecasting or Load forecasting is an important element of the power
planning process involving prediction of future level of demand. The forecast
serves as the basis for supply-side and demand-side planning. Load forecasts
are typically prepared by utilities for different time frames and levels of detail and
used for generation, transmission as well as distribution planning. It further helps
investment planning for these sectors and for their associated industries like
manufacturing, fuel and resource exploration etc.. Demand forecast by customer
category class is presented as follow:

2010-11 44901 7304 26967 11419 5337 95928 11284 107212

2011-12 46648 2054 28365 11635 5635 100337 11369 112206 4,66%
2012-13 47916 8922 29596 12288 5908 104630 12384 117014 4.28%
2013-14 51104 9912 303820 11987 6310 110133 12896 123029 5.14%
2014-15 54286 10705 32161 12344 6688 116184 13457 125641 5.37%
2015-16 57670 11883 33648 12950 7139 123290 14079 137369 5.96%
2016-17 61266 13221 35303 13066 7639 130495 14772 145267 5.75%
2017-18 65093 14735 37151 13554 8189 133722 15545 154267 6.20%
2018-19 69160 16245 39216 14200 8767 147532 16409 164001 €.31%
2019-20 72692 18123 41526 14599 9384 156324 17375 173699 5.91%
2020-21 75885 20243 44128 15338 10038 165632 18458 184000 5.58%
2021-22 81358 22638 47058 16204 10877 178135 19676 197811 7.45%
2022-23 86984 25253 50355 16969 11780 191341 21047 212388 7.37%
2023-24 93007 28314 54063 17975 12799 206158 225893 228747 7.70%
2024-25 99456 31781 58237 19107 13930 222511 24324 246335 7.91%

Source: Electricity Demand forecast based on multiple Regression Analysis by
Planning Power NTDC, May 2012
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FEASJBI[;ITY STUDY ARKARI GOL HPP

1.3 Topographic Survey

Topographic survey of the project area was conducted by professional surveyors
under the guidance and supervision of consultants as per the following scope of
work:

i) To select the most suitable Project Layout to minimize geological and
climatological hazards so that stable infrastructure could be built for the
Project.

i) To highlight the topographic features of the areas covering the short-listed
layouts.

i) To minimize disturbance to the local population and to the extent possible,
avoid their relocation as a result of the project.

iv)  To prepare computerized topographic maps of the locations of project
components such as weir, intake structure, de-sanders, headrace /
power tunnel, surge shaft, pressure shaft, powerhouse and tailrace
canal.

v) To establish longitudinal profiles of Arkari Gol River from the proposed
locations of weir site to the powerhouse

vi)  To prepare valley cross-sections upstream and downstream of the weir
axis.

vli)  To prepare valley cross-sections upstream and downstream of the
powerhouse axis.

viii)  To prepare a Project Map on a scale of 1:10,000.

The main areas of field surveys included the weir site near Uchhatur village, the
head race tunnel along the right bank of Arkari River and the powerhouse site near
Andakht village. The survey covered both accessible (weir / intake, reservoir,
de-sander, pressure shaift, powerhouse and tail race) and inaccessible (tunnel
alignment, surge shaft and part of pressure shaft) areas of the project site.
Topographic maps were developed with the help of digitized maps of 1:10,000
scale, Survey of Pakistan (SOP) sheets of 1:50,000 scale and a satellite map of 0.5
m resolution.

The Topographic Survey entailed recording of Arkari River's longitudinal
sections starting 4 km upstream of the weir axis up to the anticipated backwater
effect and terminating 6.7 km downstream of the weir axis. For the powerhouse
site, longitudinal sections were recorded from 600 m upstream of the
powerhouse to a distance of 5 km downstream of the powerhouse. Longitudinal
sections have been recorded for approximately 16 km length of the river. This
includes the reservoir area.

V: CIV-TEGH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROLP ' "~ Page1-3
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FEASIBILITY STUDY ARKARI GOl HPP

The Topographic survey also entailed preparation valley cross-sections at the
weir and powerhouse locations. At the weir location, 100 m interval valley
cross-sections were recorded up to the anticipated backwater effect
(approximately 4 km) on the upstream side of the weir location and up to 6.7 km
on the downstream side of the weir location., At the powerhotise site,
cross-sections have been taken at 25 m intervals. Originating from the confluence
of Arkari and Lutkho rivers, cross-sections have been taken upstream along the
Arkari River up to a distance of 500 m. Likewise, cross-sections along Lutkho River
have been taken at 25 m intervals up to a distance of 2421 m downstream of the
Ruiji Bridge.

The project's Reference Grid has been established by connecting the project area.
survey with Survey of Pakistan (SOP) Grid permanent benchmarks. Control Points
have accordingly been established at the project site.

Hydrology and Sediments

The Hydrology and Sedimentation studies of the Arkari Gol Hydropower
Project covers the aspects of data availability, data collection, data
evaluation, climatology of the area, delineation and characteristics of the dam
site watershed, flow study for the dam site and flood study for the dam and
powerhouse sites. Moreover, the report also contains the observed
suspended sediment discharges at the Arkari Gol gauging site and bed
material gradation characteristics in the river bed of the reservoir area, which
were collected by the present Consultants.

Climatological data of Chitral gauging station was collected from Pakistan
Meteorological Department and flow data of Chitral Gauging Station from
1964 to 2011 were collected from SWHP, WAPDA. Flow data of seven more
stream gauging stations were also collected from SHWP and PHYDO.

Collected data were evaluated by plotting double mass curves for checking
their quality. All double mass curves showed that the collected data are
consistent and do not require any corrections.

Climatology study was carried out by using the data of Chitral gauging station
from 1892 to 2009. Temperature data recorded at the Chitral Gauging Station
shows that July is the hottest month and January, the coldest month with
highest and lowest mean monthly temperatures of 36.42 and -0.76 °C
respectively. At the Chitral climatological station, mean annual values of
precipitation and relative humidity are estimated as 471.9 mm and 36.15 %
respectively.

The watershed area of Arkari River at the weir site is 1036 km? whereas
watershed area of Arkari Powerhouse site is 1060 km2. On the basis of the

Page -4
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FEASIBILITY STUDY ARIKAR| GOL HPP

100 m DEM, the elevation in the watershed varies from 2172 m to 6732 masl.
The mean elevation of the watershed is 4156.5 masl with a standard deviation
of 721.6 m.

Considering the quality of the available flow data record at the Arkari stream
gauging station, the flow study for the project was carried out in two phases,
initially by regional analysis approach to establish the mean annual flow at the
site and then by utilizing the Arkari gauge data to have its temporal
distribution. To carry out the flow study using regional analysis approach, flow
data of 8 stream gauging stations were collected and used. '

Mean annual flows estimated for the Arkari stream gauging station, Arkari weir
site-and Arkari powerhouse site are 16.66, 17.02 and 17.41 m¥/s, respectively.

As Statistical Approach looks best for the Arkari HPP site, hence flood magnitudes
are recommended by this method, the recommended flood magnitudes
corresponding to various return periods for Arkari weir and powerhouse sites, and
the recommended flood magnitudes corresponding to 1000 year return period
are 562 and 571 m3fs, respectively

A stream gauging station was installed by the Consultants along river Arkari to
measure flows for the Arkari weir site at Uchhatur Bridge which is situated at
200m upstream of the proposed weir site. Water and sediment discharge
measurements were commenced at this station on 25th September 2012 and
will remain continued up to completion of Feasibility Study Period.

Mean annuai specific suspended sediment yield at Arkari weir site is about 241
Tons/km?/year. Mean annual suspended sediment load at the weir site is about
0.258 MCM. The recommended density of deposited sediments is taken as 982.4
kg/m? (1.3 Pcf).Mean annual bed load at the weir site is about 0.039 MCM. Mean
annual total sediment inflow to the Arkari reservoir is about 0.297 MCM.Trap
efficiency of reservoir computed on the basis of Churchill curve is 35 %. The
recommended trap efficiency is 62.5 % based on total sands and coarser materiai.
Mean annual trapped sediment load in the proposed reservoir would be 0.015
MCM.

The life of the Arkari reservoir without considering any flushing would be only 09
years, Flushing discharge required to carry out flushing of the reservoir would be 20
to 40 m%s, whereas flushing duration required would be around 3-10 days
depending on the amount of deposited sediments to be flushed and the flow rate
available for this purpose. The life of the Arkari reservoir can be enhanced to about
110 years with appropriate flushing operations at the rate of one flushing per yearin
the month of August or whenever flushing discharges are available.

JV: GIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP  Page 1.5
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FEASIBILITY STUDY ARKARI GOL HPP

Geological and Geotechnical Investigations

The project area lies in the eastern Hindu Kush and western Karakorum mountain
ranges, separated by the Tirichmir Boundary Zone (TBZ). The eastern Hindu Kush
in Chitral consists of Paleazoic Wakhan slate and upper Paleozoic to Oligocene
granitoid intrusions, many of which demonstrate a NE — SW trend. The Tirichmir
Boundary Zone (TBZ) separates the eastern Hindu Kush to the north-west from the
western Karakorum (Gaetaui at el, 1996). The eastern Karakorum in the project
area consists of quaternary deposits, slates, phyllites, gneiss, quartzite granitic
intrusions and amphibolites

Regional tectonic setting of the Chitral district is characterized by the continental
collision between the Eurasian Plate, the Indian Plate and the intervening Kohistan
Island arc. The Chitral district has three main mountain ranges, namely Hindu Kush,
Karakoram and Kohistan. :

The Hindu Kush and Karakoram ranges are part of the Eurasian Plate while the
Kohistan range is part of the Indian Plate. The Indian Plate is under-thrusted and
the Eurasian Plate is upper-thrusted. Both the plates are separated by a Main
Karakoram Thrust (MKT) which trends in NE-SW direction through Shishi Valley,
Rizhun Gol and passes through Harchin from Chitral district. The crushing zone
between the MKT and Kohistan is known as Northern Suture Mélange zone (NSM).

On the basis of structural evolution, the Chitral district has been divided into the
following three units:

1) The North Western Unit: This unit starts from Reshun fault, continues
towards north- western and central Afghanistan and Tirich Mir Boundary
Zone (TBZ).

2)  The Central Unit: This unit is bounded by the Reshun Fault in the
north-west and the Main Karakoram Thrust (MKT) in the south-east.

3)  The South-Eastern Unit: This unit comprises of the Karakoram - Kohistan
Suture Zone and the Kohistan Arc block.

Tectonically, the project area is part of the Eurasian plate and structurally, it falls in
the north-western unit of the Chitral structural unit.

The powerhouse site is located on metamorphic rocks i.e. Phyilites and Gneiss.
The bed rock is covered with quaternary deposits. The general strike of bed rock is
in NE-SW direction and dipping is towards NW with 40° to 80 angle of dip.

From the weir site to the powerhouse, the tunnel passes through various
metamorphic and igneous rocks i.e. phyllites, schist, quartzite, gneiss and granite.

The weir site is [ocated in a granitic outcrop which is part of the Tirichmir Boundary
Zone (TBZ) in Chitral region. The TBZ separates the Hindu Kush and Karakorum
ranges in the project area. The granitic outcrop has an inclusion along the strike of
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FEASIBILITY STLUDY ARKARI GOL HPP

the Wakhan Formation which consists of slate, gneiss and guarizite. This granitic
outcrop has contact with amphibolites and slates.

For geotechnical investigations, drilling and coring of the lithological units has been
carried out through boreholes at specified intervals. The activity was aimed at
assessing the physical properties of the lithological units under imposed loading
conditions. '

Drilling of boreholes was carried out as per the following schedule:

PH-BH#01, 35.0 :
- Drilled in bed rock.
PH-BH#02 35.0
Powerhouse Site Drilled 1n overburden, no bed rock encountered
PH-BH#03 45,0 ‘
up to 45.0 m depth.
PH-BHH04 60.0 Drilled in overburden, bedrock encountered at
48.0 m.
WS-BH#01 35.0 Drilled in bed rock.
Dritling in progress. No bed rock encountered up
- 60.0
o WS-BH#02 to 150 m depth through VES.
Weir Site WS-BH#03 35.0 Drilled at left abutment and bed rock
' encountered at 25.0 m depth.
Drilled at right abutment and bed rock
- 0.0
WS-BH#HO4 4 encountered at 18.0 m depth.

For further confirmation of bed rock, Vertical Electrical Sounding (VES) was
conducted in the project area. Bedrock was not encountered up to 150 m depth in
VES carried out at the centre of valley along weir axis. Two dimensional imaging
systems were also applied to investigate properties of sub-surface lithological units.
During drilling, the following in-situ tests were also performed in boreholes:

s Constant Head Permeability Test
» Water Pressure Permeability Test

= Standard Penetration Test (SPT)

The above tests for determination of rock/seil conditions were performed at 5 m
intervals. Details of these tests have documented in the project's geotechnical
investigation report.

Physical and chemical properties of lithological units are assessed through
laboratory analysis carried out mainly in Central Material Testing Laboratory
(CMTL), WAPDA.

Foundations recommendations for the feasibility study of the Arkari Gol
Hydropower project, which is anticipated to be Concrete Faced Rock Fill Dam
(CFRD) with a height of 30 m and a maximum crest length of 168 m between

Page -7
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FEASIBILITY STUDY ARKARI GOL HPP

abutments. The recommendations are based on interpretation of data obtained
from field investigations.

Different foundation options have been considered for the weir and powerhouse
sites.

The structures can be founded on shallow foundations/structural rafts and a
combination of structural rafts and piles. For the powerhouse site, a bearing
capacity of 3.8 ton/ft? has been calculated at 10.0 m depth for shallow
foundations/structural rafts. For the weir site, a bearing capacity of 2.2 ton/ft> has
been calculated at 12.0 m depth for shallow foundations/structural rafts. A more
detailed analysis of the subject matter has been presented in project's geology
report submitted by this consultant.

The strength and stability of rock masses largely depends on the density, nature
and extent of fractures. Stability of the tunnel for the Arkari Gol project has been
evaluated on the basis of Rock Mass Rating (RMR) system (Bieniawski's et al.
1976) and Norwegian Geotechnical Institute’s Q-Values. RMR and Q-values
calculated for the tunnel through three lithological units, namely schist, granite and
phyllites are presented below.

Schist: The RMR values range from 35 to 45 and Q values ranges from 0.5 10 3
categorized as a rock class lll — IV (Fair — Poor).

Granite: The RMR values range from 40 to 60 and Q values ranges from 0.5 to 3
categorized as a rock class lll (Fair).

Phyllites: The RMR values range from 35 to 60 and Q values ranges from 0.5 to 3
categorized as a rock class lll — IV (Fair — Poor).

Rocks classified as “Fair” require permanent tunnel supports which are provided by
pattern bolts. In such cases, temporary supports are provided for span width of less
than 5m within a period of 1 week while safe-cut slopes are kept below 55°

Rocks classified as “Poor” require bolts & shot-crete for permanent tunnel support.
For such rocks, temporary supports are provided for span width of less than 2m
within a period of 1 week while safe-cut siopes are kept below 45°,

Seismic Hazard

Seismo tectonic studies are performed for the project area Arkari Gol HPP situated
in District Chitral of KPK province. Geographically, project area is NW corner of
Pakistan with meeting point of three great mountain ranges i.e. the Hindu Kush
Range, along with the Himalayan Range to its south and the Karakoram Range to
its east, form the southern part of the Pamir Knot, which is amongst the few regions
in the world with average altitude in excess of 3000 m.

Seismicity of the area is studied with help of recorded historical data and

JV: GIV-TECH & EPAC, [EGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEGRING GROUP
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FEASIBILITY STUDY ARKARI GCL HPP

instrumental data. Potential earthquake sources are:-

Reshun Fault (RF)

Tirvich Mir Fault (TMF)

Main Karakorum Fault (MKF)
Chitral Fault (CF)

Bomb Barat Fault (BBF)
Panjal Thrust (PT)

Ayun Fauit (AF)

Naz Bar Fault (NBF)

Shishi Fault (SF)

© BN e g Wb

Seismic design parameters PGA and Design earthquake have been evaluated.
Attenuation equations of Boore et al 1993, 1997 & 2007, Campbell 1997 and Idriss
1985 are used for calculations of PGA values. Design earthquake for the project are
carefully decided by the experts.

The Reshun Fault source is the one which could generate an event of magnitude
6.5 to 7.8 during the life span of the project, for powerhouse site and Tirich Mir
Fault could generate an event of almost same magnitude for weir site, and then the
projected Maximum Credible Earthquake values for these would be from 0.60 fo
0.61 respectively. It is, therefore, suggested that a mean value of 0.305 g may be
adopted conservatively for power house as the Design Basis Earthquake, while the
Maximum Conceivable Earthquake can be 0.61 g. Similarly the OBE for weir
should be 0.305, also MCE is 0.61g. Final recommendation for OBE of 0.34g is
considered to comply with the Seismic Zoning Map of Building Code of Pakistan
(2007 SP)

The DBE is OBE, and factor of 2 with respect to MCE is as per different codes
(USNRC, Indian Code)}, otherwise OBE is mostly based on probability analysis,
which again depends on availability of large strong motion earthquake data of the
area.

So OBE can be taken as %2 of MCE for a fair assessment and is recommended
international codes as well as other relevant codes for such projects.

Altermative Study and Selection of Plant Layout & Optimization
Project Layout Studies

Alternative project layouts have been considered in this study to plan a scheme for
optimum utilization of potential resources to be connected with National grid. The
average gradient of River in the project area is about 4.5%. At inception stage,
based on previous studies and the Consultant field visits, two weir and two
powerhouse sites were identified to frame three alternative project fayouts.

RAB
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FEASIBILITY 8TUDY ARKARI GOL HPP

Alternative-l: W1-P1, Project Layout identified as “Uchhatur Andakht” in 2001
study.

Alternative-ll: W2-P1, Modified Project Layout identified as scheme no. 8 in
1988 study.

Alternative-lll: 'W2-P2, Project Layout identified as scheme no. 7 in 1988 study.

» W1 Waeir site identified near Uchhatur village as identified in the
study of 2001.

o«  W2: Weir site identified 1.5 km upstream of W1 as in the study of
1988.

¢ P1: Powerhouse site identified near Andakht village in the study
of 2001.

« P2: Powerhouse site identified near Shoghore Gram in the study
of 1988.

Alternative project layouts are indicated in Drawing No. ARKF-01.

The comparison of aiternative layout has been made by estimating benefits and
costs for a design discharge of 32 m%s. Structure dimensions of various project
components are taken from on topographic maps. For the three alternative layouts,
cost estimates have been prepared with the help of computer program. Net head
has been estimated for Pelton turbines to estimate power and annual energy for
average year flows.

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP '

Project Base Cost 134.8 149.3 141.2
Power 92 100 81

Energy 367.7 358.6 312.5
Energy Costl_/ {USc/kwh} 6.37 7.58 8.23

1_/ Capital Recovery Factor = 0.14 {12% discount rate, 30 years and O&M 2% of
capital cost), IDC is approx 30%.

Alternative-lil with less power cutput and high energy cost is not selected for further
studies. Alternative-l and il have economic benefits in the same range, therefore
both layouts are considered as preferred layouts to be studied for optimization of
project layout studies.

Page 1 - 10
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Optimization of Installed Capacity

Capacity optimization has been carried out for two preferred alternative layouts.
From the available monthly flows at weir sites, a design discharge range from 24 to
46 m®/s with interval of 2 m®/s has been selected. Compensation flows of 0.80 m*/s
and 2.0 m*/s have been used in winter and summer months respectively. Head
losses in water ways and efficiencies of turbine, generator and transformer have
been used to estimate power and energy. For each selected design discharge, the
benefits and cost have been estimated to compute incremental benefits and
incremental cost and NPV. The design discharge and corresponding capacity with
maximum NPV is selected.

2 26 73 332.87 141 20 337.00 154
3 28 78 344.96 146 27 345,59 160
4 30 84 353.48 152 88 354.17 167
5 32 89 361.63 159 93 362.75 175
6 34 94 369.77 165 ag 371.33 182
7 36 99 377.92 172 105 373.14 190
8 38 105 382.66 180 110 373.14 198
5 40 110 382.66 187 :ﬁs 373.14 207
10 42 116 382.66 185 122 373.14 216
11 44 121 382.66 204 128 373.14 226
12 46 127 382.66 213 134 373.14 236

The project power benefits have been quantified on basis of Long Run Marginal
Cost (LRMC). The capacity LRMC of the generation level is estimated to be about
80% of the capital cost of the OCGT. The peak and off-peak energy costs of
thermal equivalents are used as proxies for LRMC energy peak and off-peak. The
estimated LRMC at 132 kV are:

- Capacity 623 US $/kwW
- Peak Energy 16.78 US cent/kWh
- Off Peak Energy  10.37 US cent/kWh

The economic evaluation of two alternatives layouts has been carried out by using
10% discount rate, the results are graphically presented in Figure below.

Page 1- 11
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Design Discharge vs NPV

=i NPV 10% Alt 1
wfBm— NPV 10% AlE2

23.4

NPV (Million US5)

T T T

32 34 38 38
Discharge {m3/s)

Figure : Comparison of NPVs Alternatives 1 and 2

Alternative 1 has a higher NPV values as compared with that of Alternative-2 and
therefore it is is selected. The selecied design discharge for Alternative-l at the
highest NPV {130.4 Million US$) is 36 m?/s for which corresponding capacity is 99
MW.

Optimization of Reservoir Level

Reservoir level has been optimized considering a live storage for 4 hours peaking
during low flow in winter months. The range of reservoir level operation from
minimum to maximum improves the net benefits of the project in terms of
increased power in peaking hours. The availability of maximum power in peaking
hours justifies the higher reservoir level upstream of the weir intake. The increased
weir cost, area inundated and realignment of road restrict the net benefits. Up to a
certain water level, the net benefits increase and then decrease. The reservoir
length would vary from 1300 m to 1500 m for reservoir elevation from 2186 m to
2190 m respectively.

—e— Discount Rate 10%
—n— Discount Rate 12% | |

——,
T

NPY (Million US$)

30 35
Weir Height {m)

Page 1- 12

ceib¥ied True Copy



-t

1.8

FEASIBILITY STUDY ARKARI GOL HPP

The above graph indicates that NPV is maximum at a reservoir level of 2190 m. it is
therefore ‘recommended that 2190 m elevation may be taken as the maximum
reservoir level. The minimum operating level would be 2186 m. A 4 m reservoir
variation would provide a live storage of 673,794 m®. With this live storage, the
design discharge of 36 m®/s would be available during 4 hours of daily peaking even
in winter menths.

Hydropower Design, Civil Design and construction

Principal components of the project include construction of a concrete face rock fill
dam with 20m height above river bed. The dam body shall be 150m long at the
river bed level and 200 long at the crest level. Construction of dam would create a
reservoir of 1.06 hm* capacity with live storage of 0.489 hm? for normat and four
hours of peaking operation. The spillway with four regulation gates of 6 x 6 m each
and bottom out lets of the same size for periodic flushing of sediment deposits in
front of the intake structure have been provided. This will also serve to pass floods
of 1000 return period. Stilling basin of 90m length have been proposed for
dissipation of energy of the water flowing through the spiliway. A horse shoe
diversion tunnel is proposed for diversion of water during construction of dam
body, spillway and power canal intake structure designed to convey 36 m®/s water
to the power house.

Water drawn through the intake structure shall be conveyed to the desanders
through a concrete lined open channel for removal of suspended sediments.

Gated arrangements for flushing of sediments from desanders wili be provided.
Water from the desanders is planned to be conveyed through 5.6 km long, 4.15m*
2.68m horse shoe profile tunnel with multi-chamber surge shaft of 4.5 m internal
diameter and 71.2m height. The steel lined pressure shaft of 296 m length and
pressure tunnel of 3.0 m diameter and 494 m length would convey water to the
turbines installed in the power house.

The external type power house building shall be 46.7 m long, 24.2 meter wide and
13.5 m high and will be equipped with 3 vertical axis turbines coupled with
synchronized generators designed to operate with 12m®/sec inflow at 375 rem to
produce 33 MW each. Collectively 99 MW energy will be produced by the three
units.

Principal Project Features

Details of principal project features are summarized as follows:

River: Arkari Gol, left side tributary to Lutkho River
Catchment Area at dam site 1,036 km?
Mean Annual Discharge 17.00 md/s
Total annual flow 536 hm?®

JV: CI-TECH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP
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Reservoir:

Dam Structure

Stilling Basin:

Flood Control:

River Diversion:

Intake
Components:

FEASIBILITY STUDY :

ARKAR| GOL HPP

Total Storage Capacity 1.06 Mm?
live Storage Capacity 0.483 Mm?
Dead Storage Capacity 0.656 Mm?®
Surface Area 0.121 km#
Length of Reservoir 1.3 km

Rock-Fill Dam with Concrete Face

Height above Riverbed 20 m
Crest Length 200 m
Width at Riverbed (extended) _ 150 m
Length 90 m
Design Flood (Return Period 1000a) 562 m¥s
4 Vertical Gates 6 m x 6 m each
4 Botiom Qutlets 6 mx 6 m each

Diversion Flood {Construction Phase-

Return Period = 10 a) 162 m¥s
1 Diversion Tunnel (Horse Shoe)

(Protected by upstream & downstream cofferdams)

Cross Sectional Area B0 m?

2 Stoplogs 3 m x4 m each
2 Trashracks 5.89 x7.63 m each
Rack Cleaning Machine

Velocity of lifting 0.3 m/s

2 Intake gates 3 m x 4m each

Headrace Tunnel:Pressure Tunnel

Surge Tank:
Surge Shaft

JV: GI.TECH & EPAC, IEGHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP

Length 6265 m
Excavation Diameter (TBM) 44m
Internal Dimensions (horse shoe) 3.8m
Adit 1
Internal Diameter 45m
Height 71.2m
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Lower Chambers:Units 2
Length 96 m each
Cross Section 21.9 m? each

Upper Chamber: Length 74.5m
Cross Section 33.5m?

Pressure Shaft: Vertical Shaft, Steel Lined

Internal Diameter 3.0to3.2m
Difference in Height _ 296 m

Pressure Tunnel: Harizontal Tunnel, Steel Lined
Length from Pressure Shaft to Power House 494 m
Internal Diameter 3.0m

Powerhouse: External powerhouse

Turbine Shaft depth below machine hall floor 15 m
Machine Hall: Length 46.7 m

Width 24.2m

Height 13.5m
Tail Race: Covered Channel, length 100 m

1.9 Design of Hydraulic Steelwork and Hydro-mechanical Equipment
1.9.1 Hydraulic Steelwork

Hydraulic steel structures are provided to regulate the flow through different civil
structures which includes 4 vertical roller gates of spillway with stoplog
arrangements.

A gantry crane of 10 ton capacity is proposed for stoplogs’ operation and for
maintenance of spillway gates and intake gates.

Hydrauiic steel works at intake includes 2 trash racks, inclined at 80° with 30 mm
bar spacing and two hydraulically operated vertical lift gates are proposed for
regulation of flow through intake structure.

Each sand trap chamber will be equipped with one steel gate at outlets. 4 flushing
gates will be provided for flushing of sediments from sand trap chamber.

V- CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING ~ Pagei-15
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Steel works also include steel lined pressure shaft and pressure tunnel.

Hydro-Mechanical Equipment

1.9.2.1 Turbines

1.9.2.2

1.10
1.10.1

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP

The design discharge of 36 m?*'s will find an arrangement of 3 vertical-shaft Pelton
turbines as optimum from the technical and economical point of view.

Each unit will be designed for a rated flow of 12 m3/s, producing at net head of 318
m a rated mechanical turbine power of 33 MW and a turbine speed of 375 rpm.

The gross head will be 335.30 m. and net head 318.0 m. with maximum reservoir
level 2190.0 m.a.s.l. and 1854.70 m.a.s.l. tail water level.

The distribution of rated turbine flow was selected for all the three units with 12
m?s. Considering the advantages in maintenance, plant space and construction
cost, the installation of Pelton turbines is proposed:

The powerhouse will be equipped with the following:

Vertical Pelton Turbines 3 Nos.

Speed 375 rpm
Discharge per Unit 12 ms
Total Discharge 36 m¥s
Capacity per Unit 33 MW
Total Capacity 99 MwW

Equipped with an PID type electronic Speed Governor to operate the turbine inlet
valve under all conditions including emergency stops, interacting with the control
system of the plant and the monitoring equipment, allowing proper operation of the
unit under all conditions of load and speed, steadily. A protective spherical inlet
valve is located immediately upstream each turbine inlet.

Auxiliary Powerhouse Equipment.

Adequate auxiliary equipment in including a 95 t bridge-type powerhouse crane
with 20 t auxiliary hoist, additional cranes in workshops etc., work shop equipment
for maintenance and repair works, oil handling equipment and fire fighting
equipment.

Design of Electrical Equipment and Grid Interconnection
Electrical Equipment
This chapter summarizes the feasibility design considerations for the electrical

installations of the powerhouse indoor and the adjoining 11/132 kV switchyard
outdoor.

Page1 -186
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The layouts are the basis for the cost estimates and will also serve as basis for
future final design.

Equipment at the Powerhouse Building

Coupled with and mounted on top of the 3 vertical shaft Pelton turbines to be
installed in the power house will be 3 vertical shaft synchronous generators of
38.82 MVA, at a power factor of 0.85 corresponding to a nominal turbine power
of about 33.0 MW. The voltage was chosen in accordance with WAPDA Standards
to be 11 kV.

The generators are equipped with a Thyristor-controlled rotating excitation system
and a multi-functional comprehensive voltage regulation system.

The generators’ output is connected to the 11/132 outdoor switchyard by cables, laid
out in a trench.

Further on within the power powerhouse building are accommodated:

- Medium voltage (11kV) switchgear panels
- Low voltage (0.4 kV) switch boards

- DC supply systems

- Control and alarm systems

- Plant and unit control systems

- Protection equipment.

1.10.1.2 Equipment in the 132 kV Outdoor Switchyard

Cable racks for installation of cable glands for connection of 11 kV cables to the 3
Block Transformers,

3 Block transformer each 40 MVA,11kV/ 132 kV

1 Station Service transformer 6.3 MVA. 11kV/0.4kV

3 Auxilliary Service transformers

Single bus bar switchgear installation with 6 feeders equipped with SF6 gas
breakers, isolators, CTs/PTs etc.

1.10.1.3 General Equipment Data:

Generators
Speed 375 rpm

Page 1-17
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Yoitage 11 kV
Capacity 38.82 MVA
Block Transformers

Voltage 11132 kV
Capacity 40 MVA
Grid Station Transformer

Voltage 132/11 kV

Capacity 8.3 MVA

Grid Interconnection

Existing and ongoing efforts suggest that the local demand of Chitral District is
almost covered, this implies that the proposed power plants, to be developed or
under development, in the District will feed the output for consumption outside the
District. The outflow from the District to the NTDC system is estimates as follows:

ARKARI GOL HPP

2016 106 71 106 12 106 | 436
2017 106 71 106 12 106. 436
2018 185 150 185 91 185 515
2020 264 206 264 100 264 857
2021 264 206 264 100 264 857
2022 397 293 397 115 3197 1395
2024 455 335 455 121 455 1649
2025 455 335 455 121 455 1649
2026 507 369 507 127 507 1862
2028 642 463 638 143 651 2440
2029 642 453 638 143 651 2440
2031 787 571 775 158 796 3052
2032 817 592 805 162 826 3183
2034 857 520 845 156 866 3350
2035 857 620 845 156 366 3350
2037 908 657 896 172 917 3581
2038 988 710 976 181 957 3902

Two power plants, Golen Gol and Lawi are under implementation. There are ten
others. that are being planned for addition over time. There is need to develop a
consolidated, long term plan for the transmission interconnection between Chitral
District and The System. It is suggested that NTDC, Office of General Manager
Planning (Power) may be requested to undertake load flow studies and develop a
long term interconnection for transmission interconnection of Chitral District with

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, {EGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGI
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the System. Line design will need special considerations related to: spans; ice
loading; and conductor types, for portions identified to be prone to heavy winter
snow falls. Load flow and stability studies to interconnect the Arkari HPP will be
carried out under separate arrangements. The analysis is based on the fact that
the output from the proposed power plant will be delivered to the NTDC system,
since the local demand is already met or is being met with existing and ongoing
projects

Environmental & Social Impact Assessment and Resettlement

This Chapter describes Environmental and Social impact Assessment referred to
as Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) of the Arkari Gol Hydro Power Project
(Arkari Gol HPP). The study was carried out as part of the draft Feasibility Study at
the planning stage of the aforesaid project required under the Pakistan
Environmental Protection Act, 1997, Schedule Il of IEE / EIA Regulations 2000
adopted under section 33 of the aforesaid Act; and donor agencies requirement.
ElA of the project has been conducted in compliance with the guidelines of Pak -
EPA's and safeguard / operational policies of Asian Development Bank / World
Bank and other legislations and regulations applicable to natural resources,
involuntary resettlement and environment, health and safety in the country.
Outcome of the chapter shall be transformed into a standalone report that will be
submitted to the Provincial Environmental Protection Agency, Government of
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa to obtain Environmental Approval for the project.

The study was operationalized by a team comprising of experienced experts from
the diverse fields of environment, forestry and sericulture, socioclogy and
resettlement. The team collected relevant data by employing different tools and
methods including Questionnaires, Household Profile Surveys, Interviews, Field
Observations and Focus Group Discussions (FGDs). Meaningful and resuit
oriented interactions were heid with important stakeholders / officials of Forest,
Wildlife and Fisheries Departments, local populations, project affected persons
and local NGOs. The study covered Andakht, Momin, Momi, Uchhatur and
Pechuch villages of the Arkari Gol valley to gather primary and secondary data for
impacts analysis of the project.

The study compiled in the EJA report provides information on the project activities,
country’s legal and institutional framework responsible for taking decisions on IEE /
EIA studies and matters refating to protection and management of environment:
the baseline information that serves as a benchmark for assessing the project’s
impacts on the physical and ecological components of the natural and human-use
vafues and quality of life values of the human environment. Qualitative and
quantitative data collected in the baseiine study constituted basis for the study of
the subsequent positive and adverse impacts of the project on the physical,
ecological and human environment in the study area. The following sections
provides analysis of impacts along with proper mitigation measures; Environmental

V: CI-TECH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP T Page1-19
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Management Plan (EMP) environmental and resettlement cost of the project, and,
the process of consultation and scoping sessions with the stakeholders.

Analysis of data from 1992 to 2008 reveals that the hottest month in Chitral is July
with a temperature of 36.4°C, followed by August with 34.9°C. Rainfall mainly
occurs in spring and winter. Precipitation graphs show that summer and autumn
are largely dry. Since high altitude locations receive snowfall instead of rains, the
Arkari Valley, like other parts of Upper Chifral, receives relatively less rainfall.
Existing data reveals that maximum monthly rainfall of (93.8 mm} occurs in March
followed by 71.8 mm rainfall in April. Likewise, minimum rainfall (2.7 mm) occurs in
August, followed by 3.4 mm rainfall in July. Per historical records, highest relative
humidity (44%) occurs in December, followed by 43.4% in January. Lowest relative
humidity (24%) occurs in June, '

Owing to low population density and lack of commercial and industrial activities,
noise levels in the project area are rather low and well within environmentally
acceptable parameters. It can be inferred from personal observations that in
general, ambient air in Arkari valley is undisturbed and unpolluted and of
environmentally acceptable standards. Data on hydrology acquired for the Arkari
Gol at the Weir Site (1964-2011} shows the highest mean monthly flow in. the
month of July with a value of 39.48 m®/s and minimum in the month of March with a
value of 5.68 m¥s. The mean monthly flow at dam site comes as 17.02 m%/s. The
project area is part of the continental collision zones between Eurasian and Indian
plates and the intervening Kohistan, Ladakh Arc.

The Arkari Gol supports a variety of fish species and scattered trees of Juniper,
Prunus and Olea species, rich variety of medicinal and fruit plants and a good
variety of wildlife species are found in the area.

Main castes / ethnic groups of the area include the Kaiur, Zondray, Katur,
Dashmaner, Raees, Gorgakha, Khujakhel and Raees. Khowar (Chatrali) is the
main language spoken in the Project Area. Besides, Urdu is also spoken and
understood in the Project Area. The project area is undeveloped and devoid of
amenities that constitute comfortable living for the locals.

Analyses of the impacts show that except a few adverse impacts, no significant
resources in the area will get impaired to cause concerns for the decision makers.
Adverse impacts are largely related fo preconstruction and construction phase of
the project. Significant adverse impacts include land acquisition (a total of 116.56
acres) and displacement of 14 families which however, shall be adequately
compensated under the Land Acquisition Act, 1894 and safeguard / operational
policies of ADB/World Bank.

JV: CI-TECH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP Page 1-20
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Adverse impacts on biological resources including fisheries, irrigation channels,
water mills and mini hydel generation plant down the weir site shall be
compensated with the release of 0.8 m®/s to 2.0 m*/s flows during the respective
winter and summer months.

Other adverse impacts of slight significance on air quality, impacts due to
municipal solid waste, spoil materials and blasting and quarrying activities shall be
offset adequately with adopting proper mitigation measures and initiating
environment friendly initiatives in the project. The overall analyses of the impacts
show that the project is largely beneficial both at the national and locai level.

Besides, creating job opportunities and improvement of the local infrastructure and
transportation system, establishment of health and education fagcilities,
encouraging ecotourism and small businesses in the project area; the project
constitutes significant source of electric energy that is. environmentally safe and
economically cheapest enough to help trigger economic activities in the country.

Based on above, it is evident that the project is largely beneficial and due to a
comprehensive EMP and environment friendly initiatives in the project, no adverse
or harmful impacts of any significance are expected to arise in the project area.
Therefore, it is recommended that the client may request Environmental Approval
for Arkari Gol HPP as required under the law of the land.

Documentary Basis for Project Evaluation

Final Energy Calculations

Energy harvest to be expected during dry, wet and average years have been
assessed methodologically as follows.

The power and energy have been estimated on the basis of 10-daily flows. The
design capacity is computed with the following formula;

P = n*g*Q*h/1000
where:

a) P is capacity (MW) estimated from 10 days discharge and corresponding
head.

b) Qis the 10 days discharge with maximum value of design discharge Qq
(m¥/s).

¢) his net head (m), which is estimated from gross head with deduction of head
losses in the power waterway.

d) 7 is combined efficiencies of turbine, generator, transformer

e) g is acceleration due to gravity = 9.81 m/s?

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP.
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The mean annual energy is estimated on the basis of 10-daily flows using the
following formula.

E = n*g*Q*H*/10°
where:
a) E is mean annual energy in GWh/annum.

b} Qis average design discharge (m°/s).
c) tis time in hours over 10 days.

The plant factor which provides the basis for the installed capacity of the project is
calculated as follows:

pf = [E/(P*8.760)]*100
where:

a) pf = Plant factor (%)
b} E is mean annual energy (GWh/annum)
c) P is Installed capacity (MW)

Net head has been defined with h =318 m
Efficiency n of turbine, generator and transformer will be 0.92*0.97*0.99 = 0.892

Available flows at weir site of Arkari River have been elaborated from measurements
carried out over a period of 48 years at Chitral River gauging station operated by
WAPDA near Chitral Town and for different periods between 3 and 49 years at 13
more gauging station within the region, through a correlation model. The results have
been supplemented by observations on a gauging station installed within this
feasibility for more than one compete year in 2012/13

Considering requirements for residual water 0.8 m%s during winter and 2.0m*s in
summer months design discharge has been optimized as Q = 36 m¥/s

For the design discharge of 36 m®/s and net head of 319 m, the optimum installed
capacity would be 99 MW with average mean annual energy of 377.92 GWh. The
plant factor has been taken as 43.6%.

1.12.2 Cost Estimates

Estimate cost, for preparation of site and arrangement if infrastructure, design,
acquisition and erection of equipment, construction, commissioning of plant and
environmental mitigation, is estimated us under:

1V: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGIRPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP -
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Preliminary Works - 18066.014

Civil Works 865156,645

Hydraulic Steel Works 393.257

Hydro-Mechanical & Electricai Equipment 41848.376

Transmission Line 1557.308

Engineering Dasign, Engineering Supervision And Administration

15667.659
Charges >
Miscellaneous Charges [Erection, Commissioning, Testing, Duties, Taxes, 14018.012
Transportation, Shipment & Contingencies Etc.) ’
Financial Charges 641.477

1.12.3 Construction Methodology and Planning
112.3 Construction Methodology and Planning

Detailed construction and implementation schedule for the project has been prepared on
the basis of implementation of construction methods envisaged.

The planning is carried out in a way that the net construction time is neutralized from all
preparatory activities, necessary before start actual construction work, so that this will be
limited to 48 month only.

Arrangement of project financing from national and international resources must have
highest priority in this, At the same time less costly activities like definition of procurement-
and contracting modes and arrangements for construction supervision will be taken in
hand.

Preparation of physical infrastructure, however, should only be started when date of
availability of comprehensive project financing will be conceivable.

Where construction of works for power plant as such are concerned, 24 d/h must be
endeavored, applying 3 to 4 shifts per day. This however needs to consider remoteness of
the project area, harsh climate in winter season, national and local holidays and
limitations in effective working in the time of Ramadan as well as long and difficult access
to the area and project site.

These aspects also need special consideration where accommodation of the labor force
is concerned and office building are concerned.

Construction planning will carefully consider availability of
- construction material from local quarries and river deposits,

- locally manufactured materials

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP 1-23

) H f_lf\ﬂ o) "
Certified True Copy



(1

)

FEASIBILITY STUDY ARKAR| GOL HPP

- construction equipment
- delivery periods to site of equipment and construction machinery from
international market.

The construction is sequenced as follows:

- Mobilization;

- Pre-construction works;

- Divearsion tunnel;

- Dam;

- Spillway;

- Power canal from Intake structure;
- Headrace tunnel;

- 8urge chambers

- Pressure shaft and pressure tunnel

- Tailrace canal

In parallel;
- Construction of power house
- Switchyard preparation

- Erection of equipment.

Testing and Commissioning

PRELIMINARY WORKS
- tand Acqulsitlon
- Fenders, Bldding, Cantracts

PREPARATORY WORKS
- Camps and Roads

DAM STRUCTURE
- Rlver Diversion, Excavation
- Coneretlng, Grout Curtain

CONDUIT SYSTEN
- Tunnels and Shatt
- Surge Structures

POWERHQUSE CIVILWORKS
- Excavation & Cencreting
- Internal Works, Tall Race

POWERHOUSE EGUIPMENT -
- Fabrication, delivery B assembly of [
Turblnes, Generatars, Transfarmer

SWITCH YARD & TRANSMISSION

ADTITIONAL WORKS
- Rasidential Bulldings, Stores
- Workshops

COMMISSIONING & DPERATION
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Transport and Accessibility

The Arkari Gol hydropower project will entail procurement, transportation and
installation of heavy and large sized construction and powerhouse equipment such
as cranes, turbines, generators, transformers etc. Most of the equipment will be
imported from foreign countries and will first land at the Karachi Pori before being
subsequently transported to the project site. This will require specialized handling of
the equipment during loading, fransit and off-loading. This will also need a review of
the alternative transport modes and routes and their comparative suitability for the
project's transportation needs.

In terms of modes of transport, the following two options were considered:

*  Railway

»  Road

Both road and railway are suitable for the transport of project equipment. The
railway option, however, is limited to transportation of equipment up to Nowshera,
beyond which it will be transported by road. Furthermore, beyond Chakdara, the
road infrastructure will need rehabilitation / upgradation at certain sections. This wili
entail upgradation / maintenance of roads, bridges, culverts, tunnels etc. and
improvements in their existing design parameters such as widths, clear heights,
profiles, cross-sections, curves, slopes, loading class etc.

A final decision with regard to the route and mode of transport will however be taken
after suificient data is available for making a comparative analysis of the competing
options.

It is recommended that the proposed transport infrastructure up-gradation /
rehabilitation works should be pursued in due coordination with the Communication
& Works (C&W) Department of the Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and the
National Highway Authority (NHA) and accomplished before the work on the project
is commenced.

Economic and Financial Analysis

Arkari Gol Hydropower Project comprises of a Diversion Weir near Uchhatur
village. With an installed power generation capacity of 99 MW, the project is
expected to generate 378 GWh of electricity annually.

Methodology - Economic Viability

The economic viability of the proposed project has been analyzed according to the
following methodology: firstly, establishing the need for the project, secondly,
establishing that the project represents the least-cost means of achieving the
desired objectives, and finally, establishing that the project has a positive
economic return — i.e. that its economic internal rate of return (EIRR} exceeds the
economic opportunity cost of capital. The financial viability of the proposed power

Page 1 -25 .

CIV-TECH & EPAC, [EGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING oo
Certifiod True Gopy



ARKAR| GOL HPFP

FEASIBILITY STUDY

plant has been determined on the basis of it being a stand-alone privately owned
power plant. The NEPRA and PPIB stipulations towards determination of reference
tariff have been followed. '

Rationale for Investment

Pakistan Is suffering from an acute energy crisis, which is caused by (i) insufficient
energy supply (i) increasing demand (ili) inefficient use of energy (iv) improper
pricing .The system is at present stretched on a number of counts. This
sub-optimality is expected to continue in the near future. The near future may see
further deterioration in system performance.

Project Outputs

The project size (installed capacity and design discharge) has been optimized.
This optimization has been made on the basis of a marginal analysis. The
optimized installed capacity is 99 MW, 377.92 GWh/a average energy at 43.49%
plant factor. Peak energy is estimated to be 138.51 GWh/a,

Estimation of Benefit
Incremental Consumption Valued at Willingness-to-Pay

Willingness-to-pay (WTP} for incremental consumption was estimated by
comparing the current price of alectricity with the price of alternative sources of
energy..Due to the fact that the primary and secondary transmission grids are
peak-constrained, it has been assumed that the bulk of incremental consumption
will be in the residential sector .The estimates are presented as follows:

Re.side:;tia.l 37.54
Agricultural 33.73
Commercial 34.41
Industrial 33.26
Weighted average 35.47

Source; Consultants Estimates

The proposed investment is feasible, when benefits are valued on consumer surplus
basis, as the NPV, at a discount rate of 12%, is 407 M. US$ and the IRRis. 7.93%

The uncertainty in costs and benefits is reflected in the sensitivity analysis, which is

presented in as follows:
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Basé Case 407 27.93
' Sensitivity '
Costs +10% 394 26.43
Costs +20% : 381 25.10
Benefits -10% 354 26.34 §
Benefits -20% 300 24.56
Cost +20%, Benefit -20% 273 21.87 §
Switching Value
Consumer Surplus c/kwh | 5.88
Consumer Surplus ) : ' Rs./kWh | 5.85

The project seems to be feasible on certain assumptions, The project also seems to
be based on robust parameters as it is feasible on 10% and 20% reduction of
benefits and on 10% and 20% increase of costs, and the project is feasible even if
costs increase by 20% and benefits reduce by 20% .The switching value at which
the project is marginally feasible is when the gross consumer surplus at generation
level is 5.88 c/kWh. The average bulk tariff in FY 2012 was about 10.82 ¢/kWh
(2013 bulk tariff was about 12 c/kWh).The project seems robust as it is feasible
even with significant changes in benefits or costs.

Economic Feasibility on LRMC Basis

The project seems to be feasible when benefits are quantified on the basis of LRMC
of capacity, peak energy and off peak energy at 132 kV level. The NPV at 12%
discount rate is about 110 M.US$ whereas the IRR is about 17%. The uncertainty in
costs and benefits is reflected in the sensitivity analysis, which is presented as
follows:

Analysis Parameter

Base Case

Sansitivity
Costs +10%
Costs +20%
j Benefits -10%
Benefits -20%
Costs +20%, Benefits -20%
Switching Value

Capacity

Peak Energy
Off Peak Energy
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The proposed investment seems to be robust as it is economically viable even when
benefifs and costs are changed by 20%, even a combined sensitivity with benefits
decreased by 20% and costs increased by 20% still results in a feasible project. The
switching values (estimates of LRMC which are used as benefit parameters) at
which the project is only marginally feasible are: firm capacity 352 $/kW; peak
energy 9.48 c/kWh; and off peak energy 5.86 ¢/

The project seems {o be economically feasible both when benefits are valued on
willingness to pay (consumer surplus) basis and upon LRMC basis

Financial Tariff and Feasibility

Financial Assumptions

The financial analysis of the project is based on the assumption that the project will
be developed as a standalone, privately financed project. Interest rates, discount
rates and other assumptions used all reflect the point of view or perspective of a
private investor and conform fo PPIB/NEPRA guidelines on the subject. The tariff
calculations are presented as follow:

Lev.
Average at12 %

CPP Rs./kW/m
EPP Rs./kWh
Total Rs./kwWh
Lev. Rs./kwWh

Financial Feasibility

The financial analysis of the proposed hydropower plant has been carried out in
accordance with the Asian Development Bank’s (ADB) Financial Management and
Analysis of Projects. All financial costs and benefits have been expressed at early
2013 constant prices. Cost streams used for the purposes of financial internal rate of
return (FIRR) determination (i.e., capital investment, operations and maintenance,
insurance costs and taxes) reflect cosis of delivering the estimated benefits. The
NEPRA approved tariff for Suki Kinari, a high head hydroelectric project was used to
estimate the financial benefits.

To estimate the weighted average cost of capital (WACC), it has been calculated
that the foreign exchange loan component of the project is US $ 73.28 million
(without IDC) whereas the local loan component is US$ 59.86 million (without IDC).
Equity is estimated to be US $ 33.31 million. Local capital cost has been calculated
as 14.5%, whereas foreign capital cost has been calculated as 3.00% while the
owner expects 15% return on equity. Domestic inflation is to be 10.0% per annum,
whereas foreign inflation is taken to be 1.5%. The WACC for the investment
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program Is 6.322%.The project seems fo be financially feasible as the FIRR is
above the WACC of 6.322%; risks are quantified by the sensitivity analysis
presented, in Table 13.36, below:

: Sensitivity Analys

FIRR %
Base Case 7.94
Cost +10% 720

‘ORM +10% _ 7.81

' Cost +10% O&M +10% 7.08
Switching Value
Tariff ' ' 5.75
WACC ' 6.32

The project is financially feasible on central assumptions. The project is based on
robust parameters and will be able {o stand reasonable uncertainties.

Conclusion and Recommendation

Conclusions

On the basis of detailed analysis of power potential and plant operation options, it
has been concluded that at rated discharge of 36 m®/s and net head of 319 m, the
optimum installed capacity will be 99 MW with average mean annual energy of
377.92 GWh. The plant factor has been taken as 43.6%.

The financial model was developed and analysis carried out to determine feasibility
of the project. The project seems to be financiaily feasible. The project is, however,
sensitive to cost overruns of reduction in tariffs. The variations induced in the key
parameters however do not affect the overall financial viability of the project.

Recommendations
A power plant with installed capacity of (3 x 33) 99.0 MW is recommended for

implementation.

Observations and recordings of flow and sediment data should be continued to build
up a data bank to make available as much data as possible for detailed design stage.

Model studies of the spillway, intake structure and desanders should be carried out to
confirm the following:

Functioning of low level outlets at the dam/spillway
- Sediment flushing

- Efficiency of desanders
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- Integrated planning of dispatch and transmission of power produced by the
Chitral Valley projects to the National Transmission and Dispatch
Company.

In view of the power shortage in the country, the project is recommended to be
implemented on fast track.

, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP
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Power Market

Introduction

Electricity is the basic requirement of life and economy and most vital instrument of
socioeconomic development of a country. Electricity has pivotal role in running
machinery in factories and industrial units, for lighting our cities and powering our
vehicles. Provision of electricity to alt sectors of economy is a challenge for the
government. '

There has been an enormous increase in the demand of electricity as a result of
industrial development and population growth, in comparison to enhancement in

electricity production. Supply of electricity is, therefore, far less than the demand,

resultantly crisis has emerged and load shedding has become a routine of the day.

This situation is expected to persist for at least a decade, as capacity addition in
the system will take its own time. However the government is pursuing a multi-
dimensional approach for capacity addition in the system that inciudes import of
power from neighboring countries, encouraging national and international
investment in Pakistan besides mobilizing own resources. In addition Provincial
Governments are also being encouraged for investment in the sector. All these
efforts are not expected to bring revolutionary resulis as the government resources
are limited and private sector including national and international are hesitant in
bringing investment in Pakistan. This is basically due to prevailing governance and
law and order situation in the country.

In this situation the efforts being made by KP government will be helpful in
reducing gap in supply and demand.

History of Power Development in Pakistan

At the time of independence in 1947, Pakistan inherited about 60 MW of power
generation capability for a population of 31.5 million, yielding 4.5 units per capita
consumption. These were private sector owned power plants. However, the
Government of Pakistan in 1952 by acquiring majority shareholding took control of
the Karachi Electric Supply Company (KESC) engaged in generation, transmission
and distribution of electric energy to the industrial, commercial, agricultural and
residential consumers of the metropolitan city of Karachi and its suburbs.

fn 1958, Water and Power Development Authority (WAPDA) was created as a
semi-autonomous body for the purpose of coordinating and giving a unified
direction to the development of in water and power sectors, which were previously
being dealt with by the respective electricity and irrigation department of the
provinces. In 1959, the generation capacity had increased to 119 MW and by that
time the country had entered the phase of development, which required a
dependable infrastructure, electricity being its most significant part. The task of
power development was undertaken by WAPDA by executing a number of hydel
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and thermal generation projects, a transmission network and a distribution system,
which could sustain the load of the rapid economic development.

After the first five years of its operation by 1964-65, the electricity generation
capability rose to 636 MW. The task of accelerating the pace of power
development picked up speed and by the year 1970, the generating capability rose
from 636 MW to 1331 MW with installation of a number of thermal and hydropower
units. In the year 1980 the system capacity touched 3,000 MW which rapidly rose
to over 7,000 MW in 1990-91.

The rapid progress witnessed a new life to the social, technical and economic
structures of the country. Mechanized agriculture started, industrialization picked
up and general living standards improved. Due to fast economic development, the
government could not keep momentum of development of power sector due to
resource constraint. The government resources were limited and were not able to
invest the required amount to power sector as it had responsibility for social sector
as well more investment was needed. This resulted in heavy load shedding in
1990s.

Induction of Private Seél:or in Power Generation

in order to give enough impetus to the power sector, the government in 1985
declared the power sector as an industry and consequently power sector also
became eligible for getting all the incentives that was available to industrial sector.

This did not prove successful and no private sector came forward for investment.
In 1994 the government issued an investor friendly power policy that was very well
received by national and International investors and more than the required
amount of additional power generation capacity was committed by the government
that caused power surplus situation,

The over commitment of additional power generation capacity was based on the
presumption that economic growth will keep its momentum. But actually it did not
happened and economic growth slowed down that proved detrimental to the
gconomy as the government had to pay capacity charges to the investors as per

- power policy and the agreement signed with the investors.

Power Policy

In order to eliminate power shortage/load shedding in the minimum possible time,
the Government constituted an Energy Task Force in 1993 to devise a
consolidated and comprehensive palicy for revamping the energy sector. On the
recommendations of the Energy Task Force, the Government announced a “Policy
Framework and Package of Incentives for Private Sector Power Generation
Projects” in March 1994 for a large scale induction of private sector in power
development and the terms for Independent Power Producer (IPPs) were
standardized.
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Under this policy, the government offered a fix levelized tariff of USD 0.0557/kWh
to the prospective investors (USD 0.08.1/kWh average for 1-10 years} and a
number of other incentives to attract foreign investment in the power sector.

The Power Policy 1994 helped in overcoming load shedding in the country. Rather,
it resulted in surplus power as the actual load growth was much less than that
projected and the projects were contracted beyond requirement. Moreover the
Policy attracted only thermal projects resulting in reversal of the hydro/thermal
genaration mix.

In order to provide one window facility to new investors in the power sector the
GoP created a new organization, the Private Power and Infrastructure Board
(PPIB), to negotiate agreements with sponsors and provide assistance in obtaining
necessary government consents through a ‘single window'. This power policy
resuited in an enthusiastic response from the international investor community.
The bulk supply tariff offered to the IPPs became a controversial issue as
consumer tariffs had to be increased to meet the substantial financial commitments
made for the IPP construction projects.

The 1994 power policy was only for a limited period and in 2002, the government
issued a new policy (the 2002 Power Policy), which basically has the same
structure and set of incentives as the 1994 policy but is broader in terms of its
applicability.

The government's new power policy (2002) encourages solicited and unsolicited
proposals for the establishment of new power plants. Unsolicited proposals allow
investors to install a power plant at a location of their choice while solicited
proposals give the government the opportunity to locate proposed power plants as
it desires, generally, close to a foad center. However the 2002 power pelicy could
not bring same resuit due to one reason or the cther.

Restructuring/ Unbundling of Power Wing of WAPDA

In the past there were two vertically integrated power supply companies operating
in Pakistan, i.e., the Water and Power Development Authority (WAPDA) and
Karachi Electric Supply Corporation (KESC). WAPDA was responsible for
supplying electricity to various sectors of the economy across the country apart
from the greater metropolis of Karachi which is supplied by the KESC. However,
with the passage time and unprecedented expansion of WAPDA was witnessed
thereby loosing control of the government which resulted in en-efficiencies and
governance issues. Therefore the government decided to restructure the power
wing of WAPDA. Under the restructuring plan all the power generation,
transmission and distribution formations was made separate corporate entities
leading to privatization.  Accordingly the power wing of WAPDA has been un-
bundled into ten Distribution and four Generation companies and one
Transmission and Dispatch Company known as the National Transmission and
Dispatch Company (NTDC).
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These fourteen (14) corporate entities are:

1. Ten (10) Distribution Companies (DISCOs)} as under:

" Lahore Electric Supply Company (LESCO)

u Gujranwala Electric Power Company (GEPCQ)
" Faisalabad Electric Supply Company (FESCO})
= Islamabad Electric Supply Company (IESCO)

" Multan Electric Power Company (MEPCO)

. Peshawar Electric Power Company (F’ESCO)
Ll Hyderabad Electric Supply Company (HESCO)
b Quetta Electric Supply Company (QESCO)

. Triba! Electric Supply Company (TESCO)

Ll Sukkar Electric Power Company (SEPCO)

2. Four (4) Thermal Power Generation Companies (GENCOs)

. Southern Generation Power Company Limited (GENCO-1) head
quarter at Jamshoro district Dadu near Hyderabad Sindh.

. Central Power Generation Company Limited (GENCQO-2) head
quarter at Guddu district Jacebabad Sindh.

= Northern Power Generation Company Limited (GENCO-3) head
quarters at TPS Muzaffargarh district Muzaffargarh Punjab.

" Lakhra Power Generation Company Limited (GENCO-4)
Headquarter at WAFDA House Lahore.

] One (1) National Transmission & Power Dispaich Company (NTDC)

These un-bundled companies are being controlled by another newly created
company called Pakistan Electric Power Company (PEPCQ) working under the
Ministry of Water & Power. The water wing of WAPDA was not fouched and it
remained responsible for controlling dams and hydro generation installed in the
country in public and private sector.

The function of NTPC is to control national transmission & grid network and
economical dispatch of hydro & thermal power generation by various companies
connected through the national grid system. It is also responsible for
development, operation and maintenance of National Grid system of the country
(i.e. primary grid system).
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Power Supply

The main electric power producers in Pakistan are Water and Power Development
Authority (WAPDA), Karachi Electricity Supply Company (KESC) and Pakistan
Atomic Energy Commission (PAEC, the operafor of the two nuclear power plants).
Besides these three main power producers, a number of independent power
producers (IPPs) established since 1994 are also contributing significantly to the
electricity sector of the country.

Installed Capacity

The total installed capacity in the country (both PEPCO and KESC system) is
about 23,302 MW (20,774 MW in PEPCO and 2,803 MW in KESC system), which
constitutes 15,888 MW in thermal power (13,930 MW in PEPCO and 2,666 MW in
KESC system), 6,844 MW in hydropower (6,733 MW operated by WAPDA and
111 MW operated by IPPs), and 787 MW in nuclear. Of this total thermal capacity
in the PEPCO system, 4,900 MW is operated and maintained by various
corporate entities of PEPCO known as Generation Companies (GENCOs) and
other isolated system, while 8,380 MW is operated and maintained by the private
sector. In the KESC system, only 285 MW is run by the private sector whereas
rests of the plants are owned by the KESC. Almost all the thermal power
generation units operated and maintained by GENCOs and KESC are capable of
using multiple fuels, i.e., oil and gas simultaneously.

De-Rated Capacity

The power plants operating under the PEPCO and KESC system are old and
have depreciated through natural wear and tear. As a result, the system’s actual
capability is much lower than its installed capacity.

The total installed hydropower generation capability varies due to the water
outflows from the Tarbela and Mangla reservoirs that mainly depend upon
irrigation indents.

These water indents are controlled by Indus River System Authority (IRSA), since
these reservoirs are buiit only for the purpose of irrigation in the country and
power being produced as a by-product.

The installed and de-rated power generating capacity of the country is given in the
Tables 2-1, 2-2, 2.3, 2-4 & 2-5
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Major Hydropower Stations (Public)
1 Tarbzala Raservoir 1577- 1993 . 3,702 3,..702 1,874
2 - Mangla Reservoir 1567-1994 1,0c0 1,120 450
3 . Warsak Reservoir 1960-1931 243 150 20
4 | Chashma Low Head 2001 184 184 184
5 GhaziBarotha Power 2003-2004 1,450 1,450 1160
Chanal
6 Khan Khwar Canal 2011 72 68 68

Sub Total 6,427 6,714 3,756

7 Small Hydro Stations 56 41
8 Malakand — 111 Canal November 2008 31 81 81
9 Jagran—| {AIK) Nullah October 2000 30 30 30
Sub total hydropower {Private} ' 111 111 111

Grand Total of Hydropower 6,627 6,881 3,908

Source: NPSEP 2011~2030 final report by SNC-LAVALIN prepared for NTDC
& Electricity Marketing Data (37" issus} by Planning Power NTDC.

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP PAGE 26

Aoe
Certitiad True Copy



FEASIBILITY STUDY ARKARI GCL HPP

PEPCO Existing Installed Thermal Power Generation Capacity {(Public

GENCO-1 ' . 1,024 840
1 |Jamshoro Steam 19901991 250 700
2 |Kotri Gas Turh. 1970~1994 174} 140
GENCO-1I 1,690| 1,180
3  |Guddu Steam/ gas turbine/ CC 1974~1994 l .1655. ' 1155
4 |Quetta November 1984 35 25
GENCO-II ' 1,941 1,550Q
5 |Muzaffargarh .Steam 1993~1397 1,350 1,130}
6 |Faislabad Steam 1967 132 1004
7 |Faislabad Gas Turb/ CC 1975 244 216
&8 |Multan Steam 1963 195 S0
9 |Shahdara June 196% 20 208
GENCO-IV
V 10 |lLakhra Coal 1~3 Steam 1995-1996 150 304
Total (GENCO-IV} 150 309
Sub Total GENCOs 4,805 3,600
Isolated Generaticn (Panjgoor and Pasni 56 35
& Totai GENCOs isolated Generation 4,861 3,635
Nuclear Power Stations
1 [CHASHNUP -1 Nuclear October 2000 325 300
2 |CHASHNUP - 1| Nuclear March 2011 325 315
Tatal Nuélear 650 615
Total Thermal Public Entities 5,511 4,250I
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Private / Independent Power Producers (IPPs)
1 KAPCO CCGTs 1987~1997 1,639 1,342
2 HUBCO Steam Turb. 1996~1897 1,292 1,200
Kohinoar Energy
3 Diesel Engines June 1997 131 124
Limited
4 .AES LALPIR Ltd. Steam Turb. November 199‘)‘ 362 350
5 AES PAKGEN Ltd. Steam Turb, February 1998 365 349
6 SEPCOL Diesel Engines March 1999 135 110
7 HCPC CCGTs September 1999 140 129
8 ROUSCH CCGTs December 1859 450 395
9 Saba Power Steam Turb, December 1959 134 126
10 FKPCL CCGTs April 2000 157 151
11 JPGL Diesel Engines March 2000 135 107
12 UCH-I Power CCGETs October 2000 586 551
13 AEL Gas Engine June 2001 31 27
14  |TNB Liberty Power CCGT September 2001 235 212
15 Attock Gen Limited Diesel Engines March 2009 165 156
16 Atlas Power Ltd. Diesel Enginas December 2009 215 214
17 Engro Energy CCGTs March 2010 233 214
18 Saif Power CCGTs Aprii 2010 229 205
19 Orlent Power Ltd. CCGTs May 2010 229 213
20 Nishat Power Ltd. Diesel Engines June 2410 202 195
21 NCPL Diesel Engines July 2010 202 156
22 |Sapphire Electric CCGTs October 2010 229 212
23 Liberty Pawer Tech Diesel Engines tanuary 2011 202 196
24 Hub Norwal Diesel Engines April 2011 219 214
25 Foundation power CCGTs May 2011 230 178
26 Halmore Power CCGTs June 2011 229 207
Total Thermal IPPs under PEPCO 8,381 7,573
Total PEPCO Thermal 13,892 11,808
Total PEPCO System in Summer| 20,519 18,604
Total PEPCO System in Winter 20,519 15,716

" V: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP
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Thermal Own by KESC 1656 1463

1 {Bin Qasim Steam Turbine 5 210 1260 1120

2 [5GTPS Reciprocating Gas Engines 32 2.7 a3 883

3 |KGTPS Reciprocating Gas Engines 32 2.7 33 38

4 |KCCPP CCGTs 4 55 220 167

JiPPs Thermal in KESC System 366.5) 354

1 |Gul Ahmed Energy Reciprocating Diesel Engihes 9 14.3 128.5 128

2 |Tepal Energy Limited [Reciprocating Diesel Engines 12 10.6 127] 124

3 |DHA Cogen CCGTs 1 80 80 71

4 IL Reciprocating Diesel Engines 6 3.2 19 19

R el . 2w

Nuclear Power Stations in KESC System

1 [KANUPP Nuclear 1 137 137 209

Total Thermal in KESC System 2,159.5 1,897

Source: NPSEP 2011~2030 final report by SNC-LAVALIN prepared for NTDC &
Electricity Marketing Data (37th issue} by Planning Power NTDC

L WAPDA Hydropower 6516 6770 3797
2. Public Thermal Plants 4500 3615 3615
3 IPPs Thermal 8,380 7,575 7,575
IPPs Hydropower 111 111 111
4 Nuclear {PAEC) 787 695 695
6. KESC (Own) 1656 1463 1463
7 KESC (Private) a7 354 354
Total 22,679 20,501 17,613 |
Total Country
Total Country System in Summer 22,678 20,501
Total Country System in Winter 22,678 17,613

Source: Electricity Marketing Data (37" issue) by Planning Power NTDC

IV GIV-TECH & EPAG, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP
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The existing total de-rated capability of hydro and thermal power stations of the
country is 20501 MW, in which the hydel and thermal portions are 6781 MW {33%)
and 13720 MW (67%) respectively. Presently there is substantial gap in power
demand and supply. Less than the required power generation capability it is not
only the reason but there are many other system constraints i.e. schedule or forced
outages of generating units, shortage of oit , nonpayment of energy bill to the IPPs
etc. Therefore, the power demand and supply gap is more prominent and to cope
with this gap, NPCC and DISCOs carry out load sheddingfload management round
the clock to secure and stabilize the power system parameters. The actual system
generation, load shedding fload management carried out by the system operator
and computed demand during the year 2012 are given in Table 2-6 and Figure 2-1.

January 12 8415 2923 11339 3.4.7;1%
February 12 - 8221 3133 11354 38.11%
March 12 8670 4036 12705 46.55%
April 12 9214 3846 1306¢ 41.75%
May 12 10350 A7T7 15128 46.15%
June 12 10877 5265 16142 48.40%
July 12 12746 3952 16697 31.00%
August 12 12830 2836 15666 22.10%
September 12 11254 2655 13509 23.59%
October 12 10671 2360 132031 22.12%
Navember 12 8265 2048 11313 22.11%
Decamber 12 8597 2881 11479 33.51%

Source: Power Data Reference Book, Planning Power NTDC

" JV: CIV-TEGH & EPAC, [EGHPD, GESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP
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Figure 2-1: Actual Generation, Load Management & System
Computed Demand 2012

2.10 Hydropower Potential in Pakistan

At independence hydro generation capacity was only 10.7 MW (9.6 MW -
Malakand Power Station & 1.1 MW - Renala Power Station). With the passage of
time, new hydropower projects of small and medium capacities were
commissioned including the first water storage dam and power house at Warsak
due to which country's hyde! capability rose to about 267 MW up till 1963.In the
year 1967 & 1977, Mangla Dam on Jhelum River and Tarbela Dam on Indus River
having the provision of power generation of 1000 MW and 3702 MW were
commissioned respectively.

Pakistan has been blessed with ample water resources but could store only 13%
of the annual flow of its rivers. The statistics warrant construction of a number of
reservoirs to enhance availability of water which stands at 1,070 cubic meters per
capita. The Country is endowed with hydropower resources of about 60,000 MW,
almost all of which lie in the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Gilgit- Baltistan Area, Azad
Jammu & Kashmir, and Punjab, whereas abundant hydropower potential i.e.
about 89% is still untapped and yst to be harnessed. Figure 2-2 shows identified
sites of hydropower resources on major rivers of the Country.
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2.10.1Existing Hydropower Generation Capacity

The total capacity of existing 16 hydropower stations connecied with National
Grid System as of 2013 is 6,881 MW including 30 MW Jagran hydropower
praject of AJ&K HEB. During the year 2012-13, aggregate energy sharing of the
hydropower plants was 34.4%.

The Country existing hydropower resources can be divided into six regions in
order to their geographical position, i.e. Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Punjab, Sindh,
Balochistan State Azad Jammu & Kashmir and Gilgit Baltistan. Figure 2-3
shows region wise share of existing installed hydropower generation projects
under operation, whereas Table 2-7 shows its detail.

5000

2,071 T T
‘Rinstallsd Sapadcity

4000

3000

Installed Capacity (MW}
2000

=

=2 |

&

2

133
0 []
= T T T S T T
Khyher Pujaby Azad Jammu & Gllgit Baltistan Sindh Balochistan
Pakhtunkhwa Kashmir
Regions

Figure 2-3: Region Wise Share Of Existing Installed Hydropower Projects

A. WAPDA

1 Tarbela Indus River, Tarbela 3702
2 Warsak Kabul River, Pashawar 190
3 Khan Khwar Indus River 72

4 03 Small Hydropower Various Locati 20
arious Locations
Projects less than SOMW
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Ghazi Ba“r.dt.l'-]é. Indus River, Attack i 1450
Chashma Indus River, Chashma 184
05 Small Hydropower Projects lass ) )

3 Various Locations 36
than 50MW

lehlum River, Mirpur
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1. Satpara Satpara River, Sakardu 16
2. Kar Gah Phase VI Gilgit 4
B. PHYDO

Malakand-lll

River Swat, Malakand 81

13 $Small Hydropower
Projects less than 10 MW

Various location 6

Jagran

Jagran River/Neelum 30.4

7 Small Hydel Projects less
than 5 MW

Various Location 8.3
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ydel Project less
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20 MW
solated with National Grid System
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- Various Locations 113

Source: Hydropower Resources of Pakistan by PPIB

2.10.2 Seasonal Variations of Hydropower Generation

The seasonal variations of reservoir levels and consequent reduction In Power
outputs of storage type hydel projects in Pakistan are very pronounced. Tarbela
with maximum head of 450 feet experiences variation of 230 feet while Mangla
has 162 feet variation against the maximum head of 360 feet. The lean flow
period of Tarbela reservoir is from November to June when the Capability
reduces to as low as about 1,350 MW against the maximum of 3,692 MW dusing
high head period i.e. August to September (15% permissible overloading on
Units 1~10).Lean flow period of Mangla reservoir is observed from October to
March when the minimum generating capability is 500 MW. The capability rises
to as high as 1,150 MW during 'high head' period (15% permissible overloading}.

In all, WAPDA's hydropower generating capabhility varies between the two
extremities of 2,279 MW and 6,937 MW over the cycle of a year.

2.10.3 Hydropower Potential in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa is bounded by Afghanistan in the west, Gilgit Baltistan in
the north, the State of Azad Jammu & Kashmir in the northern east, Punjab in
the southeast and Baluchistan in the south. It is separated from Punjab by the
River Indus. The main rivers of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa are the Indus, Kabul, Swat,
Kunhar, Kohat, Kurram, Tochi, Chitral, Panjkoora, Ushu and Gabral. About 142
project sites with a total capacity of 24736 MW were identified having high,
medium and small head. Qut of these, 19 projects are in operation with a total
capacity of 3849 MW, 27 sites are under implementation in the pubiic sector with
a total capacity of 9559 MW, whereas 11 sites are under implementation in the
private sector with a total capacity of 2398 MW. Mostly, these are run-of river
sites, with small poundage for daily peaking.

Table 2-8 & 2-9 shows the details of the projects, their location and capacities
under implementation in public sector, private sector and identified hydropower
resources (raw sites) in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa respectively, whereas Figure 2-4
shows the location of operational hydropower projects and identified hydropower
potential (Raw sites) in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa.

JV: GIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNVEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERNG GROUP ~ PAGE 215
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1 Dassu | Kohistan/indus River 4320

2 Chor Nullah System Kohistan/ Chor Nullah/Indus River 1176

3 Munda Multipurpose Dam - Mohmand Agency, FATA/Swat River 660

4 Spat Gah {lower) Kohistan/ Spat Gah/Indus River 567

5 Spat Gah (middle) Kohistan/ Spat Gah/Indus River 501

6 Spat Gah (upper) Kohistan/ Spat Gah/Indus River 273

7 Duber Khwar Kohistan/DuberkKhwar/Indus River 130

3 Kayal Khwar Kohistan/Kayal Khwar/ Indus River 125

g9 Allai Khwar Mansehra/Allai Khwar/Indus River 121

10 ' Gaolen Gol Chitral/Golen Gal/Mastu] River - 106 §

11 Kurram Tangi Dam North Wazirstan Agency/Kurram River s3]

12 Khan Khwar Kehistan/ Khan Khwaf/lndus River 72

13 Gomal Zam Dam Waziristan Agency/ Gomal Zam 18

14 Tarbela 4th Extension Haripur /Indus River 960
Sub Total 9112

1 Sharmai Dir/Panjkara River 115
2 Matiltan Swat/ Ushu Khwar 84
3 Koto Bir/Panjkora River 52
4 10 Small Hydel Project less than 50 MW Various Locations 319
Sub Total 370

Grand Total 9482

Source: Hydro Power Resources of Pakistan by PPIB

1 Mahandri Mansehra/Manur Nullah 13.20
2 Tangar Mansehra/Barniali Katha 12.54
3 Machai Machal Canal RD 52+775 2,50

Total 28.24

“JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DE
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1 Mansehra/KE;Barml_}wer o 8210

2 Kaigah Kohistan/Kandiah River/Indus River 548

3 Asrit-Kedam Swat/Swat River 215

4 Kalam-Asrit Swat/Swat River 197

75 | Madian Swat/Swat River 157

.6* Shushghai-Zhendoli _ Chitral/Tirich Gol 144

7 Gabral Kalam Swat/Gabral Khwar/Swat River 137

8* Shogo-Sin Chitral/Lutkho River : . 132
Total 2370 |

*Feasibility Study conducted by PPIB under ADB Technical Assistance Loan.
Source: Hydro Power Resources of Pakistan by PPIB |

1V: CIV-TEGH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP '
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Figure 2-4: Hydropower Potential in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa
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Electricity Demand

The electricity demand is a function of GDP growth, population growth, unmet
demands etc. at present the available capacity is not capable of meeting
demand due to various reasons including capacity and capability as sufficient
fuel is not available for power plants.

However in order to asses’ future power requirement it is essential that a
realistic demand is made so that adequate planning could be made for capacity
addition.

Demand Forecasting

Demand forecasting or Load forecasting is an important element of the power
planning process inveolving pfediction of future level of demand. The forecast
serves as the basis for supply-side and demand-side planning. Load forecasts
are typically prepared by utilities for different time frames and levels of detail and
used for generation, transmission as well as distribution planning. it further helps
investment planning for these sectors and for their associated industries like
manufacturing, fuel and resource exploration etc.

Load forecast or power demand is not independent of the Country's economic
situation, its estimation depends on many diverse parameters related to
development of demestic, commercial, agricultural and industrial sectors. Smali
variations in parameter estimations can produce huge swings in the
investment volumes required and can make or break the decisions of
country’'s economic development.

Long range planning requires a system level forecast of total generation
requirement and peak demand. Planning Power NTDC is responsible for
developing medium and long term forecast for the whole country as ordained in
its transmission license granted by NEPRA. Accordingly the demand forecast
has been carried out by Planning Power NTDC with the consultation of other
stakeholders.

The Demand forecast is based on Multiple Regression Technique using
historical data, variables like electricity consumption for different categories,
electricity tariff, GDP of different sectors, CP!, population of the country, number
of customer for different electricity tariff categories etc. On the other hand
transmission and distribution planning require for more load level and geographic
detail to assess location, timing and loading of individual lines, substation and
transformation facilities. There are three types of load forecasts; long-term,
medium-term and short-term. In PEPCO system, Planning Power NTDC carried
ouft medium term and long term forecasts.

Regression Methodology
The regression methodology using in Multiple Regression Technique by
Plannhing Power NTDC is summarize herein.

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGTHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP
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The long-term forecast is carried out by regression analysis of consumption
trends, relationships with price, GDP, population and number of customers.

A detailed regression analysis involves the review of fundamental quantitative
relationships in the electricity demand and the independent variables of the
equation like electricity price, sector's GDP, and population of Pakistan etc.

For this model the impact of historical load management (load shedding) is
included in the data base, so the resulting equations estimate the actual energy
demand.

Parameters of Regression
Dependent Variables (Y)

Electricity consumption (GWh)} for various consumer categories including
domestic, commercial, industrial and agricultural are our selected dependent
variables.

Independent Variables (X)

The potential independent variables {demographic and economic) for regression
analysis include;

» Total GDP

»  GDP by major sector {agriculture, manufacturing, trade, services, efc.)
»  Electricity revenue per kWh sold by customer class (real price)

»  Number of customers by consumption category

»  Population

Lag variables

In many cases, dependence of variable Y (Dependent Variable) on
another Variable X (Independent variabie) is not instantaneous. Generally, Y
responds to X with a lapse of time. Such a lapse of time is called Lag.

Dummy Variable

Dependence of variable Y (Dependent Variable) is not only influenced by
variables which can be quantified on some well defined scale (e.g., income,
price, costs, etic.) but also by variables which are essentially qualitative in
nature (e.g., sex, race, color, change in government policy, etc.). Such
qualitative variables usually indicate presence or absence of a “quality” by
assuming value (0 or 1) called the “dummy variables”.

Regression Equations

Electricity consumption forecast through regression analysis is very common and
popular in the world. Take electricity consumption as a dependent variable

2Z_AD
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while electricity price, GDP, population and selectricity consumers eic are
different independent variables. These relationships form a combination of
different independent and dependent variables. This is called a regression
equation as shown below:

S= BIX1+B2X2% v rveser sk BXNH s 4G

Where: S = sales in a specific category
C = a constant
X1, X2, X3 are independent variables
B 1, B2, Ba, are coefficients derived from least squares regression
analysis ' '
The analysis is done with log values as well as without log values in this
equation

Projection of Electricity Demand and GDP Growth of the Country

The economy of the country has undergone unexpected changes during the last
ten years. The GDP growth rate in 2000-01 was 2.0% per annum that increased
to 9.0% per annum in 2004-05. International high oil prices along with low
production of food crops in the country has decreased economic growth fo 6.8%
per annum in the financial year 2006-07 and further to 5% in the year 2007-08.
The global financial crisis and law and order situation in the country has further
decreased the economic growth to 0.4% in 2008-09. During 2009-10, the
economy of the country recovered slightly to 2.6%. Economic analysts foresee
that the economy of the country will gradually recover to 6% by 2014-15. Details
of percentage GDP growth, percentage of Domestic and total Electricity
Consumption and. percentage Core Inflation with respect to each fiscal year are
given in the Table 2-10, while Figure 2-5 shows the graphical analysis of these
variables.

1996 10.0% 5.4% 5.0% 3,7% 11.7% 6.6% 10.5%
1997 5.4% 4.3% 3.6% -0.1% 0.1% 1.7% 11.4%

7.5%
1958 5.0% 2.3% 1.6% 6.9% 4.5% 3.5%

2000 11.9% 52% 4.8% 1.5% 5.1% 3.8% 3.5%

2001 5.7% 5.0% 3.1% 9.3% C-22% 2.0% 4.2%
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2002 2.6% 4.2% 4.8% 4.5% 0.1% 3.1% 2.0%
2003 1.5% 4.9% 5.2% 6.9% 4.1% 47% 2.5%
2004 8.7% 8.6% 5.9% 14.0% 2.4% 7.5% 3.8%
2005 6.1% 7.4% B.5% 15,5% 6.5% 9.0% 6.8%
2005 12.3% 12.9% 6.5% 8.7% 6.3% 5.8% 7.5%
2007 7.3% 8.1% 5.6% 90% | 34% 5.5% 5.9%
2008 08% 1A% 4.9% 5.1% 1.8% 5.0% 2.4%
2009 3% 1.9% 1.3% -4,2% 3.5% 0.4% 11.4%
2010 6.2% 5.5% 3.2% 1.4% 0.2% 2.6% 7.6%
w11 | 5.0% 4.1% 3.9% 2.5% Z0% 3.7% 9.4%
2012 15% 0.4% 5.3% 2.1% 3.5% 4.4% 10.6%
2013 ' 3.7% 3.5% 1.3% 3.6% 9.9%

Source: Economic Survey of Pakistan 2012~13 & Power System Statistics
37" Edition by Planning Power NTDC

Figure 2-5: GDP growth Electricity Consumption and Core Inflation

15.0%

10.0%

5.6%

Peorcetage Growth

2.0%

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2006 2006 2007
Figeal Year

 G%lage Giowlly Eletiicity Constimplion Domestic:

#tiage Growth Elechicity Consurption Total

1996 4907 1608 180

frin i

5.0%

It can be noted that periods of high growth rate of energy consumption was
by high growth rate of GDP, conversely period of lower growth in energy
consumption caused lower growth in GDP,

The Planning Power NTDC has developed electricity demand forecast of
country for three scenarios Low, Normal and High at average annual GDP
growth rates of 3.5%, 5.0% and 6.5% respectively. Based on the economy’s
performance over the last five years (2008-12), peak demand of electricity is
expected to grow at annual rates of 5.89%, 7.42% and 8.99% by the year 2034-

JVe CI-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN: & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUF PAGE 2-22
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35 in Low, Normal and High scenarios respectively! (reference year is 2011 with
peak demand as 18,270 MW).

The Ibw, normal and high GDP growth rates that are used for demand projection
by Planning Power NTDC, summary and details are given in Table 2-12 to 14
below:

2011~2012 24 2.4 2.4
2012~2013 R 3.1 . 3.4
2013~2014 3.0 3.7 4.5
2014~2015 3.2 4.4 5.5
201572016 3.5 5.0 6.5
2017~2020 3.5 5.0 6.5
2021~2025 3.5 5.0 6.5

Source: Electricity Demand forecast based on multiple Regression Analysis by
Planning Power NTDC, May 2012

Country’s Sector wise projected GDP Growth for I.o'u\fs';'éﬁén

2010-11 2.4 4.8 3.2 0.9
2011-12 2.7 4.3 3.5 1.2
2012-13 3 5.2 3.8 15
2013-14 32 5.4 4 1.7
2014-15 3.5 5.7 4,3 2
2015-16 3.5 5.7 4.3 2
2016-17 35 5.7 4.3 2
2017-18 3.5 5.7 4.3 2

2018-19 3.5 5.7 4.3 2
2019-20 3.5 5.7 4.3 2
2020-21 3.5 5.7 4.3 2
2021-22 3.5 5.7 4.3 2
2022-23 35 5.7 43 2

' Electricity Demand rcast on Itile Re

JV: CIV-TEGH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GRQP  ApPAGE 223
serfifled True Copy



FEASIBILITY STUDY ARKAR! GOL HPP

2023-24 3.5 57 4.3 2

2024-25 3.5 5.7 4.3 2

Source: Electricity Demand forecast based on multiple Regression Analysis by
Planning Power NTDC, May 2012

2010-11 2.4 4.8 32 09
2011-12 3.1 5.3 3.9 : 1.6
2012-13 3.7 5.9 4.5 2.2
2013-14 4.4 6.6 5.2 2.9
201415 5 7.2 5.8 3.5
2015-16 5 7.2 5.8 ' 3.5
2016-17 5 7.2 5.8 3.5
2017-18 5 7.2 5.8 3.5
2018-19 5 7.2 5.8 3.5
2019-20 5 7.2 5.8 3.5
2020-21 5 7.2 5.8 1.5
2021-22 5 7.2 5.8 3.5
2022-23 5 7.2 5.8 3.5
2023-24 5 7.2 5.8 3.5
2024-25 5 7.2 5.8 3.5

Source: Electricity Demand forecast based on multiple Regression Analysis by
Planning Power NTDC, May 2012

2010-12 2.4 18 32 0.9
2011-12 3.4 5.6 4.2 1.9
2012-13 4.5 6.7 53 3
2013-14 5.5 7.7 6.3 4
2014-15 6.5 8.7 7.3 5
2015-16 6.5 8.7 7.3 5
2016-17 6.5 8.7 73 5
2017-18 6.5 8.7 73 5

JV: CIV.-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GRCUP PAGE 2-24
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jected GDP Growth for High Sce

2018-19 5.5 8.7 7.3 5
2019-20 6.5 8.7 7.3 5
2020-21 | 6.5 8.7 7.3 5
2021-22 6.5 8.7 7.3 5
2022-23 6.5 8.7 7.3 5
2023-24 6.5 8.7 73 5
2024-25 6.5 : 8.7 7.3 5

Source: Electricity Demand forecast based on multiple Regression Analysis by
Planning Power NTDC, May 2012

In order to achieve high economic growth, the Government has gradually started
increasing investment for infrastructure development and desires to invest
mostly in the construction of major water reservoir for production of hydro
electricity and to meet the water need for the agriculture sector which is the
backbone of economic growth. Therefore, most of the investment in thermal
power generation is expected to come from national and international private
sector entrepreneurs,

Electricity supply is a service industry catering to various economic and service
sectors. Demand is thus driven by the growth in these sectors. In order to
project a realistic growth rate for power demand, electricity consumption in
various economic sectors (domestic, industrial, agriculturai, efc.) and
corresponding economic parameters such as GDP, services value-added,
Industrial value-added, and agricultural value-added also need to be taken into
account. Various GDP growth rate scenarios, i.e., high, medium, and low, have
been analyzed to see which would best-fit them.

Current economic trends show that the economy may grow at an average rate of
around 5% over the next twenty years. Therefore, projections of the demand for
power have been developed accordingly. Electricity demand projections based
on Low, normal and high GDP growth are presenied in Table 2-15 to 17
respectively, whereas corresponding elasticity are given in Table 2-18.
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; tov.v- Gop Gruini

210-11 44901 7304 26967 11419 5337 95926 11284 107210

2011-12 | 46543 8025 28334 11590 i R625 100137 11856 111993 4.5%
2012-13 47652 8334 29474 12159 5874 103953 12333 116326 3.9%
2013-14 50542 5708 30520 11722 6231 108722 12770 121492 4.4%
2014-15 53296 10343 31586 11870 6542 113618 13209 126826 4.4%
2015-16 56203 11308 32655 12225 0910 119301 13663 132965 4.8%
2016-17 56271 12378 33813 12674 7307 124842 14147 138930 4.5%
2017-18 52508 13545 35062 12226 . 7734 131075 14671 145747 4.9%
2018-19 65925 14647 36423 12490 8170 137553 15240 152894 4.9%
2019-20 68689 16010 37911 12499 8614 143725 15863 159588 4.4%
20z20-21 70989 17515 39558 12761 9068 149898 16545 166435 4.3%
2021-22 75251 19168 41377 13090 9658 158542 17300 175843 57%
2022-23 75442 20911 43383 13295 10271 167303 18123 185436 5.5%
2023-24 83873 22020 45594 13645 10948 176980 19054 196030 5.7%
2024-25 88555 25142 48030 14042 11687 187455 20061 207516 5.9%

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR Pagea 2-26
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2010-11 44901 7304 26967 11419 5337 £5928 11284 107212

2011-12 46648 8054 28365 11635 5635 100337 11869 112206 4.65%
2012-13 47916 8922 28596 12288 5908 104630 12384 117014 4.28%
2013-14 51104 9812 30820 11987 6310 110133 12858 123029 5.14%
2014-15 54285 10705 32181 12344 6688 1161282 13457 129641 5.37%
2015-16 5767¢ 11883 33648 12850 7139 123280 14079 137369 5.96%
2016-17 61266 13221 35303 13066 7639 130485 14772 145267 5.75%
2017-18 65093 14735 37151 13554 8189 138722 15545 154267 6,20%
2018-19 69160 16249 39216 14200 8767 147552 16409 164001 6.31%
2015-20 72692 18123 41526 14589 9384 156324 17375 173699 5.91%
2020-21 75885 20243 44128 15338 10038 165632 18458 184090 5.98%
2021-22 81358 22638 47058 16204 10877 178135 18676 197811 7.45%
2022-23 86984 25253 50355 16969 11780 191341 21047 212388 7.37%
2023-24 93007 28314 54063 17975 12799 206158 22589 218747 7.70%
2024-25 92456 31781 58237 19107 13930 222511 24324 246835 7.91%

Source: Electricity Demand forecast based on multiple Regression Analysis by Planning Power NTDC, May 2012

W CW-TECH B EPAC, JEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR 5TAR
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i 2010-11 9592%» i 107210

| 2011-12 46728 7738 23393 11663 5645 100511 11881 112392 | 4.8%

P 2012-13 48186 8634 15718 12418 5544 105277 12435 117712 4.7%
2013-14 51675 9588 31126 12243 6390 111548 13024 124572 5.8%

F 2014-15 55296 10604 32772 12813 6836 118783 13713 132494 6.45%
2015-16 55170 11944 34674 13697 7376 127381 14508 141890 71%

i 2016-17 63320 13511 36856 14107 7982 136365 15422 151786 7.0%
2017-18 67765 15326 35351 14582 8665 146757 16466 163223 7.5%
2018-19 72527 17228 4219% 16095 5401 158203 17657 175860 T.7%
2019-20¢ 76884 19599 45445 16590 10214 150990 19017 189047 7.5%
2020-21 21074 22349 45176 18357 11107 183038 20569 203609 7.7%
2021-22 87908 25531 53451 19967 12246 200217 22349 222566 9.3%
2022-23 95168 29112 58355 21548 13509 218962 24391 243352 9.3%
2023-24 103039 33375 53984 234548 14858 240361 26734 267095 9.8%
2024-25 111573 38323 70459 25845 16605 264475 29429 293903 10.0%

Demand forecast based on multiple Regression Analysis by Planning Power NTDC, May 2012

IV CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNIVIEN B FOUR STAR
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2010-11 0.5060 0.2365 0.2731 0.9438 0.7078 0.3963 0.5265 0.4354 17315 1.5531 0.7311 1.8833
2011-12 0.5070 0.9444 0.2980 0,9629 0.7078 0.3963 0.6265 0.4994 17351 15642 0.7979 1.9234
2012-13 0.5081 0.9523 0.3230 0.9820 0.7078 0.3983 0,6265 0.4959 17387 15773 0.8647 1.9615
2013-14 0.5021 0.8602 0.3479 L0010 0.7078 0.3063 0.5265 0.4354 17423 1.5904 0.9315 1.99%6
2014-15 0.5102 0.9681 0.3729 10201 0.7078 0.3963 0.6265 0.4954 L7459 1.6035 0.9282 2.0377
2015-16 0.5112 0.9760 0.3978 1.03%2 0.7078 0.3963 0.6265 0.4994 17495 1.6166 1.0650 2.075%
2016-17 05123 0.9839 0.4228 . 1.0583 0,7078 0.3963 0.5265 0,4954 17531 1.6257 1.1318 2.1140
2017-18 0.5134 0.5918 0.4477 10774 0.7078 0.3963 0.5265 0.4994 17557 1.6428 1.1986 2.1521
2018-19 0.5144 0.8957 04726 1.0964 07078 0,3963 0,6265% 0,4994 17603 1.6559 1.2654 2.1902
2019-20 0.5155 10078 0.4376 11155 0.7078 0.3963 0.5265 0.4984 17639 1.6650 1.3322 22283
2020-21 0.5185 1.0155 0.5225 11346 0.7078 0.3963 0.6265 0.4984 17675 1.6821 1.3989 2.2664
2021-72 0.5176 1.0235 0.5475 11537 0.7073 0.3963 0.5265 0.4994 17712 1.6852 1.4657 2,3045
2022-23 0.5186 10314 0.5724 11728 07078 0.3963 0.6265 0.4954 - L7748 1.7083 1.5325 2.3426
2024-24 0.5157 1.0393 0.5974 11918 0.7078 0,3963 0.8265 0.4994 17784 1.7214 1.5943 23808
2024-25 0:5207 10472 0.6223 12109 0.7078 0.3963 0.G265 0.4954 1.7820 17345 1.6661 24188
202506 0.5218 1.0551 0.6473 1.2200 0.7078 0.3963. 0.6265 0.4954 1.7856 17476 17320 2457
2026-27 0.5228 1.0630 D.6722 12493 0,7078 0.3963 0,6265 0,4994 17892 L7607 1.7996 24951
2027-28 0.5239 L0708 D.6972 1.2682 0.7078 0.3963 0.5265 0.4394 17928 17738 1.8664 2.5332
2028-22 0.5249 1.0788 07221 1,2872 07078 10,3063 06265 0,494 17964 1.7869 19332 2.5713
2029-30 0.526D 1.0867 0.7470 1.3083 0.7078 0.3963 0.6265 0.4354 1.8000 1.8000 2.0000 2.5094
2030-31 0.2922 0.6037 03735 13254 0.7078 0.3963 0.6265 0.4594 10000 1.0000 1.cqeo 2.0475
2031-32 0.2922 0.6037 0.3735 1.3445 0.7078 0.3963 0.6265 0.4394 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 26857
2032-33 0.2922 0,6037 0.3735 1.3636 0.7078 0.3963 0.6265 0.4394 1,0000 1.0000 1.0000 2.7238
2033-3¢4 0.2922 0,6037 0,3735 1.3827 0.7078 0,3963 0,6265 0.4994 1,0000 1.0000 1.0000 27619
203435 0.2922 0.6037 0.3735 1.4017 0.7078 40,3983 0.6265 0.4994 1.0000 1.q000 1.0000 2.8000
Jv: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR 5TAR Page 2-29
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JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINERE G GROUP PAGE 2-30

Demand and Supply analysis _
For years, the matter of balancing Pakistan's supply against the demand for
electricity has remained a largely unresolved matter. Pakistan faces a significant
challenge in revamping its network responsible for the supply of electricity.
Demand & Supply analysis plays an important role in power planning. In this
analysis we do a comparison between future forecasted demands with its
correspoending committed or firm power supply position and the result gives an
idea about future power position.

The demand & supply balance is based on the current inputs and may
change with. any change in the input data. The input data includes list of
generation projects and the data obtained from different formations including
PPIB, WAPDA, PAEC, GENCOs and AEDB etc.

The NTDC forecast in its report has presented three scenarios (low, normal and
high) for the period 2011-2035 and a scenario, where the normal forecast is
considered for power demand balance analysis as the low GDP growth
appeared to be too low and high GDP seems fo be too optimistic.

The normal load forecast of the PEPCO system for the financial year 2012~13 to
2024~25 is detailed in following Table 2-19,

ble 2-19: Electricity Load Forecast Based on Normal GDP Growth

- 2011-12 112206* 23892* 69.4*
2012-13 117014* 28721* 69.3*
2013-14 123029 25793 69.3
2014-15 129641 26976 69.3
2015-16 137369 28558 68.9
2016-17 145267 29866 69.2
2017-18 154267 31527 69.1
2018-19 164001 33317 69.1
2018-20 173699 35074 69.1
2020-21 184090 37130 69
2021-22 157811 39820 69
2022-23 212388 42711 68.9
2023-24 228747 45555 68.9
2024-25 246835 49533 68.8

*Actual Value
Source: Electricity Demand forecast based on multiple regression analysis by
planning power NTDC, May 2012

Certs'ﬁgfg Trua Copy
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The list of existing power plants and their present capabilities are given in earlier
pages at Tables 2-1 to 2-5, while the detail of power plants committed or
expected in future along with their expected operation date are given in the

Table 2-20.

2011-12 _ 19,296
* linnah PP 1 Hydro 96 96 423 985 138,734
Khan Khwar Hydro 72 72
_ Rental Power Projects Thermal D85
2012-13 i
New Bong Escape, IPP Hydro 84 84
Allai Khwar Hydro 121 121
FFCEL Wwind 50
Duber Khwar Hydro 1 130 130 722 19,456
Gomal Zam HPP Hydro 1 17 17
2013-14
UCH Il CCGT cC 1 375 375
Candidate wind PP wind 200
Guddu Rehabilitation
. CcC 2 328 a58 1,797 21,253
Project #1 & Il
MNandipur Power
- CcC 1 364 364
2014-15 Project
Chichoki Malllan CCGT | CC 1 525 525
Candidate wind PP Wind 250
Nealum Jhelum Hydro 240 959 1,209 22,482
2015-16 - - -
Candidate wind PP Wind 250
tmported Coal Coal 500 1,000 3,570 26,032
CHASHNUPP-III, Punjab | Nuclear 320 320
2016-17 | Candidate wind PP Wind 250 |
Iran - Pakistan and
I/C 1,000 2,000
CASAT/L.
Imported Coal Coal 2 500 1,000 5,024 38,305 |
CHASHNUPP-1V, Punjab | Nuclear 1 320 320
Tarbela 4th Ext. Hydro 2 475 950
2017-18
Golen Gol Hydro 3 35 105
Parind HPP, IPP Hydro 1 147 147
Candidate wind PP Wind 300
Imported Coal Coal 2 500 1,000 1,458 30,312
Rajdahani HPP, IPP Hydro 1 131 131
Shogosin HFP, IPP Hydro 1 126 126
2018-19
Shushgai Zhendoli HPP,
Hydro 1 10 101
PP
Candidate wind PP Wind 100

V: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERIBG GROUP
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Source: NTDC National Power System Expansion Plan 2011~2030 (Generation
Planning)

{continue...)

Imported Coal Coal 2 500 1,000 1,932 414 31,380
GTPS Faisalabad . Thermal | ' - 129 '
2019-20 | Guddu CCP Thermal o285
Suki Kinari HPP, IPP | Hydra 4
Candidate Wind IPP | Wind
Imported Coal Coal 2 500 208 832 700 33,169
Qadirabad PAEC ’
Nuclear 1 940 100
2020-21 § (Nuclear)
lamshoroo Steém Thermal 4 -700
Gulpur HPP Hydro 1 99 99
Imported Coal STM 2 500 1,000 2,579 861 34,887
Various Units of
Powaer Stations Thermal 6 a6l
2021-22 | Lawi Hydro 3 23 69
Keyal Khwar Hydro 2 61 121
Kahala Hydro 4 272 1,089
Candidate wind PP Wind 300
5023. - Kalam Arsit HPP, IPP | Hydro 1 195 185 2,673 37,560
23 Diamer Basha # 1 Hydre 6 371 2,228
Candidate wind PP wind 250
Imperted Coal Coal b4 500 1,000 5,746 1,275 42,031
PAEC-Karachi Il Nuclear 1 940 940 '
2023- | Chakothi HPP, IPP Hydro 1 495 495
24 Diamer Basha #2 Hydro 6 371 2,228
Munda HPP Hydro 1 733 733
Candidate wind PP Wind 350
PAEC-Karachi IH Nuclear 1 940 940 5,894 47,925
2024- | Thakot Hydro 8 347 2,772
25 Bunji #1 Hydro 7 255 1782
Candidate wind PP Wind 400

Source: NTDC National Power System Expansion Plan 2011~2030 (Generation
Planning)

NV CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FCUR STAR ENGIN %@G GROUP PAGE 2-32
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2.12.1 Power Demand Balance:
In order to compute the power—demand balance on a monthly basis a spread
sheet model on the following data resources and assumptions was developed.

1. In order to develop a power supply and demand balance, power plan as
developed by NTDC has been adopted. However to make the balance
realistic, commissioning year of the some of the projects has been
altered by looking in to physical progress made tilt June 2013
and GoP's/ WAPDA ability to finance these projects.

2. Using Table 2-19 for Electricity Demand Forecast (based on multiple
regression analysis) for the period 2012~2025 '

3. Using Table 2-20 for firm supply commitment for the period 2012~2025.

4. The available monthly capacity of e'xisting hydropower plants was
calculated based on the last 10 years average during various
months,

5. The available monthly capacity of new hydropower plants is based on
data drawn from feasibility studies carried out by reputable international
consultants and used for projection purposes. However, most of the
hydropower plants expected to be commissioned during the next ten
years are at the planning stages and feasibilities are being conducted
by the respective entreprensur.  Accordingly, it was very difficult to
access the monthly capabilities of such plants. However for calculation
purposes following criterion have been developed:

i. Most of the new power plants are located in rivers / nullahs on
which either a power plant already exists or feasibility has been
completed in the public/private sector. Accordingly, same water
flow pattern has been taken for those proposed power plants
located in such rivers / nullahs.

ii. There are few power plants (new) on such nullahs where nothing
(feasibility or existing power plants) is available. For such
situations, water flow pattern of near by nullahs have been taken in
to account.

6. The de-rated capacity of the WAPDA system was taken into account for
existing thermal power plants.

7. Net capacity, i.e. after accounting for their own consumption, has been
taken into account for power plants opsrating in the private sector.

8. Power plants in the public sector have depreciated heavily over time and
are more prone to breakdowns. It is assumed that PEPCO has 15%
forced outage thermal power plants being operated and maintained by

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEE4ING GROUP PAGE 2-33
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GENCOs, 1% for hydro power plants, 10% for renewable energy plant
and about 10% in IPPs thermal power plant. In the projection period, ratio
of hydropower plants capacity is more than thermal, therefore, forced
outage rate of 9% average has been assumed.

A 45-day maintenance cutage has been assumed for thermal power

plants in the public and private sectors.

10. A 36-day maintenance outage has been assumed for hydropower planis

11. The monthly ratio of peak demand is based on the last 20 years'

historical record.

12. There are three hydfo!ogical regimes, i.e., wet, normal, and dry. During

the wet season, there is more water in the reservoirs and consequently,
more energy can be produced by hydropower plants. Under normal
conditions, a normal volume of energy is produced. During the dry
season, low levels of precipitation in the catchments areas of the major
reservoirs reduce the production of hydro energy. Therefore, hydropower
plant capability has been assumed on the basis of a normal water regime.

13.Based on these assumptions, the resulls of the power supply-demand

balance model are given in Table 2.21; whereas its graphical presentation
is given in Figure 2-6. It may be noted that during the entire planning
period, power supply is heavily dominated with thermal and hydro power
whereas nuclear power is very small in quantum.

14.The table following shows that there will be some gap in power supply

V: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINESHRG GROUP

and demand till 2025.

PAGE 2-34

£AD
Certified True Copy



FEASIBILITY 5TUBY ARKAR! GOL HPP

12012 | -7 179 244 ) -576 645 -1561 -3412 -544 -1432 -2360 -1717 -1542

| 2012~2013 -4456 -4555 -5226 -6214 -5437 -6272 -6130 -6002 6178 | -5936 -5060 -4644
2013~2014 -4145 -4284 -4988 -5742 -5046 -5567 -5744 -5323 -5433 -5429 -4704 -4293
2014~2015 -4707 4876 -5313 -5392 -4689 -5153 -5169 4925 -5003 -4963 -4284 -3871
2015~2016 -A605 -4830 -5598 -6220 -5454 -6161. -6156 -5912 -5990 -5297 -4655 -4196
2016~2017 -2169 -2489 -3416 -4105 -3475 -4095 -3734 -3736 <3622 -3421 -2817 -233§
20172018 -1351 -1623 -3663 -4281 -3619 -4169 -3678 -3800 -3618 -2952 -2211 -1656
2018~2019 -1697 ~2083 -3679 -4914 -4202 -4728 4166 -4332 -4075 -3374 -2578 -2008
2019~2020 -2703 -3129 -4732 -5869 -5089 -5609 -5024 -5196 -4931 -4293 -2874 -2246
2020~2021 -2544 -3195 -5156 -6490 -5669 -6179 -5509 -5710 -5271 -4483 -3513 -2859G
2021~2022 -3189 -3924 -5977 <7270 -6521 -7003 -6313 6774 -6266 -5236 4221 ~3588
2022~2023 -3404 -3848 -6005 -7472 -6855 -7980 -7496 -7514 -7004 -6128 -4976 -4253
2023~2024 -2290 -2558 5054 -6883 -6564 -8288 -8048 +7698 -7091 -6026 -4491 -3539
2024~2025 -6 -427 -3271 -5625 -6114 -8380 -7683 -7085 -5439 -4168 -2710 -1660
WV QV-TECH & EPAC, IEGIHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP PAGE 2-35
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Figure 2-61 lllustration of Power

Demand Supply Balance
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TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

Introduction

This chapter contains a description of the adopted methodology, and extent
and results of the Topographic Survey conducted by the Consuitant and
mapping of the proposed Weir and Power house locations as identified in Id
study 2001.

The project area is located in Chitral District of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. The
Chitral District constitutes the northern most part of Pakistan. It borders with
Afghanistan in the north and west, Northern Areas in the east and Swat & Dir
Districts in the south. The Project area is located in the north-west of Chitral
Town at a distance of 37 km.

The whole project layout has been proposed on the right bank of Arkari River
with the Powerhouse site proposed near Andakht village in the north-west of
Chitral Town at a road distance of about 29 km. The project area is linked by a
jeepable road which branches off from main Chitral-Garam Chashma metallic
road about 2 km upstream of the confluence of the Arkari River and Lutkho
River. The weir location is also accessible through this jeepable road which
leads to Arkari Village.

The main areas of investigation are the Weir site near Uchhatur village, the
Headrace Tunnel along the right bank of Arkari River and Powerhouse site near
Andakht village. Coordinates of the Weir and Powerhouse are given below:

Weir Site {Uchhatur} 36° 03 57 N 71° 41 37" E

Powerhouse Site (Andakht) 36° 01 10" N 71° 44" 11" E

Topographic Survey of the project fayout identified in [d-Study 2001 has been
carried cut by Gulf Consultants Peshawar. This project layout had been selected at
the project's inception stage. The survey covered the weir /intake, reservoir, de-
sander, surge shaft, pressure shaft, powerhouse and tailrace canal. Topographic
survey work has been completed for accessible areas of the project site.
Longitudinal profiles of the potential streich of the Arkari Gol have also been
prepared. Inaccessible portion includes area along the tunnel alignment between
the weir and powerhouse sites.

For the inaccessible areas of tunnel alignment, topegraphic maps were developed
with the heip of digitized map 1:10,000 scale from 1:50,000 scale Survey of
Pakistan (SOP) maps and a satellite map of 0.5 m resolution. The satellite map has
been acquired from Geo Solutions, Islamabad.

The whole area is a part of Chitral River catchment which drains from northeast
to southwest. The northern part is covered with glaciers and southern part,
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being at lower elevation, has no glaciers but receives heavy snowfall during |
wintar. |

Lower Chitral is a mountainous area. Tirich Mir (7690 m.a.s.l), located
approximately 50 km north of Chitral Town, is the highest peak of the region.
Arandu is the lowest point of the area where Chitral River leaves Pakistan to
enter Afghanistan for its subsequent re-entry at a lower elevation.

Main Rivers / Gols in Chitral district are:

» Yarkhun River, Laspur River, Mastuj River
» Tirich Gol, Rich Gol, Turkho River, Golen Gol
» Lutkho River, Ayun River, Shishi River and Chitral River

Lutkho River is comprised of two main streams: Lutkho River (Upper Part) and

Arkari Gol. Arkari Gol flows from north to south and upper part of Lutkho River |
flows from west to east. The lower part of Lutkho River changes its direction to ’
flow from north to south to join Mastuj River near Chitral Town.

Profile of Arkari Gol

The catchment of Arkari Gol borders with Afghanistan in north and west and

Turkho River catchment in the east. There are a few glaciers in the upper \
portion of the catchment. These include Gazikistan, Gham and Dirgol glaciers.

The catchment area of Arkari Gol is 1074 km?2. The main stream length of Arkari

Gol is 64 km and the average river gradient is 3.4%. Main tributaries of Arkari l
Gol are tabulated below.

1 KUROBAKHO GOL 308 4430 '
2 AGRAM GOL 225 4220
3 1SHPERU GOL 103 4298
4 BESTI GOL 154 3896

All of the above streams have steep gradients. Arkari Gol runs in a narrow
vallay.

Ohjectives of Topographic Survey

The survey work has been carried out to set the standard on which accurate

and meaningful engineering design could be achieved. The survey has been

carried out systematically and accurately in one uniform system of co-ordinates

and elevations. The survey work has been based on a network of horizontal and H
vertical control points covering accessible portions of the project area.

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP . PAGE3-2 II

5 GOV
E.Te%&ﬁ%:;ﬂ True GOV



. 8

3.2.1

3.3
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Survey was carried out for preparing basic site plan mapping. The mapping has
been used for project planning, construction material quantity estimates,
feasibility level evaluation estimates, construction cost estimafes and
preparation of project's concept design documents. River cross-section surveys
were carried out for quantification of flow and estimation of maximum flood level
under various hydrological conditions.

Scope of Work

a. Select the most suitable Project Layout

o

. Minimize geological and climatological hazards for stable project
infrastructure

. Highlight topographic features of areas covering project components

o O

. Minimize social and environmentai costs including relocation of population
e. Prepére computerized topographic maps of project component locations

f. Prepare valley cross-sections up to anticipated backwater effect on the
upstream of the weir location and 2.8 km downstream of the powerhouse
location.

g. Establish longitudinal profiles of Arkari Gol River from the proposed locations
of weir site to the powerhouse

h. To prepare a Project Map on a scale of 1:10,000.

Methodology

Preparation of a quality Feasibility Report entailed conduct of a detailed
topographic survey. Accordingly, a comprehensive topographic survey program
was developed and executed in the field by our subcontractor M/s Gulf
Consultants Peshawar. The process was carried out under the guidance and
supervision of a Senior Survey Engineer.

Initially available topographic information of the project area included SOP
topographic sheets at a scale of 1:50,000.

The following sheets were used to mark the [ayouts of project components.

Scale”

1 37- P12 1:50,000
2 37- P/8 1:50,000
3 37- P16 1:50,000

Detailed maps of the surveyed area have been prepared on Scales 1:500,
1:1000 and 1:5000 with 1 meter contour intervals at the powerhouse and weir
sites.
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General Approach

From SOP bench marks, control points were established with double action
differential GPS and then verified with total stations using traversing method.
Detailed topographic survey was then carried out from the established control
points. Survey work was initiated from the Survey of Pakistan Bench Mark
(SBM) near the bridge at Garam Chashma. This was followed by establishment
of benchmarks, two each at the Powerhouse and Weir sites respectively. These
benchmarks were established through Total Stations. Furthermore, two GPS
points were also established through Dual Frequency GPS (Sokia) at the Weir
Site.

Surveying Site at Designated Locations

Longitudinal Profile of the Arkari Gol upstream and downstream of the weir site
covered an area falling within 4 km upstream and 6.7 km downstream of the
weir site. Profile cross-sections were taken up to a distance of 100 m on both
sides of Arkari Gol. The survey covered the locations for Intake Structure, Sand
Trap, Head Race Tunnel and Powerhouse site. Longitudinal Profile survey was
extended to a distance of 5 km downstream of the powerhouse axis. Obstacles
such as houses, cuitivated lands, roads, bridges, electric and telephone lines,
etc. were included in the topographic maps.

Detailed Topographic Survey of the Weir reservoir area has been conducted for
estimation of water storage. Downstream of the weir site, cross sections have
been taken at 100 meter intervals up to a length of 500 m and 3980 m
upstream of the weir site. At the Powerhouse site, from the confluence of Arkari
and Lutkhe River, cross sections in the upstream directions have been taken at
25 m interval up to 500 m length along Arkari River. For the down streams side,
cross sections have been taken at 25 m intervals for a distance of 2421 m
downstream of Ruji Bridge along Lutkho River. The survey has been carried out
during high flow seascon whereas river bed couid be surveyed during minimum
flows only. River bed cross sections have now been taken and duly recorded.

The table below represents the area surveyed area at the weir site and
powerhouse locations.

Wair Site 3.56

Powerhouse Site 5.08

Technical Requirements

The following technicai requirements have been considered while carrying out
the topographic survey and preparation of maps.

" PAGE3-4

{9
certifiod True Copy



3.3.3.1

3.3.3.2

FEASIBILITY STUDY
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In order to prepare large scale topographic maps, reference grid has been
established by connecting the area to be surveyed with the Survey of Pakistan
(SOP) Grid. Permanent benchmarks and control points at project site have been
gstablished to achieve the required detail. To facilitate preparation of 1:5000 scale
maps, survey has been carried out for preparation of 1 m contour interval maps at

the Powerhouse and Weir sites.

Permanent Benchmarks

Four permanent benchmarks were established by G.P.S at the Powerhouse &
Weir site locations for the purpose of horizontal & vertical control. The
benchmarks were established using Survey of Pakistan benchmark (SBM) on
the edge of the bridge at Garam Chashma.

SBM Garam Chashma
5BMm (ARKARI) 3064336.67 1307250.29 2263.747 (SOP Point near Bridge)
1 | ArBM1 3074972.10 1316671.77 2197.800 Steel peg 1 on biack stone
on left side of the river
AR-BM?2 Steel peg 2 on black stone
2 (GCP 1) 3074936.86 1316689.67 2198.100 on left side af the rivar
AR-BM3 Steel peg 3 on black stone
3 (GCP 2) 3074991.30 1316675.23 2196.617 an left side of the rivar
4 | AR-BM4 3074938.00 1316689.44 2197000 | Steel peg 4 on black stone
on left side of the river
5 | AR-BMS 3075923.08 | 131561857 2174039 | Steel peg 5 on black stone
on iefi side of the river
6 | AR-BMS 3075890.17 131553089 2172.629 Steel peg 6 on black stone
on left side of the river

J: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP
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SBM

{ARKARI)

3079572.131

1310816.6

1858.40¢

ARKARI GOL HPP

VCVDVrner of VRoad' in
Andakht village

AR-PBM1

3084106.582

1309128.9

1730.700

Steel peg 1 on black
stone on left side of§
river

AR-PBM2

3084154.48

1309135.4

1733.800

Steel peg 2 on black
stone: on left side of the
river

- AR-PBM3

3079539.304

1310697.2

1876.200

Steel peg 3 on black
| stone on left side of the
river

AR-PBM4

3083144.984

1305803

1787.800

Steel peg 4 on black
stone on left side of the
river

AR-PBM3

3079972131

1210816.6

1858.400

Steel peg 5 on black
stone on left side of the
river

AR-PBMG

3079981.231

1310859.8

1854.500

Steel peg 6 on black
stone on |eft side of the
river

3.3.3.3 Control Points

Two control points have been established at the Weir and Powerhouse sites
using Double Action Differential GPS. The control points have been established
with reference to SOP Bench marks at Garam Chashma. The Global
points have been plotted on Global
Information System (GIS) sheet for accuracy check.

positioning system

(GPS) control

1 CP1 3074624.643 1317143.805 22276
pA Cpr2 3079956.149 1311151.225 1867.1
3 CP3 3077547.628 1313515.158 20449
4 Ccr4 3077523.832 1313555.618 2045.3
5 CP5 30759972.472 1311011.286 1851.5
b CcP6 3080528.489 1310392.457 1845.9
7 CP7 3075970.615 1310997.124 1860.6
8 cPg 3074594.303 1318517.317 2245.2
8 CPS 3076184.884 1315438.753 2168.8
10 CP10 3075207.313 1310333.752 1855.7
11 CP11 3077838.358 1312787.555 1995.1
12 CcP12 3074511,778 1317564.882 2251.8
13 CP13 3075035.906 1316675.24 21953
14 CPi4 3080529.475 1310392.457 1849.9
15 CP15 3074855.265 13186725.095 2203.8

JV: CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP
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16 CP16 3077943.599 1312942.358 1978.1
17 CPL7 3076634.856 1315041.0624 2161.4
18 crig 3074518.859 1318054.009 2253.1
.19 cp1g 3075508.631 1315694.571 2174.2
20 CcpP20 3077235.547 1314073.434 2083.8
21 CcP21 3074680.401 1318820.532 22491
22 cp22 3077017.291. 1314372.118 2105.1
23 cp23 3075624.032 1316277.648 2191.4
24 CP24 3078431.389 1312573.458 1915.5
25 CP25 3076834.795 1314705.166 2140.8
26 CP26 3076601.207 1315011.737 2170.5
27 cp27 3075125.454 1316633.6 2194.6
28 cp238 3077876.078 1313019.329 1987.9
29 CP29 3074431.53 © 1317607.08 2231.7
- 30 CP30 3078073.602 1312643.661 1954
31 Ccp3lL 3078053.044 1312701.74% 1957.8
32 CP32 3075157.595 1316608.343 2202.4
33 CP33 3078405.084 1312607.703 1820.6
34 CP34 3075673.707 1316008.534 2177.6
35 CP35 3074571.519 1317270.48 22345
36 CP36 3078013.306 1312926.795 1568.3
37 Ccp37 3077665.902 1313357.025 202C.4
38 CP38 3076900.046 1314866.988 2167.4
39 "CP39 3076663.288 1314976.235 2164
40 CP40 3078763.436 1310258.028 1855.6
41 CP41 3075180.438 1316459.582 2248.1
42 CP42 3077789298 1313162.474 1997.7
43 CP43 3075071.793 1316639.791 2196.8
44 CP44 3076843.747 1314886,729 2164.2
45 CP45 3077876.072 1313019.501 1987.9
46 CP4e 3077151.005 1314685.865 2189.1
47 CP47 3074746.516 1316798.194 2213.7
48 CP4g 3077732.552 1313418.05 2001.2
43 CP49 3078450.679 1312499.823 1937.4
50 CP50 3077017.168 1314372.265 2105.1
51 CP51 3077077.773 1314259.484 2095.3
32 CP52 3074750.068 1316776.225 2220.8
53 CP53 3074794.437 1316773.572 2208.7
54 CP54 3076810.531 1314748.338 2137.7
55 CP55 3077946.9 1312304.574 1879.6
56 CP56 3074564.198 1317278.06 2235.6
57 CP57 3075673.492 1315950.827 2178.8
58 CP58 3075657.661 1316254.029 2154
59 CP39 3078066.893 13126582.51 1956.5
60 CP&D 3074598.886 1318527.147 2249.1
61 CPsl 3076307.848 1315265.306 2165.6
62 cpPa2 3075163.357 1316635.863 2194.1
63 CPe3 3077180.304 1314190.805 2080.5
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64 CP&4 3077274.099 1313588.489 2068.8
65 CPa5s 3077161.765 1314610.694 2182.7
66 CPé6 3078254.163 1312760.485 1927.6
67 P67 3076094.674 1315420.942 2189.3
68 CPes 3077441.013 1313715.307 20314
69 CPGo 3076130.861 1315351.945 2195.4
70 CP70 3076867.227 1314569.537 2128.2
71 CP71 3076843.814 1314886.706 2164.2
72 CP72 3076033.392 1315638.672 2169.4
73 CP73 3075673.703 1315008.538 2177.6
- 74 CP74 3076157.22. 1315522.814 2167.%
75 CP75 3077017.17 1314372,222 2105.1
76 CP76 3077212.559 1314140448 2082.9
77 CP77 3077805.658 1313060.637 2005.2
78 CP78 3075753.072 1315917.925 21761
79 CP79 3077212.688 1314140.544 2082.9
80 CP8&0 3075726.032 1315874.26 2191.9
81 cpal 3078053.059 1312701716 1957.8
- 82 cpPaz2 3077805.683 1313060.593 2005.2
83 CP&3 3076052.422 1315477.343 21843
84 Crg4 3077212554 1314140.454 2082.9
85 CP85 3078052.976 1312701.767 1957.8
86 CP86 3076834.786 1314705.201 2140.8
87 CcPg7 3075163.365 1316635.903 2194.1
88 cpas 3075673.44 13155990.817 2178.8
83 cpg9 30777859.24 1313162.396 1997.7
0 CPSO 3078289.257 1312635.521 1950.2
. 91 CcPo1 3077212.695 1314140522 2082.9
92 CpPs2 307707784 1314299387 20953
93 CP93 3075243.556 1316534334 22379
94 CPS4 3075624137 1316277.616 21914
95 CPS5 3075071.774 1316639.793 2196.8
96 CPS6 3078405.074 1312607.715 1920.6
- 97 CPS7 3076810.526 1314748.346 2137.7
98 CPS8 3077828.009 1313213.99 1984.9
94 CcPae9 3075125.45 1316633.6 2194.6
100 CP100 3075732.973 1316256.173 2204.1
101 CP101 3078431.382 1312573.441 1915.5
102 Ccri02 3077235.537 1314073.456 2083.8
103 CP103 3077440.983 1313715.286 2031.4
104 Cp104 3077463.762 1313731.363 2022.8
105 CP105 3077665504 1313397.027 2020.4
106 CP106 3076307.81 1315265.324 2165.6
107 CP107 3075308.664 1315694.518 2174.2
108 CP108 3076052.403 1315477.336 2184.3
109 CP10% 3075807.712 1315820.023 2176.5
110 CP110 3078175.259 1312669.261 1953.3
111 CP111 3074431925 1317607.035 2231.7
'. CIV-TECH & EPAC, IEGFHPD, DESIGNMEN & FOUR STAR ENGINEERING GROUP PAGE :
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3.4.5
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112 CP112 3075157.621 1316608.314 2202.4
113 CP113 3074564.202 1317278.054 2235.6
114 CP114 3076601.863 1315011.775 2170.5
115 CP115 3077274.056 1313988.56 2069.8
116 CP116 3077943.56: 1312942.44 1978.1
117 CP117 3077874.367 1313067.193 1973.4
118 CP118 3078254.16 1312760.488 1927.6
119 CP119 3078437.73 1312588.661 1916
120 CP12C 3077706.909 1313263.212 2014.6
121 CP121 3076983.618 1314353.541 2108.4

Field Survey & Office Work

Headrace Tunnel

The Headrace Tunnel has been reproduced on a digitized map of 1. 50,000 -
10,000 scale of the Survey of Pakistan (SOP).

Weir Site and Intake

Wair site and intake structure locations have been surveyed at a scale of 1:500 with
a contour interval of one meter. Longitudinal profile extends 4 km upstream and 6.7
km downstream of the proposed weir location. Maps have been prepared on a
scale of 1: 5000.

Power House

This component was surveyed at a scale of 1:500 with a contour interval of one
meter. Longitudinal Profile extends 600 meters upstream and 5 km downstream of
the proposed Powerhouse location. Maps have been prepared on a scale of
1:5000.

Adit
Harni Gol vailey was surveyed for preparing long sections and cross- section {o the

extent of 1 km on either side of tunnel axis.

Data Processing

Field data collected through Digital Total Stations was transferred to a computer
for further processing. 12-D Model Software has been used for transferring of
data from the Total Station and also, for further processing on a computer. The
software converts topographic data into digital files. The data is subsequently
plotted in AutoCAD after which it is transferred to another software i.e. ArcGIS
10. This software is used for preparation of maps to be used for engineering
studies.
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Ground control points have been established with reference to GPS control
points. The density of ground control points is more than 5 points per km. The
points are visible and not affected by trees, steep rocks slopes etc. All reading
was regularly transferred from the Total Station to Memory Cards. The following
instruments were used during field survey:

n (GPS Sokia
m  Total Station Sokia

Field Survey

The area has been surveyed with the help of ground control station established
at suitable locations. All the topographic features appearing on the ground and
spot heights at suitable places have been observed and recorded with proper
coding. The observed data has been recorded in ENZ coordinates format by
using project code library. During acquisition of data in this field extreme care
and all precautionary measures have been taken in order to achieve the
desired accuracy. Field data has been processed in camp Headquarters and
checked by Surveyor. Name and information picked up by the surveyor during
data acquisition have been incorporated in the processed data. As per ToR,
200 acres area was to be surveyed whereas 2134 acres of area has been
surveyed which become 8.64 square km. The maps with scale of 1:5000 are
attached for review of the survey data.

River Cross Section

Along Lutkho River, cross sections have been taken at 100 m intervals 1000 m
upstream and downstream from the confluence of Arkari and Lutkho Rivers.
100 m interval river cross sections were also taken 376 m upstream of the axis
of Powerhouse along Arkari River and 449 m downstream of the axis of the
powerhouse. At the weir site, 200 m interval cross sections were taken 557 m
upstream and 600 m downstream of the weir axis. Drawings of river cross
sections are presented in Appendix 3.

Longitudinal Section of Arkari River

Longitudinal section of Arkari Gol River 4 km Up Stream and 6.7 km Down
Stream of Weir axis while 600 meter Up Stream and 5 km Down Stream of
Power House has been executed. About 16 km length of river including
reservoir has been executed. The co-ordinates of river water surface have
been mapped at a scale 1:5000. Details of cbjects touching the river have also
been recorded and presented in Appendix 3.

Physical Features

The following prominent features have been shown on maps.
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Existing houses / constructed buildings.

Existing roads, passages, water courses/irrigation channels, electricity
lines, telephone lines and poles.

Contact between over burden and exposed rock.

Loose scree, large boulders, trees and cultivated arsas.
Change in abrupt elevation marked differentially.

All control points/bench marks, marked and used.

@ ~ 9 a o

Steep slopes, drainage courses/ nullahs

Topographic detailing has been processed.in CAD to differentiate different layers.

Topographic Maps with Satellite Images

For the entire project area, topographical maps with GIS support have been
prepared in scale 1:10000 from SOP maps of 1:50,000 scales. These 1:10000
scale maps along with satellite imagery were utilized for inaccessible areas of
tunnel alignment. Topographic maps prepared by the consultant have been
presented at the end of this chapter.

The consultants have obtained satellite imagery from Geo Solutions.

Digital Model Elevation

The consultant has obtained DEM (Digital Elevation Model) of 5.00 m interval for
survey to facilitate planning and design of inaccessible project components such as
tunnel, surge tank etc. located in inaccessible areas. Digital Elevation Models of
areas housing different project components are presented at the end of this
chapter.
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Pictures of Arkari Gol Topographic Survey

Bench Mark Point N